

Amendment No. 2 Contract No. GA140000037 for Scarifier and Planner Parts between SSPS, Inc dba Smith Manufacturing Co. and the City of Austin

- The City hereby exercises this extension option for the subject contract. This extension option will be February 13, 2018 through February 12, 2019. One option will remain.
- 2.0 The total contract amount is increased by \$45,000.00 by this extension period. The total contract authorization is recapped below:

Action	Action Amount	Total Contract Amount	
Initial Term:			
02/13/2014 - 02/12/2017	\$135,000.00	\$135,000.00	
Amendment No. 1: Option 1 – Extension	\$45,000.00		
02/13/2017 - 02/12/2018			
Price Decrease (-1.6%)	\$0.00		
02/13/2017	\$45,000.00	\$180,000.00	
Amendment No. 2: Option 2 - Extension			
02/13/2018 - 02/12/2019	\$45,000.00	\$225,000.00	

- MBE/WBE goals do not apply to this contract. 3.0
- By signing this Amendment the Contractor certifies that the vendor and its principals are not currently suspended or debarred from doing business with the Federal Government, as indicated by the GSA List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement and Non-Procurement Programs, the State of Texas, or the City of Austin.
- All other terms and conditions remain the same. 5.0

BY THE SIGNATURES affixed below, this amendment is hereby in	incorporated into and made a part of t	he above-referenced
contract.	\wedge	
Oct 26, 2017		11 11 0
Sign/Date: Oct 26, 2017	Sign/Date: Linell	Doodin thro
	1-1	1 20
Drinted Name: Steven 1 Smith President	Linell Condin Drawn	1-13-

Printed Name:

Steven J Smith, President

Authorized Representative

SSPS, Inc. dba Smith Manufacturing Co. 1610 South Dixie Highway Pompano Beach, Florida 33060-9999 (800) 653-9311 ss@smithmfq.com

Linell Goodin-Brown Contract Management Supervisor II

City of Austin **Purchasing Office** 124 W. 8th Street, Ste. 310 Austin, Texas 78701



Amendment No. 1
to
Contract No. GA140000037
for
Scarifier and Planner Parts
between
SSPS, Inc
dba Smith Manufacturing Co.
and the
City of Austin

- 1.0 The City hereby exercises this extension option for the subject contract. This extension option, "each and combined", will be February 13, 2017 through February 12, 2018. Two options will remain.
- 2.0 The City hereby exercises Section 0400.14, "Economic Price Adjustment", for a price decrease at the rate of one-and-six-tenths percent (-1.6%). Prices will be adjusted as shown in Table 2.0 below:

Item	Stock	Description	Unit	Old Price	Multiplier	New Price	
6	SC.08.119	Toothed 640 Belt (SC8E)	EA	\$62.94	0.984	\$61.93	
8	NB.20.112	Shaft Nut (SC8E)	EA	\$9.95	0.984	\$9.79	
9	SC.08.602	Flange Bearing (SC8E)	EA	\$25.00	0.984	\$24.60	
10	SC.08.604	Endplate Bearing (SC8E)	EA	\$20.00	0.984	\$19.68	
11	SC.08.605	Drive Bushing (SC8E)	EA	\$55.00	0.984	\$54.12	
12	SC.08.500	Complete Drum (SC8E)	EA	\$195.00	0.984	\$191.88	
14	SC.08.401	Hexagonal Drive Shaft (SC8E)	EA	\$99.45	0.984	\$97.86	
16	VAC.BA02261	2 Inch Inlet Bull Cap 100 (SC10E)	EA	\$2.95	0.984	\$2.90	
18	SC.10.117	Toothed 840 Belt (SC10E)	EA	\$69.95	0.984	\$68.83	
20	SC.10.121	Tensioning Pulley (SC10E)	EA	\$80.38	0.984	\$79.09	
21	SC.10.602	Flange Bearing (SC10E)	EA	\$185.00	0.984	\$182.04	
22	SC. 10.604	Endplate Bearing (SC10E)	EA	\$30.00	0.984	\$29.52	
23	sc. 10.401	Hexagonal Drive Shaft (SC10E)	EA	\$225.00	0.984	\$221.40	
24	SC.10.403	Lower Toothed Pulley (SC10E)	EA	\$215.00	0.984	\$211.56	
25	SC.10.510	Flail 9/16" Shaft (SC10E)	EA	\$7.98	0.984	\$7.85	

3.0 The total contract amount is increased by \$180,000.00 by this extension period. The total contract authorization is recapped below:

Action	Action Amount	Total Contract Amount	
Initial Term:			
02/13/2014 - 02/12/2017	\$135,000.00	\$135,000.00	
Amendment No. 1: Option 1 – Extension	\$45,000.00		
02/13/2017 - 02/12/2018			
Price Decrease (-1.6%)	\$0.00		
02/13/2017	\$45,000.00	\$180,000.00	

- 4.0 MBE/WBE goals do not apply to this contract.
- 5.0 By signing this Amendment the Contractor certifies that the vendor and its principals are not currently suspended or debarred from doing business with the Federal Government, as indicated by the GSA List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement and Non-Procurement Programs, the State of Texas, or the City of Austin.
- 6.0 All other terms and conditions remain the same.

BY THE SIGNATURES affixed below, this amendment is hereby incorporated into and made a part of the above-referenced

contract.

Sign/Date:

Printed Name: Lackic K

laceres

Authorized Representative

SSPS, Inc
dba Smith Manufacturing Co.
16015 Dixie Highway
Pompano Beach, Florida 33060-9999
(800) 653-9311
smith@smithmfg.com

Sign/Date:

Linell Goodin-Brown

Contract Compliance Supervisor

City of Austin Purchasing Office 124 W. 8th Street, Ste. 310 Austin, Texas 78701 January 27, 2014

Guardian Industrial Supply, LLC Steve Wilkes 2012 Centimeter Circle Austin, TX 78758

Dear Mr. Wilkes:

The City of Austin has approved the award and execution of a supply contract with Guardian Industrial Supply in accordance with solicitation JRD0003.

Responsible Department:	Aviation Department
Department Contact Person:	Mike Robinson
Department Contact Email Address:	Mike.Robinson@austintexas.gov
Department Contact Telephone:	(512) 530-7504
Project Name:	Scarifier and Planner Parts
Contractor Name:	Guardian Industrial Supply
Contract Number:	GA140000037
Contract Period:	1/23/2014 – 1/22/2017
Contract Period Amount	\$135,000
Extension Options:	Three 12-month options
Requisition Number:	8200 - 13060700417
Solicitation Number:	JRD0003
Agenda Item Number:	50
Council Approval Date:	1/23/2014

Thank you for your interest in doing business with the City of Austin. If you have any questions regarding this purchase, please contact the person referenced under Department Contact Person above.

Sincerely,

Jonathan Dalchau, Buyer II Purchasing Office

January 27, 2014

SSPS, Inc. DBA SMITH Manufacturing Co. Bobby Cissell 16105 Dixie Highway Pompano, Beach, FL 33060

Dear Mr. Cissell:

The City of Austin has approved the award and execution of a supply contract with Guardian Industrial Supply in accordance with solicitation JRD0003.

Responsible Department:	Aviation Department
Department Contact Person:	Mike Robinson
Department Contact Email Address:	Mike.Robinson@austintexas.gov
Department Contact Telephone:	(512) 530-7504
Project Name:	Scarifier and Planner Parts
Contractor Name:	SMITH Manufacturing Co.
Contract Number:	GA140000037
Contract Period:	1/23/2014 – 1/22/2017
Contract Period Amount	\$135,000
Extension Options:	Three 12-month options
Requisition Number:	8200 - 13060700417
Solicitation Number:	JRD0003
Agenda Item Number:	50
Council Approval Date:	1/23/2014

Thank you for your interest in doing business with the City of Austin. If you have any questions regarding this purchase, please contact the person referenced under Department Contact Person above.

Sincerely,

Jonathan Dalchau, Buyer II Purchasing Office

CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF AUSTIN ("City") AND

Guardian Industrial Supply, LLC ("Contractor") for

OEM Parts for Scarifiers and Planers GA140000037

The City accepts the Contractor's Offer (as referenced in Section 1.1.3 below) for the above requirement and enters into the following Contract.

This Contract is between Guardian Industrial Supply, LLC having offices at Austin, TX 78758 and the City, a home-rule municipality incorporated by the State of Texas, and is effective as of the date executed by the City ("Effective Date").

Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the meanings given them in Solicitation Number JRD0003 for OEM Parts for Scarifiers and Planers.

1.1 This Contract is composed of the following documents:

- 1.1.1 This Contract
- 1.1.2 The City's Solicitation, Invitation for Bid (IFB), JRD0003 for OEM Parts for Scarifiers and Planers including all documents incorporated by reference
- 1.1.3 Guardian Industrial Supply, LLC Offer, dated 11/6/2013, including subsequent clarifications
- 1.2 Order of Precedence. Any inconsistency or conflict in the Contract documents shall be resolved by giving precedence in the following order:
 - 1.2.1 This Contract
 - 1.2.2 The City's Solicitation as referenced in Section 1.1.2, including all documents incorporated by reference
 - 1.2.3 The Contractor's Offer as referenced in Section 1.1.3, including subsequent clarifications.
- 1.3 <u>Term of Contract.</u> The Contract will be in effect for an initial term of thirty-six (36) months and may be extended thereafter for up to three (3) twelve (12) month extension option(s), subject to the approval of the Contractor and the City Purchasing Officer or his designee. See the Term of Contract provision in Section 0400 for additional Contract requirements.
- 1.4 <u>Compensation</u>. The Contractor shall be paid a total Not-to-Exceed amount of \$135,000 for the initial Contract term and \$45,000 for each extension option as indicated in the Bid Sheet, IFB Section 0600. Payment shall be made upon successful completion of services or delivery of goods as outlined in each individual Delivery Order.
- 1.5 Quantity of Work. There is no guaranteed quantity of work for the period of the Contract and there are no minimum order quantities. Work will be on an as needed basis as specified by the City for each Delivery Order.

This Contract (including any Exhibits) constitutes the entire agreement of the parties regarding the subject matter of this Contract and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements and understandings, whether written or oral, relating to such subject matter. This Contract may be altered, amended, or modified only by a written instrument signed by the duly authorized representatives of both parties.

In witness whereof, the City has caused a duly authorized representative to execute this Contract on the date set forth below.

GUARDIAN INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY, LLC	CITY OF AUSTIN
MIKE DUNCON	Danielle Lord
Printed Name of Authorized Person	Printed Name of Authorized Person
MIDM	Chamille Hop
Signature	Signature
VP	Contract Compliance Manager, Corporate
Title:	Title:
1/21/14	<u> 413/14</u>
Date:	Date:

CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF AUSTIN ("City") AND SSPS, Inc. DBA SMITH Manufacturing Co. ("Contractor") for

OEM Parts for Scarifiers and Planers GA140000037

The City accepts the Contractor's Offer (as referenced in Section 1.1.3 below) for the above requirement and enters into the following Contract.

This Contract is between SSPS, Inc. DBA SMITH Manufacturing Co. having offices at Pompano Beach, FL 33060 and the City, a home-rule municipality incorporated by the State of Texas, and is effective as of the date executed by the City ("Effective Date").

Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the meanings given them in Solicitation Number JRD0003 for OEM Parts for Scarifiers and Planers.

1.1 This Contract is composed of the following documents:

- 1.1.1 This Contract
- 1.1.2 The City's Solicitation, Invitation for Bid (IFB), JRD0003 for OEM Parts for Scarifiers and Planers including all documents incorporated by reference
- 1.1.3 SSPS, Inc. DBA SMITH Manufacturing Co. Offer, dated 11/4/2013, including subsequent clarifications
- 1.2 <u>Order of Precedence</u>. Any inconsistency or conflict in the Contract documents shall be resolved by giving precedence in the following order:
 - 1.2.1 This Contract
 - 1.2.2 The City's Solicitation as referenced in Section 1.1.2, including all documents incorporated by reference
 - 1.2.3 The Contractor's Offer as referenced in Section 1.1.3, including subsequent clarifications.
- 1.3 <u>Term of Contract.</u> The Contract will be in effect for an initial term of thirty-six (36) months and may be extended thereafter for up to three (3) twelve (12) month extension option(s), subject to the approval of the Contractor and the City Purchasing Officer or his designee. See the Term of Contract provision in Section 0400 for additional Contract requirements.
- 1.4 <u>Compensation</u>. The Contractor shall be paid a total Not-to-Exceed amount of \$135,000 for the initial Contract term and \$45,000 for each extension option as indicated in the Bid Sheet, IFB Section 0600. Payment shall be made upon successful completion of services or delivery of goods as outlined in each individual Delivery Order.
- 1.5 Quantity of Work. There is no guaranteed quantity of work for the period of the Contract and there are no minimum order quantities. Work will be on an as needed basis as specified by the City for each Delivery Order.

This Contract (including any Exhibits) constitutes the entire agreement of the parties regarding the subject matter of this Contract and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements and understandings, whether written or oral, relating to such subject matter. This Contract may be altered, amended, or modified only by a written instrument signed by the duly authorized representatives of both parties.

In witness whereof, the City has caused a duly authorized representative to execute this Contract on the date set forth below.

SSPS, INC. / SMITH MFG CO.	CITY OF AUSTIN
Bobby Cissell	Danielle\Lord
Printed Name of Authorized Person	Printed Name of Authorized Person
Robber Cissoll	Amulla Hord
Signature	Signature
Calls Manager	Contract Compliance Manager, Corporate
Title:	Title: / /
2/13/2014	2/13/14
Date: / /	Date:

CITY OF AUSTIN, TEXAS

Purchasing Office **INVITATION FOR BID (IFB)** Offer Sheet

and Planers

SOLICITATION NO: IFB JRD0003

DATE ISSUED: October 14, 2013

REQUISITION NO: 13060700417

FOR CONTRACTUAL AND TECHNICAL

Phone No. (512) 973-3500

Offer Sheet

COMMODITY CODE: 1751955

ISSUES CONTACT:

Jonathan Dalchau



COMMODITY/SERVICE DESCRIPTION: OEM Parts for Scarifiers

BID DUE PRIOR TO: 2:00 PM. Wednesday, November 6, 2013

Fax No. (572) 973-3588

Revised 02/14/12

Buyer II BID OPENING TIME AND DATE: 2:15 PM, Wednesday, November 6. Phone: (512) 974-2938 Email: jonathan.dalchau@austintexas.gov LOCATION: MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 124 W 8th STREET RM 310, AUSTIN, TEXAS 78701 LIVE BID OPENING ONLINE: For information on how to attend the Bid Opening online, please select this link: https://www.ci.austin.tx.us/financeonline/vendor connection/index.cfm #BIDOPENINGWEBINAR When submitting a sealed Offer and/or Compliance Plan, use the proper address for the type of service desired, as shown below. P.O. Address for US Mail Street Address for Hand Delivery or Courier Service City of Austin City of Austin, Purchasing Office Purchasing Office Municipal Building P.O. Box 1088 124 W 8th Street, Rm 310 Austin, Texas 78701 Austin, Texas 78767-8845 Reception Phone: (512) 974-2500 Offers (including Compliance Plans) that are not submitted in a sealed envelope or container will not be considered. SUBMIT 1 ORIGINAL AND 1 SIGNED COPIES OF OFFER OFFER SUBMITTED BY the signature below, I certify that I have submitted a binding offer. Steve Wilkes Sales Signer's Name and Title: (please print or type) Signature of Person Authorized to Sign Offer Company Name: Guardian tadustrial Sapply

Address: 2012 Centimeter Circle Email Address: steve@guardian-industrial.com

City, State, Zip Code Austin, TX. 78758

1

Table of Contents

SECTION NO.	TITLE	PAGES
0100, 0200, 0300	See http://www.austintexas.gov/financeonline/vendor_connection/index.cfm#STANDARDBIDDOCUMENTS *	*
0400	SUPPLEMENTAL PURCHASE PROVISIONS	7
0500	SCOPE OF WORK	2
0600	BID SHEET	2
0605	LOCAL BUSINESS PRESENCE IDENTIFICATION FORM	2
0700	REFERENCE SHEET	1
0800	NON-DISCRIMINATION CERTIFICATION	2
0805	NON-SUSPENSION OR DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION	1
0810	NON-COLLUSION, NON-CONFLICT OF INTEREST, AND ANTI-LOBBYING AFF DAV IT	2
0835	NONRESIDENT BIDDER PROVISIONS	1
0900	MBE/WBE PROCUREMENT PROGRAM PACKAGE or NO GOALS UTILIZATION PLAN	2
1000	"NO OFFER" RESPONSE FORM	1

All other Sections may be viewed at: http://www.austintexas.gov/financeonline/vendor_connection/index.cfm

RETURN THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS WITH YOUR OFFER**

•	Cover Page	Offer Sheet
	Section 0600	Bid Sheet(s)
	Section 0605	Local Business Presence Identification Form
	Section 0700	Reference Sheet (if required)
	Sections 0800 - 0835	Certifications and Affidavits (return all applicable Sections)
	Section 0900	MBE/WBE Procurement Program Package or No Goals Utilization Plan
	Bid Guaranty	(if required)

^{**} See also Section 0200, Solicitation Instructions, Section 0400, Supplemental Purchase Provisions, and Section 0500, Scope of Work/Specification, for additional documents that must be submitted with the Offer.

The Vendor agrees, If this Offer is accepted within 120 calendar days after the Due Date, to fully comply in strict accordance with the Solicitation, specifications and provisions attached thereto for the amounts shown on the accompanying Offer.

* INCORPORATION OF DOCUMENTS. Section 0100, Standard Purchase Definitions; Section 0200, Standard Solicitation Instructions; and Section 0300, Standard Purchase Terms and Conditions are hereby incorporated into this Solicitation by reference, with the same force and effect as if they were incorporated in full text. The full text versions of these Sections are available, on the hternet at the following online address: http://www.austintexas.gov/financeonline/vendor-connection/index.cfm#STANDARDBIDDOCUMENTS

If you do not have access to the Internet, you may obtain a copy of these Sections from the City of Austin Purchasing Office at the address or phone number indicated on page 1 of this Offer Sheet. Please have the Solicitation number available so that the staff can select the proper documents. These documents can be mailed, expressed mailed, or faxed to you.

It is the policy of the City of Austin to involve certified Minority Owned Business Enterprises (MBEs) and Woman Owned Business Enterprises (WBEs) in City contracting. MBE and WBE goals for this Solicitation are contained in Section 0900.

All Contractors and Subcontractors should be registered to do business with the City prior to submitting a response to a City Solicitation. In the case of Joint Ventures, each individual business in the joint venture should be registered with the City prior to submitting a response to a City solicitation. If the Joint Venture is awarded a contract, the Joint Venture must register to do business with the City. Prime Contractors are responsible for ensuring that their Subcontractors are registered. Registration can be done through the City's on-line vendor registration system. Log onto http://www.austintexas.gov/financeonline/vendor_connection/index.cfm and follow the directions.

By submitting an Offer in response to the Solicitation, the Contractor agrees that the Contract shall be governed by the following terms and conditions. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, Sections 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 20, 21, and 36 shall apply only to a Solicitation to purchase Goods, and Sections 9, 10, 11 and 22 shall apply only to a Solicitation to purchase Services to be performed principally at the City's premises or on public rights-of-way.

- 1. <u>CONTRACTOR'S OBLIGATIONS</u>: The Contractor shall fully and timely provide all Deliverables described in the Solicitation and in the Contractor's Offer in strict accordance with the terms, covenants, and conditions of the Contract and all applicable Federal, State, and local laws, rules, and regulations.
- EFFECTIVE DATE/TERM: Unless otherwise specified in the Solicitation, this Contract shall be effective as of the
 date the contract is signed by the City, and shall continue in effect until all obligations are performed in accordance
 with the Contract.
- 3. CONTRACTOR TO PACKAGE DELIVERABLES: The Contractor will package Deliverables in accordance with good commercial practice and shall include a packing list showing the description of each item, the quantity and unit price Unless otherwise provided in the Specifications or Supplemental Terms and Conditions, each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows: (a) The Contractor's name and address, (b) the City's name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the price agreement number if applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number of the container bearing the packing list. The Contractor shall bear cost of packaging. Deliverables shall be suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common carriers and any applicable specifications. The City's count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments not accompanied by packing lists.
- 4. **SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED:** The Contractor is not authorized to ship the Deliverables under reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of Deliverables.
- 5. <u>TITLE & RISK OF LOSS</u>: Title to and risk of loss of the Deliverables shall pass to the City only when the City actually receives and accepts the Deliverables.
- 6. <u>DELIVERY TERMS AND TRANSPORTATION CHARGES</u>: Deliverables shall be shipped F.O.B. point of delivery unless otherwise specified in the Supplemental Terms and Conditions. Unless otherwise stated in the Offer, the Contractor's price shall be deemed to include all delivery and transportation charges. The City shall have the right to designate what method of transportation shall be used to ship the Deliverables. The place of delivery shall be that set forth in the block of the purchase order or purchase release entitled "Receiving Agency".
- 7. RIGHT OF INSPECTION AND REJECTION: The City expressly reserves all rights under law, including, but not limited to the Uniform Commercial Code, to inspect the Deliverables at delivery before accepting them, and to reject defective or non-conforming Deliverables. If the City has the right to inspect the Contractor's, or the Contractor's Subcontractor's, facilities, or the Deliverables at the Contractor's, or the Contractor's Subcontractor's, premises, the Contractor shall furnish, or cause to be furnished, without additional charge, all reasonable facilities and assistance to the City to facilitate such inspection.
- 8. **NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER:** Every tender or delivery of Deliverables must fully comply with all provisions of the Contract as to time of delivery, quality, and quantity. Any non-complying tender shall constitute a breach and the Contractor shall not have the right to substitute a conforming tender; provided, where the time for performance has not yet expired, the Contractor may notify the City of the intention to cure and may then make a conforming tender within the time allotted in the contract.
- 9. PLACE AND CONDITION OF WORK: The City shall provide the Contractor access to the sites where the Contractor is to perform the services as required in order for the Contractor to perform the services in a timely and efficient manner, in accordance with and subject to the applicable security laws, rules, and regulations. The Contractor acknowledges that it has satisfied itself as to the nature of the City's service requirements and specifications, the location and essential characteristics of the work sites, the quality and quantity of materials, equipment, labor and facilities necessary to perform the services, and any other condition or state of fact which could in any way affect performance of the Contractor's obligations under the contract. The Contractor hereby

releases and holds the City harmless from and against any liability or claim for damages of any kind or nature if the actual site or service conditions differ from expected conditions.

10. WORKFORCE:

- A. The Contractor shall employ only orderly and competent workers, skilled in the performance of the services which they will perform under the Contract.
- B. The Contractor, its employees, subcontractors, and subcontractor's employees may not while engaged in participating or responding to a solicitation or while in the course and scope of delivering goods or services under a City of Austin contract or on the City's property.
 - i. use or possess a firearm, including a concealed handgun that is licensed under state law, except as required by the terms of the contract; or
 - ii. use or possess alcoholic or other intoxicating beverages, illegal drugs or controlled substances, nor may such workers be intoxicated, or under the influence of alcohol or drugs, on the job.
- C. If the City or the City's representative notifies the Contractor that any worker is incompetent, disorderly or disobedient, has knowingly or repeatedly violated safety regulations, has possessed any firearms, or has possessed or was under the influence of alcohol or drugs on the job, the Contractor shall immediately remove such worker from Contract services, and may not employ such worker again on Contract services without the City's prior written consent.
- 11. COMPLIANCE WITH HEALTH, SAFETY, AND ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS: The Contractor, its Subcontractors, and their respective employees, shall comply fully with all applicable federal, state, and local health, safety, and environmental laws, ordinances, rules and regulations in the performance of the services, including but not limited to those promulgated by the City and by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA). In case of conflict, the most stringent safety requirement shall govern. The Contractor shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from and against all claims, demands, suits, actions, judgments, fines, penalties and liability of every kind arising from the breach of the Contractor's obligations under this paragraph.

12. INVOICES:

- A. The Contractor shall submit separate invoices in duplicate on each purchase order or purchase release after each delivery. If partial shipments or deliveries are authorized by the City, a separate invoice must be sent for each shipment or delivery made.
- B. Proper Invoices must include a unique invoice number, the purchase order or delivery order number and the master agreement number if applicable, the Department's Name, and the name of the point of contact for the Department. Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, if any, shall be listed separately. A copy of the bill of lading and the freight waybill, when applicable, shall be attached to the invoice. The Contractor's name and, if applicable, the tax identification number on the invoice must exactly match the information in the Vendor's registration with the City. Unless otherwise instructed in writing, the City may rely on the remittance address specified on the Contractor's invoice.
- C. Invoices for labor shall include a copy of all time-sheets with trade labor rate and Deliverables order number clearly identified. Invoices shall also include a tabulation of work-hours at the appropriate rates and grouped by work order number. Time billed for labor shall be limited to hours actually worked at the work site.
- D. Unless otherwise expressly authorized in the Contract, the Contractor shall pass through all Subcontract and other authorized expenses at actual cost without markup.
- E. Federal excise taxes, State taxes, or City sales taxes must not be included in the invoiced amount. The City will furnish a tax exemption certificate upon request.

13. **PAYMENT:**

- A. All proper invoices received by the City will be paid within thirty (30) calendar days of the City's receipt of the Deliverables or of the invoice, whichever is later.
- B. If payment is not timely made, (per paragraph A), interest shall accrue on the unpaid balance at the lesser of the rate specified in Texas Government Code Section 2251.025 or the maximum lawful rate; except, if payment is not timely made for a reason for which the City may withhold payment hereunder, interest shall not accrue until ten (10) calendar days after the grounds for withholding payment have been resolved.
- C. If partial shipments or deliveries are authorized by the City, the Contractor will be paid for the partial shipment or delivery, as stated above, provided that the invoice matches the shipment or delivery.
- D. The City may withhold or set off the entire payment or part of any payment otherwise due the Contractor to such extent as may be necessary on account of:
 - delivery of defective or non-conforming Deliverables by the Contractor;
 - ii. third party claims, which are not covered by the insurance which the Contractor is required to provide, are filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims;
 - iii. failure of the Contractor to pay Subcontractors, or for labor, materials or equipment;
 - iv. damage to the property of the City or the City's agents, employees or contractors, which is not covered by insurance required to be provided by the Contractor;
 - v. reasonable evidence that the Contractor's obligations will not be completed within the time specified in the Contract, and that the unpaid balance would not be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages for the anticipated delay;
 - vi. failure of the Contractor to submit proper invoices with all required attachments and supporting documentation; or
 - vii. failure of the Contractor to comply with any material provision of the Contract Documents.
- E. Notice is hereby given of Article VIII, Section 1 of the Austin City Charter which prohibits the payment of any money to any person, firm or corporation who is in arrears to the City for taxes, and of §2-8-3 of the Austin City Code concerning the right of the City to offset indebtedness owed the City.
- F. Payment will be made by check unless the parties mutually agree to payment by credit card or electronic transfer of funds. The Contractor agrees that there shall be no additional charges, surcharges, or penalties to the City for payments made by credit card or electronic funds transfer.
- G. The awarding or continuation of this contract is dependent upon the availability of funding. The City's payment obligations are payable only and solely from funds Appropriated and available for this contract. The absence of Appropriated or other lawfully available funds shall render the Contract null and void to the extent funds are not Appropriated or available and any Deliverables delivered but unpaid shall be returned to the Contractor. The City shall provide the Contractor written notice of the failure of the City to make an adequate Appropriation for any fiscal year to pay the amounts due under the Contract, or the reduction of any Appropriation to an amount insufficient to permit the City to pay its obligations under the Contract. In the event of non or inadequate appropriation of funds, there will be no penalty nor removal fees charged to the City.
- 14. **TRAVEL EXPENSES**: All travel, lodging and per diem expenses in connection with the Contract for which reimbursement may be claimed by the Contractor under the terms of the Solicitation will be reviewed against the City's Travel Policy as published and maintained by the City's Controller's Office and the Current United States General Services Administration Domestic Per Diem Rates (the "Rates") as published and maintained on the Internet at:

http://www.gsa.gov/portal/category/21287

No amounts in excess of the Travel Policy or Rates shall be paid. All invoices must be accompanied by copies of detailed itemized receipts (e.g. hotel bills, airline tickets). No reimbursement will be made for expenses not actually incurred. Airline fares in excess of coach or economy will not be reimbursed. Mileage charges may not exceed the amount permitted as a deduction in any year under the Internal Revenue Code or Regulations.

15. **FINAL PAYMENT AND CLOSE-OUT**:

- A. If an MBE/WBE Program Compliance Plan is required by the Solicitation, and the Contractor has identified Subcontractors, the Contractor is required to submit a Contract Close-Out MBE/WBE Compliance Report to the Project manager or Contract manager no later than the 15th calendar day after completion of all work under the contract. Final payment, retainage, or both may be withheld if the Contractor is not in compliance with the requirements of the Compliance Plan as accepted by the City.
- B. The making and acceptance of final payment will constitute:
 - i. a waiver of all claims by the City against the Contractor, except claims (1) which have been previously asserted in writing and not yet settled, (2) arising from defective work appearing after final inspection, (3) arising from failure of the Contractor to comply with the Contract or the terms of any warranty specified herein, (4) arising from the Contractor's continuing obligations under the Contract, including but not limited to indemnity and warranty obligations, or (5) arising under the City's right to audit; and
 - ii. a waiver of all claims by the Contractor against the City other than those previously asserted in writing and not yet settled.
- 16. **SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT:** If the price stated on the Offer includes the cost of any special tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by the Contractor for the purpose of filling this order, such special tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the City and shall be identified by the Contractor as such.

17. **RIGHT TO AUDIT:**

- A. The Contractor agrees that the representatives of the Office of the City Auditor or other authorized representatives of the City shall have access to, and the right to audit, examine, or reproduce, any and all records of the Contractor related to the performance under this Contract. The Contractor shall retain all such records for a period of three (3) years after final payment on this Contract or until all audit and litigation matters that the City has brought to the attention of the Contractor are resolved, whichever is longer. The Contractor agrees to refund to the City any overpayments disclosed by any such audit.
- B. The Contractor shall include section a above in all subcontractor agreements entered into in connection with this Contract.

18. **SUBCONTRACTORS**:

A. If the Contractor identified Subcontractors in an MBE/WBE Program Compliance Plan or a No Goals Utilization Plan the Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Chapters 2-9A, 2-9B, 2-9C, and 2-9D, as applicable, of the Austin City Code and the terms of the Compliance Plan or Utilization Plan as approved by the City (the "Plan"). The Contractor shall not initially employ any Subcontractor except as provided in the Contractor's Plan. The Contractor shall not substitute any Subcontractor identified in the Plan, unless the substitute has been accepted by the City in writing in accordance with the provisions of Chapters 2-9A, 2-9B, 2-9C and 2-9D, as applicable. No acceptance by the City of any Subcontractor shall constitute a waiver of any rights or remedies of the City with respect to defective Deliverables provided by a Subcontractor. If a Plan has been approved, the Contractor is additionally required to submit a monthly Subcontract Awards and Expenditures Report to the Contract Manager and the Purchasing Office Contract Compliance Manager no later than the tenth calendar day of each month.

- B. Work performed for the Contractor by a Subcontractor shall be pursuant to a written contract between the Contractor and Subcontractor. The terms of the subcontract may not conflict with the terms of the Contract, and shall contain provisions that:
 - i. require that all Deliverables to be provided by the Subcontractor be provided in strict accordance with the provisions, specifications and terms of the Contract;
 - ii. prohibit the Subcontractor from further subcontracting any portion of the Contract without the prior written consent of the City and the Contractor. The City may require, as a condition to such further subcontracting, that the Subcontractor post a payment bond in form, substance and amount acceptable to the City;
 - iii. require Subcontractors to submit all invoices and applications for payments, including any claims for additional payments, damages or otherwise, to the Contractor in sufficient time to enable the Contractor to include same with its invoice or application for payment to the City in accordance with the terms of the Contract;
 - iv. require that all Subcontractors obtain and maintain, throughout the term of their contract, insurance in the type and amounts specified for the Contractor, with the City being a named insured as its interest shall appear; and
 - v. require that the Subcontractor indemnify and hold the City harmless to the same extent as the Contractor is required to indemnify the City.
- C. The Contractor shall be fully responsible to the City for all acts and omissions of the Subcontractors just as the Contractor is responsible for the Contractor's own acts and omissions. Nothing in the Contract shall create for the benefit of any such Subcontractor any contractual relationship between the City and any such Subcontractor, nor shall it create any obligation on the part of the City to pay or to see to the payment of any moneys due any such Subcontractor except as may otherwise be required by law.
- D. The Contractor shall pay each Subcontractor its appropriate share of payments made to the Contractor not later than ten (10) calendar days after receipt of payment from the City.

19. WARRANTY – PRICE:

- A. The Contractor warrants the prices quoted in the Offer are no higher than the Contractor's current prices on orders by others for like Deliverables under similar terms of purchase.
- B. The Contractor certifies that the prices in the Offer have been arrived at independently without consultation, communication, or agreement for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating to such fees with any other firm or with any competitor.
- C. In addition to any other remedy available, the City may deduct from any amounts owed to the Contractor, or otherwise recover, any amounts paid for items in excess of the Contractor's current prices on orders by others for like Deliverables under similar terms of purchase.
- 20. <u>WARRANTY TITLE</u>: The Contractor warrants that it has good and indefeasible title to all Deliverables furnished under the Contract, and that the Deliverables are free and clear of all liens, claims, security interests and encumbrances. The Contractor shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from and against all adverse title claims to the Deliverables.
- 21. WARRANTY DELIVERABLES: The Contractor warrants and represents that all Deliverables sold the City under the Contract shall be free from defects in design, workmanship or manufacture, and conform in all material respects to the specifications, drawings, and descriptions in the Solicitation, to any samples furnished by the Contractor, to the terms, covenants and conditions of the Contract, and to all applicable State, Federal or local laws, rules, and regulations, and industry codes and standards. Unless otherwise stated in the Solicitation, the Deliverables shall be new or recycled merchandise, and not used or reconditioned.
 - A. Recycled Deliverables shall be clearly identified as such.

- B. The Contractor may not limit, exclude or disclaim the foregoing warranty or any warranty implied by law; and any attempt to do so shall be without force or effect.
- C. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, the warranty period shall be at least one year from the date of acceptance of the Deliverables or from the date of acceptance of any replacement Deliverables. If during the warranty period, one or more of the above warranties are breached, the Contractor shall promptly upon receipt of demand either repair the non-conforming Deliverables, or replace the non-conforming Deliverables with fully conforming Deliverables, at the City's option and at no additional cost to the City. All costs incidental to such repair or replacement, including but not limited to, any packaging and shipping costs, shall be borne exclusively by the Contractor. The City shall endeavor to give the Contractor written notice of the breach of warranty within thirty (30) calendar days of discovery of the breach of warranty, but failure to give timely notice shall not impair the City's rights under this section.
- D. If the Contractor is unable or unwilling to repair or replace defective or non-conforming Deliverables as required by the City, then in addition to any other available remedy, the City may reduce the quantity of Deliverables it may be required to purchase under the Contract from the Contractor, and purchase conforming Deliverables from other sources. In such event, the Contractor shall pay to the City upon demand the increased cost, if any, incurred by the City to procure such Deliverables from another source.
- E. If the Contractor is not the manufacturer, and the Deliverables are covered by a separate manufacturer's warranty, the Contractor shall transfer and assign such manufacturer's warranty to the City. If for any reason the manufacturer's warranty cannot be fully transferred to the City, the Contractor shall assist and cooperate with the City to the fullest extent to enforce such manufacturer's warranty for the benefit of the City.
- 22. **WARRANTY SERVICES:** The Contractor warrants and represents that all services to be provided the City under the Contract will be fully and timely performed in a good and workmanlike manner in accordance with generally accepted industry standards and practices, the terms, conditions, and covenants of the Contract, and all applicable Federal, State and local laws, rules or regulations.
 - A. The Contractor may not limit, exclude or disclaim the foregoing warranty or any warranty implied by law, and any attempt to do so shall be without force or effect.
 - B. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, the warranty period shall be <u>at least</u> one year from the Acceptance Date. If during the warranty period, one or more of the above warranties are breached, the Contractor shall promptly upon receipt of demand perform the services again in accordance with above standard at no additional cost to the City. All costs incidental to such additional performance shall be borne by the Contractor. The City shall endeavor to give the Contractor written notice of the breach of warranty within thirty (30) calendar days of discovery of the breach warranty, but failure to give timely notice shall not impair the City's rights under this section.
 - C. If the Contractor is unable or unwilling to perform its services in accordance with the above standard as required by the City, then in addition to any other available remedy, the City may reduce the amount of services it may be required to purchase under the Contract from the Contractor, and purchase conforming services from other sources. In such event, the Contractor shall pay to the City upon demand the increased cost, if any, incurred by the City to procure such services from another source.
- 23. ACCEPTANCE OF INCOMPLETE OR NON-CONFORMING DELIVERABLES: If, instead of requiring immediate correction or removal and replacement of defective or non-conforming Deliverables, the City prefers to accept it, the City may do so. The Contractor shall pay all claims, costs, losses and damages attributable to the City's evaluation of and determination to accept such defective or non-conforming Deliverables. If any such acceptance occurs prior to final payment, the City may deduct such amounts as are necessary to compensate the City for the diminished value of the defective or non-conforming Deliverables. If the acceptance occurs after final payment, such amount will be refunded to the City by the Contractor.
- 24. **RIGHT TO ASSURANCE**: Whenever one party to the Contract in good faith has reason to question the other party's intent to perform, demand may be made to the other party for written assurance of the intent to perform. In the event

that no assurance is given within the time specified after demand is made, the demanding party may treat this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the Contract.

- 25. **STOP WORK NOTICE:** The City may issue an immediate Stop Work Notice in the event the Contractor is observed performing in a manner that is in violation of Federal, State, or local guidelines, or in a manner that is determined by the City to be unsafe to either life or property. Upon notification, the Contractor will cease all work until notified by the City that the violation or unsafe condition has been corrected. The Contractor shall be liable for all costs incurred by the City as a result of the issuance of such Stop Work Notice.
- 26. <u>DEFAULT</u>: The Contractor shall be in default under the Contract if the Contractor (a) fails to fully, timely and faithfully perform any of its material obligations under the Contract, (b) fails to provide adequate assurance of performance under Paragraph 24, (c) becomes insolvent or seeks relief under the bankruptcy laws of the United States or (d) makes a material misrepresentation in Contractor's Offer, or in any report or deliverable required to be submitted by the Contractor to the City.
- 27. **TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:** In the event of a default by the Contractor, the City shall have the right to terminate the Contract for cause, by written notice effective ten (10) calendar days, unless otherwise specified, after the date of such notice, unless the Contractor, within such ten (10) day period, cures such default, or provides evidence sufficient to prove to the City's reasonable satisfaction that such default does not, in fact, exist. The City may place Contractor on probation for a specified period of time within which the Contractor must correct any non-compliance issues. Probation shall not normally be for a period of more than nine (9) months, however, it may be for a longer period, not to exceed one (1) year depending on the circumstances. If the City determines the Contractor has failed to perform satisfactorily during the probation period, the City may proceed with suspension. In the event of a default by the Contractor, the City may suspend or debar the Contractor in accordance with the "City of Austin Purchasing Office Probation, Suspension and Debarment Rules for Vendors" and remove the Contractor from the City's vendor list for up to five (5) years and any Offer submitted by the Contractor may be disqualified for up to five (5) years. In addition to any other remedy available under law or in equity, the City shall be entitled to recover all actual damages, costs, losses and expenses, incurred by the City as a result of the Contractor's default, including, without limitation, cost of cover, reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs, and prejudgment and post-judgment interest at the maximum lawful rate. All rights and remedies under the Contract are cumulative and are not exclusive of any other right or remedy provided by law.
- 28. **TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE:** The City shall have the right to terminate the Contract, in whole or in part, without cause any time upon thirty (30) calendar days' prior written notice. Upon receipt of a notice of termination, the Contractor shall promptly cease all further work pursuant to the Contract, with such exceptions, if any, specified in the notice of termination. The City shall pay the Contractor, to the extent of funds Appropriated or otherwise legally available for such purposes, for all goods delivered and services performed and obligations incurred prior to the date of termination in accordance with the terms hereof.
- 29. **FRAUD:** Fraudulent statements by the Contractor on any Offer or in any report or deliverable required to be submitted by the Contractor to the City shall be grounds for the termination of the Contract for cause by the City and may result in legal action.

30. **DELAYS**:

- A. The City may delay scheduled delivery or other due dates by written notice to the Contractor if the City deems it is in its best interest. If such delay causes an increase in the cost of the work under the Contract, the City and the Contractor shall negotiate an equitable adjustment for costs incurred by the Contractor in the Contract price and execute an amendment to the Contract. The Contractor must assert its right to an adjustment within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of receipt of the notice of delay. Failure to agree on any adjusted price shall be handled under the Dispute Resolution process specified in paragraph 49. However, nothing in this provision shall excuse the Contractor from delaying the delivery as notified.
- B. Neither party shall be liable for any default or delay in the performance of its obligations under this Contract if, while and to the extent such default or delay is caused by acts of God, fire, riots, civil commotion, labor disruptions, sabotage, sovereign conduct, or any other cause beyond the reasonable control of such Party. In

the event of default or delay in contract performance due to any of the foregoing causes, then the time for completion of the services will be extended; provided, however, in such an event, a conference will be held within three (3) business days to establish a mutually agreeable period of time reasonably necessary to overcome the effect of such failure to perform.

31. INDEMNITY:

A. Definitions:

- i. "Indemnified Claims" shall include any and all claims, demands, suits, causes of action, judgments and liability of every character, type or description, including all reasonable costs and expenses of litigation, mediation or other alternate dispute resolution mechanism, including attorney and other professional fees for:
 - (1) damage to or loss of the property of any person (including, but not limited to the City, the Contractor, their respective agents, officers, employees and subcontractors; the officers, agents, and employees of such subcontractors; and third parties); and/or
 - (2) death, bodily injury, illness, disease, worker's compensation, loss of services, or loss of income or wages to any person (including but not limited to the agents, officers and employees of the City, the Contractor, the Contractor's subcontractors, and third parties).
- ii. "Fault" shall include the sale of defective or non-conforming Deliverables, negligence, willful misconduct, or a breach of any legally imposed strict liability standard.
- B. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DEFEND (AT THE OPTION OF THE CITY), INDEMNIFY, AND HOLD THE CITY, ITS SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES AND ELECTED OFFICIALS HARMLESS FROM AND AGAINST ALL INDEMNIFIED CLAIMS DIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF, INCIDENT TO, CONCERNING OR RESULTING FROM THE FAULT OF THE CONTRACTOR, OR THE CONTRACTOR'S AGENTS, EMPLOYEES OR SUBCONTRACTORS, IN THE PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTRACTOR'S OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE CONTRACT. NOTHING HEREIN SHALL BE DEEMED TO LIMIT THE RIGHTS OF THE CITY OR THE CONTRACTOR (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE RIGHT TO SEEK CONTRIBUTION) AGAINST ANY THIRD PARTY WHO MAY BE LIABLE FOR AN INDEMNIFIED CLAIM.
- 32. <u>INSURANCE</u>: (reference Section 0400 for specific coverage requirements). The following insurance requirement applies. (Revised March 2013).

A. General Requirements.

- i. The Contractor shall at a minimum carry insurance in the types and amounts indicated in Section 0400, Supplemental Purchase Provisions, for the duration of the Contract, including extension options and hold over periods, and during any warranty period.
- ii. The Contractor shall provide Certificates of Insurance with the coverages and endorsements required in Section 0400, Supplemental Purchase Provisions, to the City as verification of coverage prior to contract execution and within fourteen (14) calendar days after written request from the City. Failure to provide the required Certificate of Insurance may subject the Offer to disqualification from consideration for award. The Contractor must also forward a Certificate of Insurance to the City whenever a previously identified policy period has expired, or an extension option or hold over period is exercised, as verification of continuing coverage.
- iii. The Contractor shall not commence work until the required insurance is obtained and until such insurance has been reviewed by the City. Approval of insurance by the City shall not relieve or decrease the liability of the Contractor hereunder and shall not be construed to be a limitation of liability on the part of the Contractor.
- iv. The City may request that the Contractor submit certificates of insurance to the City for all subcontractors prior to the subcontractors commencing work on the project.
- v. The Contractor's and all subcontractors' insurance coverage shall be written by companies licensed to do business in the State of Texas at the time the policies are issued and shall be written by companies with A.M. Best ratings of B+VII or better.

- vi. The "other" insurance clause shall not apply to the City where the City is an additional insured shown on any policy. It is intended that policies required in the Contract, covering both the City and the Contractor, shall be considered primary coverage as applicable.
- vii. If insurance policies are not written for amounts specified in Section 0400, Supplemental Purchase Provisions, the Contractor shall carry Umbrella or Excess Liability Insurance for any differences in amounts specified. If Excess Liability Insurance is provided, it shall follow the form of the primary coverage.
- viii. The City shall be entitled, upon request, at an agreed upon location, and without expense, to review certified copies of policies and endorsements thereto and may make any reasonable requests for deletion or revision or modification of particular policy terms, conditions, limitations, or exclusions except where policy provisions are established by law or regulations binding upon either of the parties hereto or the underwriter on any such policies.
- ix. The City reserves the right to review the insurance requirements set forth during the effective period of the Contract and to make reasonable adjustments to insurance coverage, limits, and exclusions when deemed necessary and prudent by the City based upon changes in statutory law, court decisions, the claims history of the industry or financial condition of the insurance company as well as the Contractor.
- x. The Contractor shall not cause any insurance to be canceled nor permit any insurance to lapse during the term of the Contract or as required in the Contract.
- xi. The Contractor shall be responsible for premiums, deductibles and self-insured retentions, if any, stated in policies. Self-insured retentions shall be disclosed on the Certificate of Insurance.
- xii. The Contractor shall provide the City thirty (30) calendar days' written notice of erosion of the aggregate limits below occurrence limits for all applicable coverages indicated within the Contract.
- xiii. The insurance coverages specified in Section 0400, Supplemental Purchase Provisions, are required minimums and are not intended to limit the responsibility or liability of the Contractor.
- B. <u>Specific Coverage Requirements: Specific insurance requirements are contained in Section 0400, Supplemental Purchase Provisions</u>
- 33. <u>CLAIMS</u>: If any claim, demand, suit, or other action is asserted against the Contractor which arises under or concerns the Contract, or which could have a material adverse affect on the Contractor's ability to perform thereunder, the Contractor shall give written notice thereof to the City within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of notice by the Contractor. Such notice to the City shall state the date of notification of any such claim, demand, suit, or other action; the names and addresses of the claimant(s); the basis thereof; and the name of each person against whom such claim is being asserted. Such notice shall be delivered personally or by mail and shall be sent to the City and to the Austin City Attorney. Personal delivery to the City Attorney shall be to City Hall, 301 West 2nd Street, 4th Floor, Austin, Texas 78701, and mail delivery shall be to P.O. Box 1088, Austin, Texas 78767.
- 34. NOTICES: Unless otherwise specified, all notices, requests, or other communications required or appropriate to be given under the Contract shall be in writing and shall be deemed delivered three (3) business days after postmarked if sent by U.S. Postal Service Certified or Registered Mail, Return Receipt Requested. Notices delivered by other means shall be deemed delivered upon receipt by the addressee. Routine communications may be made by first class mail, facsimile, email, or other commercially accepted means. Notices to the Contractor shall be sent to the address specified in the Contractor's Offer, or at such other address as a party may notify the other in writing. Notices to the City shall be addressed to the City at P.O. Box 1088, Austin, Texas 78767 and marked to the attention of the Contract Administrator.
- 35. RIGHTS TO BID, PROPOSAL AND CONTRACTUAL MATERIAL: All material submitted by the Contractor to the City shall become property of the City upon receipt. Any portions of such material claimed by the Contractor to be proprietary must be clearly marked as such. Determination of the public nature of the material is subject to the Texas Public Information Act, Chapter 552, Texas Government Code.
- 36. **NO WARRANTY BY CITY AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS:** The Contractor represents and warrants to the City that:
 (i) the Contractor shall provide the City good and indefeasible title to the Deliverables and (ii) the Deliverables supplied by the Contractor in accordance with the specifications in the Contract will not infringe, directly or contributorily, any patent, trademark, copyright, trade secret, or any other intellectual property right of any kind of any third party; that no claims have been made by any person or entity with respect to the ownership or operation of the

Deliverables and the Contractor does not know of any valid basis for any such claims. The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, defend, indemnify, and hold the City harmless from and against all liability, damages, and costs (including court costs and reasonable fees of attorneys and other professionals) arising out of or resulting from: (i) any claim that the City's exercise anywhere in the world of the rights associated with the City's' ownership, and if applicable, license rights, and its use of the Deliverables infringes the intellectual property rights of any third party; or (ii) the Contractor's breach of any of Contractor's representations or warranties stated in this Contract. In the event of any such claim, the City shall have the right to monitor such claim or at its option engage its own separate counsel to act as co-counsel on the City's behalf. Further, Contractor agrees that the City's specifications regarding the Deliverables shall in no way diminish Contractor's warranties or obligations under this paragraph and the City makes no warranty that the production, development, or delivery of such Deliverables will not impact such warranties of Contractor.

- 37. **CONFIDENTIALITY:** In order to provide the Deliverables to the City, Contractor may require access to certain of the City's and/or its licensors' confidential information (including inventions, employee information, trade secrets, confidential know-how, confidential business information, and other information which the City or its licensors consider confidential) (collectively, "Confidential Information"). Contractor acknowledges and agrees that the Confidential Information is the valuable property of the City and/or its licensors and any unauthorized use, disclosure, dissemination, or other release of the Confidential Information will substantially injure the City and/or its licensors. The Contractor (including its employees, subcontractors, agents, or representatives) agrees that it will maintain the Confidential Information in strict confidence and shall not disclose, disseminate, copy, divulge, recreate, or otherwise use the Confidential Information without the prior written consent of the City or in a manner not expressly permitted under this Agreement, unless the Confidential Information is required to be disclosed by law or an order of any court or other governmental authority with proper jurisdiction, provided the Contractor promptly notifies the City before disclosing such information so as to permit the City reasonable time to seek an appropriate protective order. The Contractor agrees to use protective measures no less stringent than the Contractor uses within its own business to protect its own most valuable information, which protective measures shall under all circumstances be at least reasonable measures to ensure the continued confidentiality of the Confidential Information,
- 38. <u>PUBLICATIONS</u>: All published material and written reports submitted under the Contract must be originally developed material unless otherwise specifically provided in the Contract. When material not originally developed is included in a report in any form, the source shall be identified.
- 39. **ADVERTISING:** The Contractor shall not advertise or publish, without the City's prior consent, the fact that the City has entered into the Contract, except to the extent required by law.
- 40. NO CONTINGENT FEES: The Contractor warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure the Contract upon any agreement or understanding for commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Contractor for the purpose of securing business. For breach or violation of this warranty, the City shall have the right, in addition to any other remedy available, to cancel the Contract without liability and to deduct from any amounts owed to the Contractor, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee.
- 41. **GRATUITIES:** The City may, by written notice to the Contractor, cancel the Contract without liability if it is determined by the City that gratuities were offered or given by the Contractor or any agent or representative of the Contractor to any officer or employee of the City of Austin with a view toward securing the Contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending or the making of any determinations with respect to the performing of such contract. In the event the Contract is canceled by the City pursuant to this provision, the City shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold the amount of the cost incurred by the Contractor in providing such gratuities.
- 42. PROHIBITION AGAINST PERSONAL INTEREST IN CONTRACTS: No officer, employee, independent consultant, or elected official of the City who is involved in the development, evaluation, or decision-making process of the performance of any solicitation shall have a financial interest, direct or indirect, in the Contract resulting from that solicitation. Any willful violation of this section shall constitute impropriety in office, and any officer or employee guilty

thereof shall be subject to disciplinary action up to and including dismissal. Any violation of this provision, with the knowledge, expressed or implied, of the Contractor shall render the Contract voidable by the City.

- 43. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The Contract shall not be construed as creating an employer/employee relationship, a partnership, or a joint venture. The Contractor's services shall be those of an independent contractor. The Contractor agrees and understands that the Contract does not grant any rights or privileges established for employees of the City.
- 44. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION: The Contract shall be binding upon and enure to the benefit of the City and the Contractor and their respective successors and assigns, provided however, that no right or interest in the Contract shall be assigned and no obligation shall be delegated by the Contractor without the prior written consent of the City. Any attempted assignment or delegation by the Contractor shall be void unless made in conformity with this paragraph. The Contract is not intended to confer rights or benefits on any person, firm or entity not a party hereto; it being the intention of the parties that there be no third party beneficiaries to the Contract.
- 45. WAIVER: No claim or right arising out of a breach of the Contract can be discharged in whole or in part by a waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by consideration and is in writing signed by the aggrieved party. No waiver by either the Contractor or the City of any one or more events of default by the other party shall operate as, or be construed to be, a permanent waiver of any rights or obligations under the Contract, or an express or implied acceptance of any other existing or future default or defaults, whether of a similar or different character.
- 46. MODIFICATIONS: The Contract can be modified or amended only by a writing signed by both parties. No preprinted or similar terms on any the Contractor invoice, order or other document shall have any force or effect to change the terms, covenants, and conditions of the Contract.
- 47. INTERPRETATION: The Contract is intended by the parties as a final, complete and exclusive statement of the terms of their agreement. No course of prior dealing between the parties or course of performance or usage of the trade shall be relevant to supplement or explain any term used in the Contract. Although the Contract may have been substantially drafted by one party, it is the intent of the parties that all provisions be construed in a manner to be fair to both parties, reading no provisions more strictly against one party or the other. Whenever a term defined by the Uniform Commercial Code, as enacted by the State of Texas, is used in the Contract, the UCC definition shall control, unless otherwise defined in the Contract.

48. **DISPUTE RESOLUTION:**

- A. If a dispute arises out of or relates to the Contract, or the breach thereof, the parties agree to negotiate prior to prosecuting a suit for damages. However, this section does not prohibit the filing of a lawsuit to toll the running of a statute of limitations or to seek injunctive relief. Either party may make a written request for a meeting between representatives of each party within fourteen (14) calendar days after receipt of the request or such later period as agreed by the parties. Each party shall include, at a minimum, one (1) senior level individual with decision-making authority regarding the dispute. The purpose of this and any subsequent meeting is to attempt in good faith to negotiate a resolution of the dispute. If, within thirty (30) calendar days after such meeting, the parties have not succeeded in negotiating a resolution of the dispute, they will proceed directly to mediation as described below. Negotiation may be waived by a written agreement signed by both parties, in which event the parties may proceed directly to mediation as described below.
- B. If the efforts to resolve the dispute through negotiation fail, or the parties waive the negotiation process, the parties may select, within thirty (30) calendar days, a mediator trained in mediation skills to assist with resolution of the dispute. Should they choose this option, the City and the Contractor agree to act in good faith in the selection of the mediator and to give consideration to qualified individuals nominated to act as mediator. Nothing in the Contract prevents the parties from relying on the skills of a person who is trained in the subject matter of the dispute or a contract interpretation expert. If the parties fail to agree on a mediator within thirty (30) calendar days of initiation of the mediation process, the mediator shall be selected by the Travis County Dispute Resolution Center (DRC). The parties agree to participate in mediation in good faith for up to thirty (30) calendar days from the date of the first mediation session. The City and the Contractor will share the

mediator's fees equally and the parties will bear their own costs of participation such as fees for any consultants or attorneys they may utilize to represent them or otherwise assist them in the mediation.

- 49. <u>JURISDICTION AND VENUE</u>: The Contract is made under and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas, including, when applicable, the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in Texas, V.T.C.A., Bus. & Comm. Code, Chapter 1, excluding any rule or principle that would refer to and apply the substantive law of another state or jurisdiction. All issues arising from this Contract shall be resolved in the courts of Travis County, Texas and the parties agree to submit to the exclusive personal jurisdiction of such courts. The foregoing, however, shall not be construed or interpreted to limit or restrict the right or ability of the City to seek and secure injunctive relief from any competent authority as contemplated herein.
- 50. **INVALIDITY:** The invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability of any provision of the Contract shall in no way affect the validity or enforceability of any other portion or provision of the Contract. Any void provision shall be deemed severed from the Contract and the balance of the Contract shall be construed and enforced as if the Contract did not contain the particular portion or provision held to be void. The parties further agree to reform the Contract to replace any stricken provision with a valid provision that comes as close as possible to the intent of the stricken provision. The provisions of this section shall not prevent this entire Contract from being void should a provision which is the essence of the Contract be determined to be void.
- 51. **HOLIDAYS:** The following holidays are observed by the City:

Holiday	Date Observed
New Year's Day	January 1
Martin Luther King, Jr.'s Birthday	Third Monday in January
President's Day	Third Monday in February
Memorial Day	Last Monday in May
Independence Day	July 4
Labor Day	First Monday in September
Veteran's Day	November 11
Thanksgiving Day	Fourth Thursday in November
Friday after Thanksgiving	Friday after Thanksgiving
Christmas Eve	December 24
Christmas Day	December 25

If a Legal Holiday falls on Saturday, it will be observed on the preceding Friday. If a Legal Holiday falls on Sunday, it will be observed on the following Monday.

- 52. **SURVIVABILITY OF OBLIGATIONS**: All provisions of the Contract that impose continuing obligations on the parties, including but not limited to the warranty, indemnity, and confidentiality obligations of the parties, shall survive the expiration or termination of the Contract.
- 53. NON-SUSPENSION OR DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION: The City of Austin is prohibited from contracting with or making prime or sub-awards to parties that are suspended or debarred or whose principals are suspended or debarred from Federal, State, or City of Austin Contracts. By accepting a Contract with the City, the Vendor certifies that its firm and its principals are not currently suspended or debarred from doing business with the Federal Government, as indicated by the General Services Administration List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement and Non-Procurement Programs, the State of Texas, or the City of Austin.

54. **EQUAL OPPORTUNITY**

- A. <u>Equal Employment Opportunity</u>: No Offeror, or Offeror's agent, shall engage in any discriminatory employment practice as defined in Chapter 5-4 of the City Code. No Offer submitted to the City shall be considered, nor any Purchase Order issued, or any Contract awarded by the City unless the Offeror has executed and filed with the City Purchasing Office a current Non-Discrimination Certification. Non-compliance with Chapter 5-4 of the City Code may result in sanctions, including termination of the contract and the Contractor's suspension or debarment from participation on future City contracts until deemed compliant with Chapter 5-4.
- B. <u>Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Compliance</u>: No Offeror, or Offeror's agent, shall engage in any discriminatory employment practice against individuals with disabilities as defined in the ADA.

55. BUY AMERICAN ACT-SUPPLIES (Applicable to certain Federally funded requirements)

- A. Definitions. As used in this paragraph
 - i. "Component" means an article, material, or supply incorporated directly into an end product.
 - ii. "Cost of components" means -
 - (1) For components purchased by the Contractor, the acquisition cost, including transportation costs to the place of incorporation into the end product (whether or not such costs are paid to a domestic firm), and any applicable duty (whether or not a duty-free entry certificate is issued); or
 - (2) For components manufactured by the Contractor, all costs associated with the manufacture of the component, including transportation costs as described in paragraph (1) of this definition, plus allocable overhead costs, but excluding profit. Cost of components does not include any costs associated with the manufacture of the end product.
 - iii. "Domestic end product" means-
 - (1) An unmanufactured end product mined or produced in the United States; or
 - (2) An end product manufactured in the United States, if the cost of its components mined, produced, or manufactured in the United States exceeds 50 percent of the cost of all its components. Components of foreign origin of the same class or kind as those that the agency determines are not mined, produced, or manufactured in sufficient and reasonably available commercial quantities of a satisfactory quality are treated as domestic. Scrap generated, collected, and prepared for processing in the United States is considered domestic.
 - iv. "End product" means those articles, materials, and supplies to be acquired under the contract for public use.
 - v. "Foreign end product" means an end product other than a domestic end product.
 - vi. "United States" means the 50 States, the District of Columbia, and outlying areas.
- B. The Buy American Act (41 U.S.C. 10a 10d) provides a preference for domestic end products for supplies acquired for use in the United States.
- C. The City does not maintain a list of foreign articles that will be treated as domestic for this Contract; but will consider for approval foreign articles as domestic for this product if the articles are on a list approved by another Governmental Agency. The Offeror shall submit documentation with their Offer demonstrating that the article is on an approved Governmental list.
- D. The Contractor shall deliver only domestic end products except to the extent that it specified delivery of foreign end products in the provision of the Solicitation entitled "Buy American Act Certificate".

The following Supplemental Purchasing Provisions apply to this solicitation:

1. **EXPLANATIONS OR CLARIFICATIONS**: (reference paragraph 5 in Section 0200)

All requests for explanations or clarifications must be submitted in writing to the Purchasing Office by 1:00PM, on Friday, October 25, 2013. Please send to Jonathan Dalchau by email jonathan.dalchau@austintexas.gov or fax: 512-9724-2388.

- 2. **INSURANCE:** Insurance is required for this solicitation.
 - A. <u>General Requirements</u>: See Section 0300, Standard Purchase Terms and Conditions, paragraph 32, entitled Insurance, for general insurance requirements.
 - i. The Contractor shall provide a Certificate of Insurance as verification of coverages required below to the City at the below address prior to contract execution and within 14 calendar days after written request from the City. Failure to provide the required Certificate of Insurance may subject the Offer to disqualification from consideration for award
 - ii. The Contractor shall not commence work until the required insurance is obtained and until such insurance has been reviewed by the City. Approval of insurance by the City shall not relieve or decrease the liability of the Contractor hereunder and shall not be construed to be a limitation of liability on the part of the Contractor.
 - iii. The Contractor must also forward a Certificate of Insurance to the City whenever a previously identified policy period has expired, or an extension option or holdover period is exercised, as verification of continuing coverage.
 - iv. The Certificate of Insurance, and updates, shall be mailed to the following address:

City of Austin Purchasing Office P. O. Box 1088 Austin, Texas 78767

- B. <u>Specific Coverage Requirements</u>: The Contractor shall at a minimum carry insurance in the types and amounts indicated below for the duration of the Contract, including extension options and hold over periods, and during any warranty period. These insurance coverages are required minimums and are not intended to limit the responsibility or liability of the Contractor.
 - i. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability Insurance: Coverage shall be consistent with statutory benefits outlined in the Texas Worker's Compensation Act (Section 401). The minimum policy limits for Employer's Liability are \$100,000 bodily injury each accident, \$500,000 bodily injury by disease policy limit and \$100,000 bodily injury by disease each employee.
 - (1) The Contractor's policy shall apply to the State of Texas and include these endorsements in favor of the City of Austin:
 - (a) Waiver of Subrogation, Form WC420304, or equivalent coverage
 - (b) Thirty (30) days Notice of Cancellation, Form WC420601, or equivalent coverage
 - ii. <u>Commercial General Liability Insurance</u>: The minimum bodily injury and property damage per occurrence are \$500,000 for coverages A (Bodily Injury and Property Damage) and B (Personal and Advertising Injury).
 - (1) The policy shall contain the following provisions:
 - (a) Contractual liability coverage for liability assumed under the Contract and all other Contracts related to the project.
 - (b) Contractor/Subcontracted Work.

- (c) Products/Completed Operations Liability for the duration of the warranty period.
- (d) If the project involves digging or drilling provisions must be included that provide Explosion, Collapse, and/or Underground Coverage.
- (2) The policy shall also include these endorsements in favor of the City of Austin:
 - (a) Waiver of Subrogation, Endorsement CG 2404, or equivalent coverage
 - (b) Thirty (30) days Notice of Cancellation, Endorsement CG 0205, or equivalent coverage
 - (c) The City of Austin listed as an additional insured, Endorsement CG 2010, or equivalent coverage
- iii. <u>Business Automobile Liability Insurance</u>: The Contractor shall provide coverage for all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles with a minimum combined single limit of \$500,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage. Alternate acceptable limits are \$250,000 bodily injury per person, \$500,000 bodily injury per occurrence and at least \$100,000 property damage liability per accident.
 - (1) The policy shall include these endorsements in favor of the City of Austin:
 - (a) Waiver of Subrogation, Endorsement CA0444, or equivalent coverage
 - (b) Thirty (30) days Notice of Cancellation, Endorsement CA0244, or equivalent coverage
 - (c) The City of Austin listed as an additional insured, Endorsement CA2048, or equivalent coverage.
- C. <u>Endorsements</u>: The specific insurance coverage endorsements specified above, or their equivalents must be provided. In the event that endorsements, which are the equivalent of the required coverage, are proposed to be substituted for the required coverage, copies of the equivalent endorsements must be provided for the City's review and approval.

Note: If shipment is made by common carrier, then the requirements for Workers Compensation Employee Liability and Business Automobile Liability Insurance are not required. The Contractor must provide a written statement if a common carrier will be used to deliver parts.

3. <u>TERM OF CONTRACT</u>:

- A. The Contract shall be in effect for an initial term of thirty-six (36) months and may be extended thereafter for up to three (3) additional 12-month periods, subject to the approval of the Contractor and the City Purchasing Officer or his designee.
- B. Upon expiration of the initial term or period of extension, the Contractor agrees to hold over under the terms and conditions of this agreement for such a period of time as is reasonably necessary to resolicit and/or complete the project (not to exceed 120 days unless mutually agreed on in writing).
- C. Upon written notice to the Contractor from the City's Purchasing Officer or his designee and acceptance of the Contractor, the term of this contract shall be extended on the same terms and conditions for an additional period as indicated in paragraph A above.
- D. Prices are firm and fixed for the first twelve (12) months. Thereafter, price changes are subject to the Economic Price Adjustment provisions of this Contract.
- 4. **QUANTITIES:** The quantities listed herein are estimates for the period of the Contract. The City reserves the right to purchase more or less of these quantities as may be required during the Contract term. Quantities will be as needed and specified by the City for each order. Unless specified in the solicitation, there are no minimum order quantities.

5. DI	ELI	/ERY	REQU	JIR	EMEN	ITS:
-------	-----	------	------	-----	------	------

Location:	Days:
City of Austin - Department of Aviation	Monday – Friday
Austin Bergstrom International Airport	8:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m.
9400A Freight Lane	
Austin, TX 78719	

- A. Delivery is to be made within fourteen (14) calendar days after the order is placed (either verbally or in writing). All orders must be shipped complete unless arrangements for partial shipments are made in advance.
- B. The Contractor shall provide, with each delivery, a Shipping or Delivery Ticket showing the description of each item, quantity, and unit price.
- C. The Contractor shall confirm the quantity to be shipped on all orders within two (2) hours of notification by phone from the City.
- D. Unless requested by the City, deliveries shall not be made on City-recognized legal holidays (see paragraph 51 in Section 0300).
- 6. **INVOICES and PAYMENT:** (reference paragraphs 12 and 13 in Section 0300)
 - A. Invoices shall contain a unique invoice number and the information required in Section 0300, paragraph 12, entitled "Invoices." Invoices received without all required information cannot be processed and will be returned to the vendor.

Invoices shall be mailed to the below address:

	City of Austin
Department	Aviation
Attn:	Accounts Payable
Address	3600 Presidential Blvd., Suite 411
City, State Zip Code	Austin, TX 78719

B. The Contractor agrees to accept payment by either credit card, check or Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) for all goods and/or services provided under the Contract. The Contractor shall factor the cost of processing credit card payments into the Offer. There shall be no additional charges, surcharges, or penalties to the City for payments made by credit card.

7. VERIFICATION OF CONTRACTOR'S PARTS PRICING

- A. Aviation Services Parts Room, Contract Compliance and/or Accounts Payable personnel will review invoices to determine the accuracy of charges invoiced. The review will be performed using the price list in effect at the time of contract award, revisions approved by the City, and the percentage mark up as indicated on the bid sheet.
- B. If pricing is found to be different, the Contractor shall reimburse the City for the amount overcharged within thirty (30) calendar days after written notification from the Contract Manager.

8. RESTOCKING FEES:

- A. The Contractor may bill the City restocking fees (if included in their Offer) for parts that are ordered by the City under the contract and returned for refund. The Contractor is not obligated to accept for refund any part that is not resalable and/or not in the same condition as when purchased.
- B. Restocking fees may be charged to the City when multiple parts or groups of parts are returned for refund at one time due to the City inventory warehouse cleaning, unless these parts are returned at an annual pre-arranged date. The date for the annual return shall be mutually agreed upon between the City and the Contractor.

9. <u>MATERIALS SPECIFICATIONS/DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE</u>:

- A. If a solicitation refers to a Qualified Products List (QPL), Standard Products List (SPL) or a manufacturer's name and product, any Offeror offering products not referenced in the solicitation must submit as part of their Offer materials specifications/descriptive literature for the non-referenced product. Materials specifications/descriptive literature must be identified to show the item(s) in the Offer to which it applies.
- B. Materials specifications/descriptive literature are defined as product manufacturer's catalog pages, "cut sheets" applicable tests results, or related detailed documents that specify material construction, performance parameters, and any industrial standards that are applicable such as ANSI, ASTM, ASME, SAE, NFPA, NBS, EIA, ESL, and NSA. The submitted materials specifications/descriptive literature must include the manufacturer's name and product number of the product being offered.
- C. The failure of the materials specifications/descriptive literature to show that the product offered conforms to the requirements of the Solicitation shall result in rejection of the Offer.
- D. Failure to submit the materials specifications/descriptive literature as part of the Offer may subject the Offer to disqualification from consideration for award.

10. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS:

- A. If this Solicitation involves hazardous materials, the Offeror shall furnish with the Offer Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS), (OSHA Form 20), on all chemicals and hazardous materials specifying the generic and trade name of product, product specification, and full hazard information including receiving and storage hazards. Instructions, special equipment needed for handling, information on approved containers, and instructions for the disposal of the material are also required.
- B. Failure to submit the MSDS as part of the Offer may subject the Offer to disqualification from consideration for award.
- C. The MSDS, instructions and information required in paragraph "A" must be included with each shipment under the contract.

11. RECYCLED PRODUCTS:

- A. The City prefers that Offerors offer products that contain recycled materials. When a recycled product is offered by the Offeror, the Offeror must state in their Offer the percentage of the product that is recycled and must include a list of the recycled materials that are contained in the product.
- B. The recycled content of paper products offered to the City shall be in accordance with the Federal Environmental Protection Agency's Recycled Product Procurement Guidelines. These guidelines are available at http://www.epa.gov/cpg/.

C. Contract award for paper products will be made for recycled products unless the cost is more than 10% above the lowest price for non-recycled paper products as required in the City's Comprehensive Recycling Resolution.

12. PUBLISHED PRICE LISTS:

- A. Offerors may quote using published price lists in the following ways:
 - i. Offerors may quote one discount from a Published Price List for all offered items to be covered in the Contract. The discount must remain firm during the life of the Contract.
 - ii. Offerors may quote their dealer cost, plus a percentage markup to be added to the cost. The percentage markup must remain firm during the life of the contract.
- B. Two (2) copies of the list upon which the discounts or markups are based shall be submitted with the Offer. All price lists identified in the Offer shall clearly include the Offeror's name and address, the solicitation number, prices, title of the discount and number, and the latest effective date of the price list. If the Offer is based on a discount or markup on a manufacturer's price list, the price list must also include the manufacturer's name, the manufacturer's latest effective date, and the manufacturer's price schedule. All price lists submitted become part of the Offer.
- C. The price list may be superseded or replaced during the Contract term only if price revisions are the result of the manufacturer's official price list revision. Written notification from the Contractor of price changes, along with two (2) copies of the revised list must be submitted to the Buyer in the Purchasing Office with the effective date of change to be at least thirty (30) calendar days after written notification. The City reserves the right to refuse any list revision.
- D. The discounts or markups on equipment rental, material, supplies, parts, and contract services shall be fixed throughout the term of the Contract, and are not subject to increase.
- E. Failure to submit written notification of price list revisions will result in the rejection of new prices being invoiced. The City will only pay invoices according to the last approved price list.
- 13. MONTHLY SUBCONTRACT AWARDS AND EXPENDITURES REPORT: (reference paragraph 18 in Section 0300) (applicable when an MBE/WBE Compliance Plan is required)
 - A. The Contractor must submit a monthly Subcontract Awards and Expenditures Report to the Contract Manager specified herein and to the Purchasing Office Contract Compliance Manager no later than the tenth calendar day of each month.
 - B. Mail the Purchasing Office Copy of the report to the following address:

City of Austin Purchasing Office Attn: Contract Compliance Manager P. O. Box 1088 Austin, Texas 78767

14. ECONOMIC PRICE ADJUSTMENT:

A. <u>Price Adjustments</u>: Prices shown in this Contract shall remain firm for the first twelve (12) months of the Contract. After that, in recognition of the potential for fluctuation of the Contractor's cost, a price adjustment (increase or decrease) may be requested by either the City or the Contractor on the anniversary date of the Contract or as may otherwise be specified herein. The percentage change between the contract price and the requested price shall not exceed the percentage change between

the specified index in effect on the date the solicitation closed and the most recent, non-preliminary data at the time the price adjustment is requested. The requested price adjustment shall not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) for any single line item and in no event shall the total amount of the contract be automatically adjusted as a result of the change in one or more line items made pursuant to this provision. Prices for products or services unaffected by verifiable cost trends shall not be subject to adjustment.

- B. <u>Effective Date</u>: Approved price adjustments will go into effect on the first day of the upcoming renewal period or anniversary date of contract award and remain in effect until contract expiration unless changed by subsequent amendment.
- C. Adjustments: A request for price adjustment must be made in writing and submitted to the other Party prior to the yearly anniversary date of the Contract; adjustments may only be considered at that time unless otherwise specified herein. Requested adjustments must be solely for the purpose of accommodating changes in the Contractor's direct costs. Contractor shall provide an updated price listing once agreed to adjustment(s) have been approved by the parties.
- D. <u>Indexes:</u> In most cases an index from the Bureau of Labor Standards (BLS) will be utilized; however, if there is more appropriate, industry recognized standard then that index may be selected.
 - i. The following definitions apply:
 - (1) Base Period: Month and year of the original contracted price (the solicitation close date).
 - (2) Base Price: Initial price quoted, proposed and/or contracted per unit of measure.
 - (3) Adjusted Price: Base Price after it has been adjusted in accordance with the applicable index change and instructions provided.
 - (4) Change Factor: The multiplier utilized to adjust the Base Price to the Adjusted Price.
 - (5) Weight %: The percent of the Base Price subject to adjustment based on an index change.
 - ii. Adjustment-Request Review: Each adjustment-request received will be reviewed and compared to changes in the index(es) identified below. Where applicable:
 - (1) Utilize final Compilation data instead of Preliminary data
 - (2) If the referenced index is no longer available shift up to the next higher category index.

Weight % or \$ of Base Price: 100 %						
Database Name: Consumer Price Index -	- All Urban Consumers					
Series ID: CUUR0000SETC						
Not Seasonally Adjusted	Seasonally Adjusted					
Geographical Area: U.S. City Average						
Description of Series ID: Motor Vehicle P	arts and Equipment					
This Index shall apply to the following items of the Bid Sheet / Cost Proposal: All Parts						
Calculation: Price adjustment will be calculation: Adjust the Race Price butt						
Single Index: Adjust the Base Price by tr	he same factor calculated for the index change.					
Index at time of calculation						

E.

Divíded by index on solicitation close date
Equals Change Factor
Multiplied by the Base Rate
Equals the Adjusted Price

- F. If the requested adjustment is not supported by the referenced index, the City, as its sole discretion, may consider approving an adjustment on fully documented market increases.
- 15. <u>INTERLOCAL PURCHASING AGREEMENTS</u>: (applicable to competitively procured goods/services contracts).
 - A. The City has entered into Interlocal Purchasing Agreements with other governmental entities, pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code. The Contractor agrees to offer the same prices and terms and conditions to other eligible governmental agencies that have an interlocal agreement with the City.
 - B. The City does not accept any responsibility or liability for the purchases by other governmental agencies through an interlocal cooperative agreement.

16. CONTRACT MANAGER:

The following person is designated as Contract Manager, and will act as the contact point between the City and the Contractor during the term of the Contract:

Mike Robinson
512-530-7504
Mike.Robinson@austintexas.gov

The above listed Contract Manager is not the authorized Contact Person for purposes of the <u>NON-COLLUSION</u>, <u>NON-CONFLICT OF INTEREST</u>, <u>AND ANTI-LOBBYING Provision</u> of this Section; and therefore, contact with the Contract Manager is prohibited during the no contact period.

CITY OF AUSTIN PURCHASING STATEMENT OF WORK FOR OEM PARTS FOR SCARIFIERS AND PLANERS

1. PURPOSE

- 1.1 This Invitation for Bid (IFB) is to establish a Contract with a single authorized representative able to provide Original Equipment Manufacturer ("OEM") parts for City of Austin ("City") equipment. A Contract will be awarded to provide OEM parts for the scarifiers and skid steer planer attachments on an as-needed basis as stipulated in this solicitation.
- 1.2 The Contract will be utilized by the Aviation Services Department. The City reserves the right to allow other City Departments to utilize the Contract.
- 1.3 The City intends to solicit bids in response to this IFB-Best Value and reserves the right to compare those bids to established cooperative purchasing organization contracts operating within the State of Texas and authorized by the Austin City Council. Examples of City authorized cooperative purchasing organizations include, but are not limited to, the following: U.S. Communities, Houston-Galveston Area Council of Governments (HGAC), Texas Procurement and Support Services, Texas Local Government Purchasing Cooperative (BuyBoard), and The Cooperative Purchasing Network (TCPN).
- 1.4 It is the City's preference to award a single contract for the driveline components needs of Aviation Services; however, if the cooperative purchasing prices are lower than the bid prices received, the City reserves the right to reject all bids entirely and make multiple contract awards between a cooperative and the best-evaluated, responsive and responsible bidder. Award may be based on individual or groups of specific line items, cost, convenience, or any criteria deemed by the City to be most advantageous. The City also reserves the right to refrain from awarding any lines or group of specific line items as a result of this solicitation and, instead, award the entire contract to a supplier available through a cooperative purchasing agreement.
- 1.5 A Successful Bidder may be awarded either the entire contract, the majority of the contract, or select line items.

2. DEFINITIONS

- 2.1 Stock Parts are defined as high turnover parts that are most commonly needed by the City.
- 2.2 Non-Stock Parts are defined as low usage, high dollar parts that are not kept in inventory.
- 2.3. Back-ordered (or Out-of-Stock) Parts are defined as parts that are not currently in stock but have been ordered or will be ordered.
- 2.4. Aviation Service Center is a term used to designate any City facility where vehicles and equipment are repaired or serviced.
- 2.5. Repairs means to return or restore a broken, damaged, or failed part, vehicle, or piece of equipment to an acceptable operating or usable condition or state.

3. CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATIONS

- 3.1. The Contractor shall accept payment by credit card, check, or Electronic Funds Transfer ("EFT") for all parts and repair services provided under the Contract, as indicated in the Invoices and Payment Provision in Section 0400. The Contractor shall factor the cost of processing credit card payments into the Offer. There shall be no additional charges, surcharges, or penalties to the City for payments made by credit card.
- 3.2. The Contractor must have a facility with adequate warehouse space and equipped with supplies and equipment necessary to satisfy the requirements of the contract.

4. CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PARTS

CITY OF AUSTIN PURCHASING STATEMENT OF WORK FOR OEM PARTS FOR SCARIFIERS AND PLANERS

- 4.1. The Contractor shall stock or have immediate access to a parts inventory sufficient to fill stock orders 95% of the time. All parts will be ordered on an as-needed basis.
- 4.2. Within five (14) business days of Contract award, the Contractor shall submit to the Aviation Services Contract Manager specified in Section 0400 two (2) CDs or electronic copies, if available, of the price list(s) upon which the markups are based on the bid sheet. The City will accept a printed copy only if no electronic format is available.
- 4.3. If a price list is no longer available in hard copy or electronic format, the Contractor shall grant the City access to a company website or company-owned local computer to research parts pricing for verification purposes. If the Contractor is unable to provide a CD, electronic copies, access to a company website, or a hard copy of the price list with their Offer, the Contractor shall document by written invoice from the supplier the cost for all parts charged to the City. The cost documentation must be submitted with each invoice.
- 4.4. The Contractor shall provide new parts, except for core components on renewed assemblies. Parts must meet all applicable federal, state and local requirements for quality and safety. If new parts are not available, or if Aviation Services requests them in writing (e.g. email), remanufactured or rebuilt parts may be used. Used, factory seconds, remanufactured, shopwom, demonstrator, prototype, and discontinued parts or materials are not acceptable.
- 4.5. The Contractor shall provide OEM parts. If OEM parts are not available, any parts that are not OEM shall be approved by the Aviation Service Center Manager or designee in writing (e.g., email), and shall be equivalent to or better than the manufacturer's parts originally installed on the respective unit.
- 4.6. The Contractor warrants that ALL parts are free from manufacturer defects in material and workmanship for a minimum of twelve (12) months or for the standard period as provided by the manufacturer, whichever is for the greatest length of time. This warranty shall provide for replacement parts and shall include pickup of the defective part and delivery of the replacement part at no additional cost.
- 4.7. The Contractor further warrants that the parts supplied under this Contract will not void existing vehicle/equipment or manufacturer's warranties.
- 4.8. The Contractor shall notify the Contract Manager and the Aviation Service Center Manager or designee of recall notices, warranty replacements, safety notices, or any applicable notice regarding the parts being sold. Failure to report this within fifteen (15) calendar days after receipt of notice may result in cancellation of the contract.
- 4.9. The Contractor shall provide a point of contact for receiving orders from the City. A City representative from the Aviation Service Center will contact the Contractor by e-mail, fax, or telephone to place an order for parts. The request will include the part number, part description, delivery requirements, and a unique delivery order number.
- 4.10. The Contractor shall confirm the quantity to be shipped to the ordering Aviation Service Center representative by telephone or email within two (2) hours after the order is sent.
- 4.11. The Contractor shall ship all orders for parts complete unless arrangements for partial shipments are made in advance. The Contractor shall provide, with each delivery, an invoice showing the description of each item, quantity, and unit price.
- 4.12. The Contractor shall provide, upon request, a monthly and/or yearly total of all parts purchased by Aviation Services. The City prefers that the report be in an electronic format that may be sorted, or other City-approved format. The report shall include date purchased, invoice number, part description, price per part, and the total dollar amount for all parts purchased.

BID SHEET CITY OF AUSTIN ("CITY") - AVIATION SERVICES PARTS FOR SCARIFIERS AND PLANERS

Selicitation No.: IFB JRD0003

Special Instructions:

A bid of '0' (zero) will be interpreted by the City as a No-Charge (Free) item and the City will not expect to pay for that item. A bid of 'No Bid' will be interpreted by the City that the Responder does not wish to bid on that item.

The City reserves the right to award to one or more bidders, by line item based on value.

The quantities noted below are annual estimates and not a guarantee of actual volume. The City does not guarantee the purchase of the quantities listed. Quantities are provided as a guide to historical usage. Actual purchases may vary.

Failure to respond to each section of this bid sheet may result in disqualification of your bid.

SECTION 1 -- MOST FREQUENTLY ORDERED ITEMS

The quantities noted below are annual estimates and not a guarantee of actual volume. The City does not guarantee the purchase of the quantities listed. Quantities are provided as a guide to historical usage. Actual purchases may be more or less.

#	CITY PART NUMBER	DESCRIPTION	VENDOR PART NUMBER	INDICATE MANUFACTURER OFFERED*	% MARK-UP OR DISCOUNT	UNIT PRICE TO CITY	UNIT	ESTIMATED ANNUAL QUANTITY	EXTENDED PRICE
1	HON.2026227	MUFFLER DEFLECTOR (SC8E)	HON.2026227	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$14.97	EA	1	\$14.97
2	SC.08.115	UPPER TOOTHED PULLEY FR200 (SC8E)	SC.08.115	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$125.64	EA	1	\$125.64
3	795.00.76	MOUNTING EMERGENCY STOP BRACKET (SC8E)	795.00.76	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$17.58	EA	2	\$35.16
4	795.00.19	EMERGENCY STOP SWITCH TETHER w/ CORD (SC8E)	795.00.19	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$25.24	EA	2	\$50.48
5	AIW.16X2CRD	POWER CORD 16/2 (SC8E)	AIW.16X2CRD	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$2.60	EA	2	\$5.20
6	SC.08.119	TOOTHED 640 BELT (SC8E)	SC.08.119	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$104.58	EA	3	\$313.74
7	SC.08.203	LOWER TOOTHED PULLEY (SC8E)	SC.08.203	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$178.21	EA	4	\$712.84
8	NB.20.112	SHAFT NUT (SC8E)	NB.20.112	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$12.30	EA	5	\$61.50
9	SC.08.602	FLANGE BEARING (SC8E)	SC.08.602	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$118.47	EA	4	\$473.88
10	SC.08.604	ENDPLATE BEARING (SC8E)	SC.08.604	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$58.12	EA	2	\$116.24
11	SC.08.605	DRIVE BUSHING (SC8E)	SC.08.605	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$95.70	EA	3	\$287.10
12	SC.08.500	COMPLETE DRUM (SC8E)	SC.08.500	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$371.79	EA	5	\$1,858.95
13	SC.08.510	12MM FLAIL SHAFT (SC8E)	SC.08.510	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$11.54	EA	20	\$230.80
14	SC.08.401	HEXAGONAL DRIVE SHAFT (SC8E)	SC.08.401	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$141.03	EA	2	\$282.06
15	SC.10.000	BLACK SC10E CHASSIS w/ DRUM (SC10E)	SC.10,000	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$2,179.49	EA	1	\$2,179.49
16	VAC.8A02261	2 INCH INLET BULL CAP 100 (SC10E)	VAC.8A02261	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$4.35	EA	3	\$13.05
17	VAC.HS2.00TR7	VACUUM HOSE (SC10E)	VAC.HS2.00TR7	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$5.18	EA	3	\$15.54
18	SC.10.117	TOOTHED 840 BELT (SC10E)	SC.10.117	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$108.82	EA	5	\$544.10
19	SC.10.156	UPPER TOOTH PULLEY (SC10E)	SC.10.156	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$135.71	EA	3	\$407.13
20	SC.10.121	TENSIONING PULLEY (SC10E)	SC.10.121	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$199.59	EA	4	\$798.36
21	SC.10.602	FLANGE BEARING (SC10E)	SC.10.602	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$249.99	EA	4	\$999.96
22	SC.10.604	ENDPLATE BEARING (SC10E)	SC.10.604	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$75.88	EA	2	\$151.76
23	SC.10.401	HEXAGONAL DRIVE SHAFT (SC10E)	SC.10.401	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$242.30	EA	2	\$484.60

24	SC.10.403	LOWER TOOTHED PULLEY (SC10E)	SC.10.403	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$216.66	EA	4	\$866.64
25	SC.10.510	FLAIL 9/16" SHAFT (SC10E)	SC.10.510	SASE	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$14.13	EA	24	\$339.12
26	7165544	609, 6 MM 24" WIDE SMOOTHCUT DRUM (Bobcat Planer)	7165544	BOBCAT	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$6,355.13	EA	2	\$12,710.26
27	6672259	STANDARD ALL PURPOSE BIT (Bobcat Planer)	6672259	BOBCAT	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$12.00	EA	150	\$1,800.00
28	6634443	BIT HOLDER (Bobcat Planer)	6634443	BOBCAT	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$20.87	EA	75	\$1,565.25
29	6815562	CYLINDER (Bobcat Planer)	6815562	BOBCAT	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$620.89	EA	2	\$1,241.78
30	6659946	STANDARD ALL PURPOSE BIT (Cat Planer)	222-7571	CATERPILLAR	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$10.79	EA	120	\$1,294.80
31	6676485	MAIN PUMP (Cat Planer)	226-9308	CATERPILLAR	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$12,978.12	EA	2	\$25,956.24
32		BIT HOLDER (Cat Planer)	224-7399	CATERPILLAR	20%+2% for freight = 22%	\$22.81	EA	60	\$1,368.60
							TOTAL 57,305.24		

SECTION 2 -- DEALER DISCOUNT OR MARKUP FOR NON-SPECIFIED ITEMS (FOR INFORMATION ONLY)

Bidder must be able to provide All other parts for a Scarifier and Planer.

FAILURE TO PROVIDE PRICING INFORMATION FOR THIS SECTION MAY RESULT IN DISQUALIFICATION OF YOUR BID.

Indicate below the Mark-Up from Dealer Cost OR Discount Off List Price the City will be charged for all Items not listed above in Section 2.

Include Price List name, number and date. If there is no price list, please indicate "no list" and provide your percentage discount or markup to your cost. If no price list is available, the Contractor must furnish with each invoice to the City, proof of Dealer Cost with a copy of invoice from supplier.

Indicate below the Manufacturer's Price List(s) offered in response to this solicitation. The City will use the Price List to purchase other items not listed in Section 1.

#	MANUFACTURER'S PRICE LIST*	DATE OF PRICE LIST**	NAME AND NUMBER OF PRICE LIST***	MARK-UP FROM DEALER COST or DISCOUNT OFF OF LIST PRICE	CHECK DISCOUNT OR MARKUP OFFERED TO CITY
33	NO LIST	NO LIST	WILL PROVIDE PROOF OF DEALER COST WITH INVOICES	20% + 2% Freight = 22% Total	☐ DISCOUNT X MARK UP
34	NO LIST	NO LIST	WILL PROVIDE PROOF OF DEALER COST WITH INVOICES	20% + 2% Freight = 22% Total	☐ DISCOUNT X MARK UP
35	NO LIST	NO LIST	WILL PROVIDE PROOF OF DEALER COST WITH INVOICES	20% + 2% Freight = 22% Total	☐ DISCOUNT X MARK UP

*	INDICATE	MANUFACTURER	OFFERED	FOR THIS I	TEM.

* DATE OF PRICE LIST - The effective date of the price list listed above shall be disclosed. This Bid will be based on the latest published price list. (Refer to Published Price List, Section 0400.)

* PRICE LIST NAME AND NUMBER - Offeror shall include the current price list Name and Number used for the pricing they included in the Bid.

Spellon

BIDDER MUST SUBMIT TWO (2) PRINTED COPIES OF ITS SIGNED BID - one original and one copy.

Two (2) CDs or electronic copies, if available, of the price list(s) upon which the markups are based shall be submitted within five (5) working days after notice of award. The City will accept a printed copy only if no electronic format is available.

ALL PAGES OF THE BID SHEET MUST BE RETURNED OR THE BID MAY BE DISQUALIFIED.

DIELIVERY TERMS: 15 DAYS ARO

FOB DESTINATION, FREIGHT PRE-PAID AND ALLOWED

DELIVERY METHOD: COMMON CARRIER ___X____ VENDOR STAFF ____

COMPANY NAME: GUARDIAN INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE:

PRINTED NAME: STEVE WILKES

EMAIL ADDRESS: STEVE@GUARDIAN-INDUSTRIAL.COM

City of Austin

Purchasing Office

Local Business Presence Identification Form

A firm (Offeror or Subcontractor) is considered to have a Local Business Presence if the firm is headquartered in the Austin Corporate City Limits, or has a branch office located in the Austin Corporate City Limits in operation for the last five (5) years. The City defines headquarters as the administrative center where most of the important functions and full responsibility for managing and coordinating the business activities of the firm are located. The City defines branch office as a smaller, remotely located office that is separate from a firm's headquarters that offers the services requested and required under this solicitation.

OFFEROR MUST SUBMIT THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FOR EACH LOCAL BUSINESS (INCLUDING THE OFFEROR, IF APPLICABLE).

NOTE: ALL FIRMS MUST BE IDENTIFIED ON THE MBE/WBE COMPLIANCE PLAN OR NO GOALS UTILIZATION PLAN.

USE ADDITIONAL PAGES AS NECESSARY

(circle one)	res		No				
In business at this location for past 5 yrs?	(Yes)		No	**************************************			
Location Type:	Headquarters Yes	X No		Branch	Yes 🗴	No	
SUBCONTRACTOR(S):	<i>(</i> a)	2.					
Name of Local Firm	Quality	6 Egf.	?				
Addres s	16336 N.	INSS	Au	stin,	TK. 1	8728	
Is Firm located in the Corporate City Limits? (circle one)	Yes		No				
In business at this location for past 5 yrs?	Yes		No				
Location Type:	Headquarters (Yes)	No		Branch	Yes	No	
		·····					

OFFEROR:

Address

Name of Local Firm

Is Firm located in the Corporate City Limits?

City of Austin

Purchasing Office

Local Business Presence Identification Form

SUBCONTRACTOR(S)	,	<i>j</i> .	_				
Name of Local Firm	40	LT CA	4 291	<i>F.</i>			
Address	16017	IH 35	Pllug	erville	78.	78660	
Is Firm located in the Corporate City Limits? (circle one)	Yes		No)	, ,		
In business at this location for past 5 yrs?	Yes		No				
Location Type:	Headquarters	Yes	(No)	Branch	Yes	No	
	AC	KNOWLED	<u>GEMENT</u>				
THE STATE OF TEXAS							
COUNTY OF TRAVIS							
						_	

I certify that my responses and the information provided on **Form 0605** are true and correct to the best of my personal knowledge and belief and that I have made no willful misrepresentations in this Section, nor have I withheld any relevant information in my statements and answers to questions. I am aware that any information given by me in this Section may be investigated and I hereby give my full permission for any such investigation and I fully acknowledge that any misrepresentations or omissions in my responses and information may cause my offer to be rejected.

OFFEROR'S FULL NAME AND ENTITY STATUS	:
Tenef Villa	Saces
Signature, Authorized Representative of Offeror	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••
SALES	
Title	
11-6-13	
Date	

END

City of Austin

Purchasing Office

Local Business Presence Identification Form

Name of Local Firm	He	AF/Co	at E	24-				
Address	1601	M 185	P	flu	egiville	, T	V	18600
Is Firm located in the Corporate City Limits? (circle one)	Yes			(No)				
In business at this location for past 5 yrs?	Yes			No				
Location Type:	Headquarters	Yes	No		Branch	Yes		No

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

THE STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF TRAVIS

I certify that my responses and the information provided on **Form 0605** are true and correct to the best of my personal knowledge and belief and that I have made no willful misrepresentations in this Section, nor have I withheld any relevant information in my statements and answers to questions. I am aware that any information given by me in this Section may be investigated and I hereby give my full permission for any such investigation and I fully acknowledge that any misrepresentations or omissions in my responses and information may cause my offer to be rejected.

OFFEROR'S FULL NAME AND ENTITY STATU	S:
Thene Willer	SALES
Signature, Authorized Representative of Offeror	
CALES	
Title	
11-6-13	
Date	
END	

CITY OF AUSTIN PURCHASING OFFICE REFERENCE SHEET

Please Complete and Return This Form with the Offer

Solicitation Number	: JRD0003	
Offeror's Name	GUARDIAN INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY	Date 11/01/2013
whom products and/		formation, for at least 3 recent customers to at are similar to those required by this Solicitation.
To add additional rele	Terices to this form, elect the Add her	Aug rescione
Company's Name	LEANDER INDEPENDENT SCHOOL	DISTRICT
Name of Contact	JOE WARREN	Contact Title MAINTENANCE LEAD
Present Address	1900 COUGAR COUNTRY	
City	LEANDER	State Texas Zip Code 78613
Telephone Number	(512) 570-0650	FAX Number
Email Address	JOEWARREN@LEANDERISD.ORG	
Company's Name	APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOG	IES
' '		
Name of Contact	SCOTT ASMANN	Contact Title CSSR
Name of Contact Present Address	SCOTT ASMANN 109 GATEWAY DR	Contact Title CSSR
		Contact Title CSSR State South Dakota Zip Code 57049
Present Address	109 GATEWAY DR	
Present Address City	109 GATEWAY DR NORTH SOUIX CITY	State South Dakota Zip Code 57049
Present Address City Telephone Number	109 GATEWAY DR NORTH SOUIX CITY (605) 232-8754	State South Dakota Zip Code 57049 FAX Number
Present Address City Telephone Number Email Address	109 GATEWAY DR NORTH SOUIX CITY (605) 232-8754 SASMANN@APPLIED.COM	State South Dakota Zip Code 57049 FAX Number
Present Address City Telephone Number Email Address Company's Name	109 GATEWAY DR NORTH SOUIX CITY (605) 232-8754 SASMANN@APPLIED.COM ROUND ROCK INDEPENDENT SCHOOL	State South Dakota Zip Code 57049 FAX Number OOL DISTRICT
Present Address City Telephone Number Email Address Company's Name Name of Contact	109 GATEWAY DR NORTH SOUIX CITY (605) 232-8754 SASMANN@APPLIED.COM ROUND ROCK INDEPENDENT SCHOOL MANUEL CASTILLO	State South Dakota Zip Code 57049 FAX Number OOL DISTRICT
Present Address City Telephone Number Email Address Company's Name Name of Contact Present Address	109 GATEWAY DR NORTH SOUIX CITY (605) 232-8754 SASMANN@APPLIED.COM ROUND ROCK INDEPENDENT SCHO MANUEL CASTILLO 1311 ROUND ROCK AVE	State South Dakota Zip Code 57049 FAX Number OOL DISTRICT Contact Title MAINTENANCE SUPERVISOR

City of Austin, Texas EQUAL EMPLOYMENT/FAIR HOUSING OFFICE NON-DISCRIMINATION CERTIFICATION

SOLICITATION NO	JRD0003	

City of Austin, Texas Human Rights Commission

To: City of Austin, Texas, ("OWNER")

I hereby certify that our firm conforms to the Code of the City of Austin, Section 5-4-2 as reiterated below:

Chapter 5-4. Discrimination in Employment by City Contractors.

Sec. 4-2 Discriminatory Employment Practices Prohibited. As an Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) employer, the Contractor will conduct its personnel activities in accordance with established federal, state and local EEO laws and regulations and agrees:

- (B) (1) Not to engage in any discriminatory employment practice defined in this chapter.
 - (2) To take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without discrimination being practiced against them as defined in this chapter. Such affirmative action shall include, but not be limited to: all aspects of employment, including hiring, placement, upgrading, transfer, demotion, recruitment, recruitment advertising; selection for training and apprenticeship, rates of pay or other form of compensation, and layoff or termination.
 - (3) To post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by OWNER setting forth the provisions of this chapter.
 - (4) To state in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, creed, color, religion, national origin, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, veteran status, sex or age.
 - (5) To obtain a written statement from any labor union or labor organization furnishing labor or service to Contractors in which said union or organization has agreed not to engage in any discriminatory employment practices as defined in this chapter and to take affirmative action to implement policies and provisions of this chapter.
 - (6) To cooperate fully with OWNER's Human Rights Commission in connection with any investigation or conciliation effort of said Human Rights Commission to ensure that the purpose of the provisions against discriminatory employment practices are being carried out.
 - (7) To require compliance with provisions of this chapter by all subcontractors having fifteen or more employees who hold any subcontract providing for the expenditure of \$2,000 or more in connection with any contract with OWNER subject to the terms of this chapter.

For the purposes of this Offer and any resulting Contract, Contractor adopts the provisions of the City's Minimum Standard Nondiscrimination Policy set forth below.

City of Austin Minimum Standard Non-Discrimination in Employment Policy:

As an Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) employer, the Contractor will conduct its personnel activities in accordance with established federal, state and local EEO laws and regulations.

The Contractor will not discriminate against any applicant or employee based on race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, religion, veteran status, gender identity, disability, or sexual orientation. This policy covers all aspects of employment, including hiring, placement, upgrading, transfer, demotion, recruitment, recruitment advertising, selection for training and apprenticeship, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and layoff or termination.

Further, employees who experience discrimination, sexual harassment, or another form of harassment should immediately report it to their supervisor. If this is not a suitable avenue for addressing their complaint, employees are advised to contact another member of management or their human resources representative. No employee shall be discriminated against, harassed, intimidated, nor suffer any reprisal as a result of reporting a violation of this policy. Furthermore, any employee, supervisor, or manager who becomes aware of any such discrimination or harassment should immediately report it to executive management or the human resources office to ensure that such conduct does not continue.

Contractor agrees that to the extent of any inconsistency, omission, or conflict with its current non-discrimination employment policy, the Contractor has expressly adopted the provisions of the City's Minimum Non-Discrimination Policy contained in Section 5-4-2 of the City Code and set forth above, as the Contractor's Non-Discrimination Policy or as an amendment to such Policy and such provisions are intended to not only supplement the Contractor's policy, but will also supersede the Contractor's policy to the extent of any conflict.

UPON CONTRACT AWARD, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A COPY TO THE CITY OF THE CONTRACTOR'S NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY ON COMPANY LETTERHEAD, WHICH CONFORMS IN FORM, SCOPE, AND CONTENT TO THE CITY'S MINIMUM NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY, AS SET FORTH HEREIN, OR THIS NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY, WHICH HAS BEEN ADOPTED BY THE CONTRACTOR FOR ALL PURPOSES (THE FORM OF WHICH HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE CITY'S EQUAL EMPLOYMENT/FAIR HOUSING OFFICE), WILL BE CONSIDERED THE CONTRACTOR'S NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY WITHOUT THE REQUIREMENT OF A SEPARATE SUBMITTAL.

Sanctions:

Our firm understands that non-compliance with Chapter 5-4 may result in sanctions, including termination of the contract and suspension or debarment from participation in future City contracts until deemed compliant with the requirements of Chapter 5-4.

Term:

The Contractor agrees that this Section 0800 Non-Discrimination Certificate or the Contractor's separate conforming policy, which the Contractor has executed and filed with the Owner, will remain in force and effect for one year from the date of filing. The Contractor further agrees that, in consideration of the receipt of continued Contract payments, the Contractor's Non-Discrimination Policy will automatically renew from year-to-year for the term of the underlying Contract.

Dated this Let day of November 20 13

CONTRACTOR

Authorized Signature

GUARDIAN INDUSTRIAL SUF

Title

City of Austin, Texas NON-SUSPENSION OR DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION

SOLICITATION NO.	JRD0003
	UND UU

The City of Austin is prohibited from contracting with or making prime or sub-awards to parties that are suspended or debarred or whose principals are suspended or debarred from Federal, State, or City of Austin Contracts. Covered transactions include procurement contracts for goods or services equal to or in excess of \$25,000.00 and all non-procurement transactions. This certification is required for all Vendors on all City of Austin Contracts to be awarded and all contract extensions with values equal to or in excess of \$25,000.00 or more and all non-procurement transactions.

The Offeror hereby certifies that its firm and its principals are not currently suspended or debarred from bidding on any Federal, State, or City of Austin Contracts.

Contractor's Name:	GUARDIAN INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY
Signature of Officer or Authorized Representative:	Surlllow Date: [1-1-13]
Printed Name:	SPENE WILKES
Title:	SALES REPRESENTATIVE

CITY OF AUSTIN NON-COLLUSION, NON-CONFLICT OF INTEREST, AND ANTI-LOBBYING AFFIDAVIT SOLICITATION NO. JRD0003

ITATION NO. JRD

OEM Parts for Scarifiers and Planers

State of Texas

County of Travis

The undersigned "Affiant" is a duly authorized representative of the Offeror for the purpose of making this Affidavit, and, after being first duly sworn, has deposed and stated and hereby deposes and states, to the best of his or her personal knowledge and belief as follows:

The term "Offeror", as used herein, includes the individual or business entity submitting the Offer and for the purpose of this Affidavit includes the directors, officers, partners, managers, members, principals, owners, agents, representatives, employees, other parties in interest of the Offeror, and anyone or any entity acting for or on behalf of the Offeror, including a subcontractor in connection with this Offer.

- 1. Anti-Collusion Statement. The Offeror has not in any way directly or indirectly:
 - a. colluded, conspired, or agreed with any other person, firm, corporation, Offeror or potential Offeror to the amount of this Offer or the terms or conditions of this Offer.
 - b. paid or agreed to pay any other person, firm, corporation Offeror or potential Offeror any money or anything of value in return for assistance in procuring or attempting to procure a contract or in return for establishing the prices in the attached Offer or the Offer of any other Offeror.
- 2. Preparation of Solicitation and Contract Documents. The Offeror has not received any compensation or a promise of compensation for participating in the preparation or development of the underlying Solicitation or Contract documents. In addition, the Offeror has not otherwise participated in the preparation or development of the underlying Solicitation or Contract documents, except to the extent of any comments or questions and responses in the solicitation process, which are available to all Offerors, so as to have an unfair advantage over other Offerors, provided that the Offeror may have provided relevant product or process information to a consultant in the normal course of its business.
- 3. Participation in Decision Making Process. The Offeror has not participated in the evaluation of Offers or other decision making process for this Solicitation, and, if Offeror is awarded a Contract hereunder, no individual, agent, representative, consultant, subcontractor, or subconsultant associated with Offeror, who may have been involved in the evaluation or other decision making process for this Solicitation, will have any direct or indirect financial interest in the Contract, provided that the Offeror may have provided relevant product or process information to a consultant in the normal course of its business.
- 4. Present Knowledge. Offeror is not presently aware of any potential or actual conflicts of interest regarding this Solicitation, which either enabled Offeror to obtain an advantage over other Offerors or would prevent Offeror from advancing the best interests of the City in the course of the performance of the Contract.
- 5. City Code. As provided in Sections 2-7-61 through 2-7-65 of the City Code, no individual with a substantial interest in Offeror is a City official or employee or is related to any City official or employee within the first or second degree of consanguinity or affinity.
- **6. Chapter 176 Conflict of Interest Disclosure.** In accordance with Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code, the Offeror:
 - a. does not have an employment or other business relationship with any local government officer of the City or a family member of that officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable income;

CITY OF AUSTIN NON-COLLUSION, NON-CONFLICT OF INTEREST, AND ANTI-LOBBYING AFFIDAVIT

- b. has not given a local government officer of the City one or more gifts, other than gifts of food, lodging, transportation, or entertainment accepted as a guest, that have an aggregate value of more than \$250 in the twelve month period preceding the date the officer becomes aware of the execution of the Contract or that OWNER is considering doing business with the Offeror.
- c. as required by Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code, Offeror must file a Conflict of Interest Questionnaire with the Office of the City Clerk no later than 5:00 P.M. on the seventh (7) business day after the commencement of contract discussions or negotiations with the City or the submission of an Offer, or other writing related to a potential Contract with the City. The questionnaire is available on line at the following website for the City Clerk:

http://www.austintexas.gov/department/conflict-interest-questionnaire

There are statutory penalties for failure to comply with Chapter 176.

	not affirmatively swear and subscribe to the forgoing statements, the Offeror shall written explanation in the space provided below or, as necessary, on separate xed hereto.
Offeror's Explanation:	
7N, between the o	Ordinance. As set forth in the Solicitation Instructions, Section 0200, paragraph date that the Solicitation was issued and the date of full execution of the Contract, and and will not make a representation to a City official or to a City employee, other ed Contact Person for the Solicitation, except as permitted by the Ordinance.
Contractor's Name:	GUARDIAN INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY
Printed Name:	STEVE WILKES'
Title:	SACES PEPRESONTATIVE
Jun	Willer
Signature of Officer of	r Authorized Representative:
Subscribed and swor	on to before me this 15th day of November, 2013.
40	to My Commission Expires 10/2 3/2015
Notary Public	JOE A. GUTIERREZ

My Commission Expires
October 27, 2015

Revised 02/14/12

Section 0810, Non-Collusion, Non-Conflict of and Anti-Lobbying Affidavit

City of Austin, Texas NONRESIDENT BIDDER PROVISIONS

SOLICITATION NO IDDOOGS		
SOCIOTIATION NO. JANDOUS	SOLICITATION NO.	JRD0003

A. Bidder must answer the following questions in accordance with Vernon's Texas Statutes and Codes Annotated Government Code 2252.002, as amended:

Is the Bidder that is making and submitting this Bid a "Resident Bidder" or a "Non-resident Bidder"?

Texas Resident Bidder - A Bidder whose principal place of business is in Texas and includes a Contractor whose ultimate parent company or majority owner has its principal place of business in Texas.

C Non-resident Bidder

Bidder's Name:	GUARDIAN INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY		
Signature of Officer or Authorized Representative:	Stuell lon	Date:	11-1-13
Printed Name:	STEVE WILKES'		
Title:	SALES REPRESEN	TATIO	Æ

MINORITY- AND WOMEN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (MBE/WBE) PROCUREMENT PROGRAM NO GOALS FORM

SOLICITATION NUMBER: JRD0003

PROJECT NAME: OEM PARTS AND REPAIR FOR SCARIFIERS AND PLANERS

The City of Austin has determined that no goals are appropriate for this project. Even though no goals have been established for this solicitation, the Bidder/Proposer is required to comply with the City's MBE/WBE Procurement Program, if areas of subcontracting are identified.

If any service is needed to perform the Contract and the Bidder/Proposer does not perform the service with its own workforce or if supplies or materials are required and the Bidder/Proposer does not have the supplies or materials in its inventory, the Bidder/Proposer shall contact the Small and Minority Business Resources Department (SMBR) at (512) 974-7600 to obtain a list of MBE and WBE firms available to perform the service or provide the supplies or materials. The Bidder/Proposer must also make a Good Faith Effort to use available MBE and WBE firms. Good Faith Efforts include but are not limited to contacting the listed MBE and WBE firms to solicit their interest in performing on the Contract; using MBE and WBE firms that have shown an interest, meet qualifications, and are competitive in the market; and documenting the results of the contacts.

Will subcontractors or sub-consultants or suppliers be used to perform portions of this Contract?

No _____ If no, please sign the No Goals Form and submit it with your Bid/Proposal in a sealed envelope.

If yes, please contact SMBR to obtain further instructions and an availability list and perform Good Faith Efforts. Complete and submit the No Goals Form and the No Goals Utilization Plan with your Bid/Proposal in a sealed envelope.

After Contract award, if your firm subcontracts any portion of the Contract, it is a requirement to complete Good Faith Efforts and the No Goals Utilization Plan, listing any subcontractor, subconsultant, or supplier. Return the completed Plan to the Project Manager or the Contract Manager.

I understand that even though no goals have been established, I must comply with the City's
MBE/WBE Procurement Program if subcontracting areas are identified. I agree that this No
Goals Form and No Goals Utilization Plan shall become a part of my Contract with the City of
Austin. Shardian Indastrial Sapply Company Name
Company Name
Steve Wilkes Sales
Name and Title of Authorized Representative (Print or Type)
Jane (Clar 11-673
Signature Date

MINORITY- AND WOMEN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (MBE/WBE) PROCUREMENT PROGRAM NO GOALS UTILIZATION PLAN

(Please duplicate as needed)

SOLICITATION NUMBER: JRD0003	
PROJECT NAME: OEM PARTS AND REPAIR FOR SCARIFIERS AND PLANERS	╛

PROJECT NAME: OEM PARTS AN	ID REPAIR FOR S	SCARIFIERS A	ND PLANERS		
PRIME CON	TRACTOR/CONS				,
Name of Contractor/Consultant	(oual	dean to	ndiest 10	of Suppl	संग
Address					7
City, State Zip	Amfi	in TX	ter Ci.		/
Phone	(12-9	13-3500		IS12-975	3500
Name of Contact Person	Steve	Ulles			
Is company City certified?	Yes No	MBE WBE	MBE/WBE Id	oint Venture	
I certify that the information included in this					and belief. I
further understand and agree that the inform	nation in this docume				
Name and Title of Authorized Represen	ntative (Print or Ty	pe)			
Styne Willo	u			11-6-15 Date	
Signature				Date	
Provide a list of all proposed subcontractors Good Faith Efforts documentation if nor	n MBE/WBE firms	will be used.	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	rmance of this Contr	act. Attach
Sub-Contractor/Consultant	Qual	ity Equi	pment		
City of Austin Certified	MBE WBE	Ethnic	/Gender Code:	NON-CERTII	FIED
Vendor ID Code					/
Contact Person	Kert	to garrite	Phone Nu	imber: 1/2-	257:3415
Amount of Subcontract	\$	17317.2	7		
List commodity codes & description of services	Pan	As Sup	plier		
Sub-Contractor/Consultant	343E				
City of Austin Certified	MBE WBE	Ethnic	/Gender Code:	NON-CERTI	FIED
Vendor ID Code	十 ^ ;				
Contact Person	Dary/ met	dinger -	Phone Nu	mber: 423.	277 - 7866
Amount of Subcontract	\$ 37	987.97			
List commodity codes & description of services	Taxts	- Supplie			
FOR SMALL AND MINORITY BUSINESS RE				0.04 /71 /0 /72	
Having reviewed this plan, I acknowledge that th	e proposer (FIA5) or (F	ins NOT) complie	a with City Code Cl	napter 2-9A/B/C/D, a	s amended.
Reviewing Counselor	Date	Directo	r/Deputy Director		Date
	111	ORT EC) -		

Section 0900 - Scarifiers and Planers

HOUT/CAT EQT.

16017 IH35

PRINCERVICE) TX 1860

PRINCERVICE) TX 1860

PRINCE PORTS / Supplie



ADDENDUM INVITATION FOR BID OEM PARTS FOR SCARIFIERS AND PLANERS CITY OF AUSTIN, TEXAS

Date of Addendum: October 14, 2013

Addendum No: 1

IFBBV: JRD0003

ACKNOWLEDGED BY:

This addendum is to incorporate the following changes to the above-referenced Invitation for Bid.

1.0 The chart in Section 14, Paragraph D of Section 0400, Supplemental Purchase Provisions, of PAC1 was modified to correct the Series ID and Geographical Area identified.

2.0 ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS REMAIN THE SAME.

BY THE SIGNATURES affixed below, this Addendum is hereby incorporated into and made a part of the above-referenced Invitation for Bid.

APPROVED BY:

Jonathan Dalchau, Buyer II

Purchasing Office

<u>RETURN A COPY OF THIS ADDENDUM</u> to the Purchasing Office, City of Austin, Texas with your bid.

Failure to do so may constitute grounds for rejection of your bid.

Addendum 1 Page 1 of 1

CITY OF AUSTIN, TEXAS

Purchasing Office INVITATION FOR BID (IFB) Offer Sheet

SOLICITATION NO: IFB JRD0003

COMMODITY/SERVICE DESCRIPTION: OEM Parts for Scarifiers

and Planers

DATE ISSUED: October 14, 2013

REQUISITION NO: 13060700417

COMMODITY CODE: 1751955

FOR CONTRACTUAL AND TECHNICAL

ISSUES CONTACT:

BID DUE PRIOR TO: 2:00 PM, Wednesday, November 6, 2013

Jonathan Dalchau

Buyer II

Phone: (512) 974-2938

Email: jonathan.dalchau@austintexas.gov

BID OPENING TIME AND DATE: 2:15 PM, Wednesday, November 6,

2013

LOCATION: MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 124 W 811 STREET

RM 310, AUSTIN, TEXAS 78701

LIVE BID OPENING ONLINE:

For information on how to attend the Bid Opening online, please select this link:

https://www.ci.austin.tx.us/financeonline/vendor_connection/index.cfm #BIDOPENINGWEBINAR

When submitting a sealed Offer and/or Compliance Plan, use the proper address for the type of service desired, as shown below.

P.O. Address for US Mail	Street Address for Hand Delivery or Courier Service
City of Austin	City of Austin, Purchasing Office
Purchasing Office	Municipal Building
P.O. Box 1088	124 W 8 th Street, Rm 310
Austin, Texas 78767-8845	Austin, Texas 78701
	Reception Phone: (512) 974-2500

Offers (including Compliance Plans) that are not submitted in a sealed envelope or container will not be considered.

SUBMIT 1 ORIGINAL AND 1 SIGNED COPIES OF OFFER

OFFER SU	BMITTED BY
By the signature below, I certify t	hat I have submitted a binding offer.
Signature of Person Authorized to Sign Offer	Bobby Cissell Sales Manager Signer's Name and Title: (please print or type)
FEDERAL TAX ID NO.	Date: 114/2013
Company Name: SSPS, Inc dba SMITH	Manufacturia
Address: 1610 S Dixe Highway	Email Address: Cutters@Sm. M. Mig. Con
City, State, Zip Code Bompans Beach, FC	33060
Phone No. (800) 653-9311	Fax No. (984) 545-0348

Table of Contents

SECTION NO.	TITLE	PAGES
0100, 0200, 0300	See http://www.austintexas.gov/financeonline/vendor_connection/index.cfm#STANDARDBIDDOCUMENTS *	*
0400	SUPPLEMENTAL PURCHASE PROVISIONS	7
0500	SCOPE OF WORK	2
0600	BID SHEET	2
0605	LOCAL BUSINESS PRESENCE IDENTIFICATION FORM	2
0700	REFERENCE SHEET	1
0800	NON-DISCRIMINATION CERTIFICATION	2
0805	NON-SUSPENSION OR DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION	1
0810	NON-COLLUSION, NON-CONFLICT OF INTEREST, AND ANTI-LOBBYING AFFIDAV IT	2
0835	NONRESIDENT BIDDER PROVISIONS	1
0900	MBE/WBE PROCUREMENT PROGRAM PACKAGE or NO GOALS UTILIZATION PLAN	2
1000	"NO OFFER" RESPONSE FORM	1

All other Sections may be viewed at: http://www.austintexas.gov/financeonline/vendor_connection/index.cfm

Cover Dage

RETURN THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS WITH YOUR OFFER** Offer Sheet

•	Coverrage	Offer Sileet
	Section 0600	Bid Sheet(s)
•	Section 0605	Local Business Presence Identification Form
	Section 0700	Reference Sheet (if required)
	Sections 0800 - 0835	Certifications and Affidavits (return all applicable Sections)
•	Section 0900	MBE/WBE Procurement Program Package or No Goals Utilization Plan
	Bld Guarant∨	(if required)

^{**} See also Section 0200, Solicitation Instructions, Section 0400, Supplemental Purchase Provisions, and Section 0500, Scope of Work/Specification, for additional documents that must be submitted with the Offer.

The Vendor agrees, if this Offer is accepted within 120 calendar days after the Due Date, to fully comply in strict accordance with the Solicitation, specifications and provisions attached thereto for the amounts shown on the accompanying Offer.

* INCORPORATION OF DOCUMENTS. Section 0100, Standard Purchase Definitions; Section 0200, Standard Solicitation Instructions; and Section 0300, Standard Purchase Terms and Conditions are hereby incorporated into this Solicitation by reference, with the same force and effect as if they were incorporated in full text. The full text versions of these Sections are available, the Internet following at the http://www.austintexas.gov/financeonline/vendor_connection/index.cfm#STANDARDBIDDOCUMENTS

If you do not have access to the Internet, you may obtain a copy of these Sections from the City of Austin Purchasing Office at the address or phone number indicated on page 1 of this Offer Sheet. Please have the Solicitation number available so that the staff can select the proper documents. These documents can be mailed, expressed mailed, or faxed to you.

It is the policy of the City of Austin to involve certified Minority Owned Business Enterprises (MBEs) and Woman Owned Business Enterprises (WBEs) in City contracting. MBE and WBE goals for this Solicitation are contained in Section 0900.

All Contractors and Subcontractors should be registered to do business with the City prior to submitting a response to a City Solicitation. In the case of Joint Ventures, each individual business in the joint venture should be registered with the City prior to submitting a response to a City solicitation. If the Joint Venture is awarded a contract, the Joint Venture must register to do business with the City. Prime Contractors are responsible for ensuring that their Subcontractors are registered. Registration can be done through the City's on-line vendor registration system. Log onto http://www.austintexas.gov/financeonline/vendor_connection/index.cfm and follow the directions.

By submitting an Offer in response to the Solicitation, the Contractor agrees that the Contract shall be governed by the following terms and conditions. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, Sections 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 20, 21, and 36 shall apply only to a Solicitation to purchase Goods, and Sections 9, 10, 11 and 22 shall apply only to a Solicitation to purchase Services to be performed principally at the City's premises or on public rights-of-way.

- <u>CONTRACTOR'S OBLIGATIONS</u>: The Contractor shall fully and timely provide all Deliverables described in the Solicitation and in the Contractor's Offer in strict accordance with the terms, covenants, and conditions of the Contract and all applicable Federal, State, and local laws, rules, and regulations.
- EFFECTIVE DATE/TERM: Unless otherwise specified in the Solicitation, this Contract shall be effective as of the
 date the contract is signed by the City, and shall continue in effect until all obligations are performed in accordance
 with the Contract.
- 3. CONTRACTOR TO PACKAGE DELIVERABLES: The Contractor will package Deliverables in accordance with good commercial practice and shall include a packing list showing the description of each item, the quantity and unit price Unless otherwise provided in the Specifications or Supplemental Terms and Conditions, each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows: (a) The Contractor's name and address, (b) the City's name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the price agreement number if applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number of the container bearing the packing list. The Contractor shall bear cost of packaging. Deliverables shall be suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common carriers and any applicable specifications. The City's count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments not accompanied by packing lists.
- 4. **SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED:** The Contractor is not authorized to ship the Deliverables under reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of Deliverables.
- 5. <u>TITLE & RISK OF LOSS</u>: Title to and risk of loss of the Deliverables shall pass to the City only when the City actually receives and accepts the Deliverables.
- 6. <u>DELIVERY TERMS AND TRANSPORTATION CHARGES</u>: Deliverables shall be shipped F.O.B. point of delivery unless otherwise specified in the Supplemental Terms and Conditions. Unless otherwise stated in the Offer, the Contractor's price shall be deemed to include all delivery and transportation charges. The City shall have the right to designate what method of transportation shall be used to ship the Deliverables. The place of delivery shall be that set forth in the block of the purchase order or purchase release entitled "Receiving Agency".
- 7. RIGHT OF INSPECTION AND REJECTION: The City expressly reserves all rights under law, including, but not limited to the Uniform Commercial Code, to inspect the Deliverables at delivery before accepting them, and to reject defective or non-conforming Deliverables. If the City has the right to inspect the Contractor's, or the Contractor's Subcontractor's, facilities, or the Deliverables at the Contractor's, or the Contractor's Subcontractor's, premises, the Contractor shall furnish, or cause to be furnished, without additional charge, all reasonable facilities and assistance to the City to facilitate such inspection.
- 8. **NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER:** Every tender or delivery of Deliverables must fully comply with all provisions of the Contract as to time of delivery, quality, and quantity. Any non-complying tender shall constitute a breach and the Contractor shall not have the right to substitute a conforming tender; provided, where the time for performance has not yet expired, the Contractor may notify the City of the intention to cure and may then make a conforming tender within the time allotted in the contract.
- 9. PLACE AND CONDITION OF WORK: The City shall provide the Contractor access to the sites where the Contractor is to perform the services as required in order for the Contractor to perform the services in a timely and efficient manner, in accordance with and subject to the applicable security laws, rules, and regulations. The Contractor acknowledges that it has satisfied itself as to the nature of the City's service requirements and specifications, the location and essential characteristics of the work sites, the quality and quantity of materials, equipment, labor and facilities necessary to perform the services, and any other condition or state of fact which could in any way affect performance of the Contractor's obligations under the contract. The Contractor hereby

releases and holds the City harmless from and against any liability or claim for damages of any kind or nature if the actual site or service conditions differ from expected conditions.

10. WORKFORCE:

- A. The Contractor shall employ only orderly and competent workers, skilled in the performance of the services which they will perform under the Contract.
- B. The Contractor, its employees, subcontractors, and subcontractor's employees may not while engaged in participating or responding to a solicitation or while in the course and scope of delivering goods or services under a City of Austin contract or on the City's property.
 - i. use or possess a firearm, including a concealed handgun that is licensed under state law, except as required by the terms of the contract; or
 - ii. use or possess alcoholic or other intoxicating beverages, illegal drugs or controlled substances, nor may such workers be intoxicated, or under the influence of alcohol or drugs, on the job.
- C. If the City or the City's representative notifies the Contractor that any worker is incompetent, disorderly or disobedient, has knowingly or repeatedly violated safety regulations, has possessed any firearms, or has possessed or was under the influence of alcohol or drugs on the job, the Contractor shall immediately remove such worker from Contract services, and may not employ such worker again on Contract services without the City's prior written consent.
- 11. COMPLIANCE WITH HEALTH, SAFETY, AND ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS: The Contractor, its Subcontractors, and their respective employees, shall comply fully with all applicable federal, state, and local health, safety, and environmental laws, ordinances, rules and regulations in the performance of the services, including but not limited to those promulgated by the City and by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA). In case of conflict, the most stringent safety requirement shall govern. The Contractor shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from and against all claims, demands, suits, actions, judgments, fines, penalties and liability of every kind arising from the breach of the Contractor's obligations under this paragraph.

12. INVOICES:

- A. The Contractor shall submit separate invoices in duplicate on each purchase order or purchase release after each delivery. If partial shipments or deliveries are authorized by the City, a separate invoice must be sent for each shipment or delivery made.
- B. Proper Invoices must include a unique invoice number, the purchase order or delivery order number and the master agreement number if applicable, the Department's Name, and the name of the point of contact for the Department. Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, if any, shall be listed separately. A copy of the bill of lading and the freight waybill, when applicable, shall be attached to the invoice. The Contractor's name and, if applicable, the tax identification number on the invoice must exactly match the information in the Vendor's registration with the City. Unless otherwise instructed in writing, the City may rely on the remittance address specified on the Contractor's invoice.
- C. Invoices for labor shall include a copy of all time-sheets with trade labor rate and Deliverables order number clearly identified. Invoices shall also include a tabulation of work-hours at the appropriate rates and grouped by work order number. Time billed for labor shall be limited to hours actually worked at the work site.
- D. Unless otherwise expressly authorized in the Contract, the Contractor shall pass through all Subcontract and other authorized expenses at actual cost without markup.
- E. Federal excise taxes, State taxes, or City sales taxes must not be included in the invoiced amount. The City will furnish a tax exemption certificate upon request.

13. **PAYMENT:**

- A. All proper invoices received by the City will be paid within thirty (30) calendar days of the City's receipt of the Deliverables or of the invoice, whichever is later.
- B. If payment is not timely made, (per paragraph A), interest shall accrue on the unpaid balance at the lesser of the rate specified in Texas Government Code Section 2251.025 or the maximum lawful rate; except, if payment is not timely made for a reason for which the City may withhold payment hereunder, interest shall not accrue until ten (10) calendar days after the grounds for withholding payment have been resolved.
- C. If partial shipments or deliveries are authorized by the City, the Contractor will be paid for the partial shipment or delivery, as stated above, provided that the invoice matches the shipment or delivery.
- D. The City may withhold or set off the entire payment or part of any payment otherwise due the Contractor to such extent as may be necessary on account of:
 - delivery of defective or non-conforming Deliverables by the Contractor;
 - ii. third party claims, which are not covered by the insurance which the Contractor is required to provide, are filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims;
 - iii. failure of the Contractor to pay Subcontractors, or for labor, materials or equipment;
 - iv. damage to the property of the City or the City's agents, employees or contractors, which is not covered by insurance required to be provided by the Contractor;
 - v. reasonable evidence that the Contractor's obligations will not be completed within the time specified in the Contract, and that the unpaid balance would not be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages for the anticipated delay;
 - vi. failure of the Contractor to submit proper invoices with all required attachments and supporting documentation; or
 - vii. failure of the Contractor to comply with any material provision of the Contract Documents.
- E. Notice is hereby given of Article VIII, Section 1 of the Austin City Charter which prohibits the payment of any money to any person, firm or corporation who is in arrears to the City for taxes, and of §2-8-3 of the Austin City Code concerning the right of the City to offset indebtedness owed the City.
- F. Payment will be made by check unless the parties mutually agree to payment by credit card or electronic transfer of funds. The Contractor agrees that there shall be no additional charges, surcharges, or penalties to the City for payments made by credit card or electronic funds transfer.
- G. The awarding or continuation of this contract is dependent upon the availability of funding. The City's payment obligations are payable only and solely from funds Appropriated and available for this contract. The absence of Appropriated or other lawfully available funds shall render the Contract null and void to the extent funds are not Appropriated or available and any Deliverables delivered but unpaid shall be returned to the Contractor. The City shall provide the Contractor written notice of the failure of the City to make an adequate Appropriation for any fiscal year to pay the amounts due under the Contract, or the reduction of any Appropriation to an amount insufficient to permit the City to pay its obligations under the Contract. In the event of non or inadequate appropriation of funds, there will be no penalty nor removal fees charged to the City.
- 14. **TRAVEL EXPENSES**: All travel, lodging and per diem expenses in connection with the Contract for which reimbursement may be claimed by the Contractor under the terms of the Solicitation will be reviewed against the City's Travel Policy as published and maintained by the City's Controller's Office and the Current United States General Services Administration Domestic Per Diem Rates (the "Rates") as published and maintained on the Internet at:

http://www.gsa.gov/portal/category/21287

No amounts in excess of the Travel Policy or Rates shall be paid. All invoices must be accompanied by copies of detailed itemized receipts (e.g. hotel bills, airline tickets). No reimbursement will be made for expenses not actually incurred. Airline fares in excess of coach or economy will not be reimbursed. Mileage charges may not exceed the amount permitted as a deduction in any year under the Internal Revenue Code or Regulations.

15. **FINAL PAYMENT AND CLOSE-OUT**:

- A. If an MBE/WBE Program Compliance Plan is required by the Solicitation, and the Contractor has identified Subcontractors, the Contractor is required to submit a Contract Close-Out MBE/WBE Compliance Report to the Project manager or Contract manager no later than the 15th calendar day after completion of all work under the contract. Final payment, retainage, or both may be withheld if the Contractor is not in compliance with the requirements of the Compliance Plan as accepted by the City.
- B. The making and acceptance of final payment will constitute:
 - i. a waiver of all claims by the City against the Contractor, except claims (1) which have been previously asserted in writing and not yet settled, (2) arising from defective work appearing after final inspection, (3) arising from failure of the Contractor to comply with the Contract or the terms of any warranty specified herein, (4) arising from the Contractor's continuing obligations under the Contract, including but not limited to indemnity and warranty obligations, or (5) arising under the City's right to audit; and
 - ii. a waiver of all claims by the Contractor against the City other than those previously asserted in writing and not yet settled.
- 16. **SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT:** If the price stated on the Offer includes the cost of any special tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by the Contractor for the purpose of filling this order, such special tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the City and shall be identified by the Contractor as such.

17. **RIGHT TO AUDIT:**

- A. The Contractor agrees that the representatives of the Office of the City Auditor or other authorized representatives of the City shall have access to, and the right to audit, examine, or reproduce, any and all records of the Contractor related to the performance under this Contract. The Contractor shall retain all such records for a period of three (3) years after final payment on this Contract or until all audit and litigation matters that the City has brought to the attention of the Contractor are resolved, whichever is longer. The Contractor agrees to refund to the City any overpayments disclosed by any such audit.
- B. The Contractor shall include section a. above in all subcontractor agreements entered into in connection with this Contract.

18. **SUBCONTRACTORS**:

A. If the Contractor identified Subcontractors in an MBE/WBE Program Compliance Plan or a No Goals Utilization Plan the Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Chapters 2-9A, 2-9B, 2-9C, and 2-9D, as applicable, of the Austin City Code and the terms of the Compliance Plan or Utilization Plan as approved by the City (the "Plan"). The Contractor shall not initially employ any Subcontractor except as provided in the Contractor's Plan. The Contractor shall not substitute any Subcontractor identified in the Plan, unless the substitute has been accepted by the City in writing in accordance with the provisions of Chapters 2-9A, 2-9B, 2-9C and 2-9D, as applicable. No acceptance by the City of any Subcontractor shall constitute a waiver of any rights or remedies of the City with respect to defective Deliverables provided by a Subcontractor. If a Plan has been approved, the Contractor is additionally required to submit a monthly Subcontract Awards and Expenditures Report to the Contract Manager and the Purchasing Office Contract Compliance Manager no later than the tenth calendar day of each month.

- B. Work performed for the Contractor by a Subcontractor shall be pursuant to a written contract between the Contractor and Subcontractor. The terms of the subcontract may not conflict with the terms of the Contract, and shall contain provisions that:
 - i. require that all Deliverables to be provided by the Subcontractor be provided in strict accordance with the provisions, specifications and terms of the Contract;
 - ii. prohibit the Subcontractor from further subcontracting any portion of the Contract without the prior written consent of the City and the Contractor. The City may require, as a condition to such further subcontracting, that the Subcontractor post a payment bond in form, substance and amount acceptable to the City;
 - iii. require Subcontractors to submit all invoices and applications for payments, including any claims for additional payments, damages or otherwise, to the Contractor in sufficient time to enable the Contractor to include same with its invoice or application for payment to the City in accordance with the terms of the Contract;
 - iv. require that all Subcontractors obtain and maintain, throughout the term of their contract, insurance in the type and amounts specified for the Contractor, with the City being a named insured as its interest shall appear; and
 - v. require that the Subcontractor indemnify and hold the City harmless to the same extent as the Contractor is required to indemnify the City.
- C. The Contractor shall be fully responsible to the City for all acts and omissions of the Subcontractors just as the Contractor is responsible for the Contractor's own acts and omissions. Nothing in the Contract shall create for the benefit of any such Subcontractor any contractual relationship between the City and any such Subcontractor, nor shall it create any obligation on the part of the City to pay or to see to the payment of any moneys due any such Subcontractor except as may otherwise be required by law.
- D. The Contractor shall pay each Subcontractor its appropriate share of payments made to the Contractor not later than ten (10) calendar days after receipt of payment from the City.

19. WARRANTY – PRICE:

- A. The Contractor warrants the prices quoted in the Offer are no higher than the Contractor's current prices on orders by others for like Deliverables under similar terms of purchase.
- B. The Contractor certifies that the prices in the Offer have been arrived at independently without consultation, communication, or agreement for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating to such fees with any other firm or with any competitor.
- C. In addition to any other remedy available, the City may deduct from any amounts owed to the Contractor, or otherwise recover, any amounts paid for items in excess of the Contractor's current prices on orders by others for like Deliverables under similar terms of purchase.
- 20. <u>WARRANTY TITLE</u>: The Contractor warrants that it has good and indefeasible title to all Deliverables furnished under the Contract, and that the Deliverables are free and clear of all liens, claims, security interests and encumbrances. The Contractor shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from and against all adverse title claims to the Deliverables.
- 21. WARRANTY DELIVERABLES: The Contractor warrants and represents that all Deliverables sold the City under the Contract shall be free from defects in design, workmanship or manufacture, and conform in all material respects to the specifications, drawings, and descriptions in the Solicitation, to any samples furnished by the Contractor, to the terms, covenants and conditions of the Contract, and to all applicable State, Federal or local laws, rules, and regulations, and industry codes and standards. Unless otherwise stated in the Solicitation, the Deliverables shall be new or recycled merchandise, and not used or reconditioned.
 - A. Recycled Deliverables shall be clearly identified as such.

- B. The Contractor may not limit, exclude or disclaim the foregoing warranty or any warranty implied by law; and any attempt to do so shall be without force or effect.
- C. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, the warranty period shall be at least one year from the date of acceptance of the Deliverables or from the date of acceptance of any replacement Deliverables. If during the warranty period, one or more of the above warranties are breached, the Contractor shall promptly upon receipt of demand either repair the non-conforming Deliverables, or replace the non-conforming Deliverables with fully conforming Deliverables, at the City's option and at no additional cost to the City. All costs incidental to such repair or replacement, including but not limited to, any packaging and shipping costs, shall be borne exclusively by the Contractor. The City shall endeavor to give the Contractor written notice of the breach of warranty within thirty (30) calendar days of discovery of the breach of warranty, but failure to give timely notice shall not impair the City's rights under this section.
- D. If the Contractor is unable or unwilling to repair or replace defective or non-conforming Deliverables as required by the City, then in addition to any other available remedy, the City may reduce the quantity of Deliverables it may be required to purchase under the Contract from the Contractor, and purchase conforming Deliverables from other sources. In such event, the Contractor shall pay to the City upon demand the increased cost, if any, incurred by the City to procure such Deliverables from another source.
- E. If the Contractor is not the manufacturer, and the Deliverables are covered by a separate manufacturer's warranty, the Contractor shall transfer and assign such manufacturer's warranty to the City. If for any reason the manufacturer's warranty cannot be fully transferred to the City, the Contractor shall assist and cooperate with the City to the fullest extent to enforce such manufacturer's warranty for the benefit of the City.
- 22. **WARRANTY SERVICES:** The Contractor warrants and represents that all services to be provided the City under the Contract will be fully and timely performed in a good and workmanlike manner in accordance with generally accepted industry standards and practices, the terms, conditions, and covenants of the Contract, and all applicable Federal, State and local laws, rules or regulations.
 - A. The Contractor may not limit, exclude or disclaim the foregoing warranty or any warranty implied by law, and any attempt to do so shall be without force or effect.
 - B. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, the warranty period shall be <u>at least</u> one year from the Acceptance Date. If during the warranty period, one or more of the above warranties are breached, the Contractor shall promptly upon receipt of demand perform the services again in accordance with above standard at no additional cost to the City. All costs incidental to such additional performance shall be borne by the Contractor. The City shall endeavor to give the Contractor written notice of the breach of warranty within thirty (30) calendar days of discovery of the breach warranty, but failure to give timely notice shall not impair the City's rights under this section.
 - C. If the Contractor is unable or unwilling to perform its services in accordance with the above standard as required by the City, then in addition to any other available remedy, the City may reduce the amount of services it may be required to purchase under the Contract from the Contractor, and purchase conforming services from other sources. In such event, the Contractor shall pay to the City upon demand the increased cost, if any, incurred by the City to procure such services from another source.
- 23. ACCEPTANCE OF INCOMPLETE OR NON-CONFORMING DELIVERABLES: If, instead of requiring immediate correction or removal and replacement of defective or non-conforming Deliverables, the City prefers to accept it, the City may do so. The Contractor shall pay all claims, costs, losses and damages attributable to the City's evaluation of and determination to accept such defective or non-conforming Deliverables. If any such acceptance occurs prior to final payment, the City may deduct such amounts as are necessary to compensate the City for the diminished value of the defective or non-conforming Deliverables. If the acceptance occurs after final payment, such amount will be refunded to the City by the Contractor.
- 24. **RIGHT TO ASSURANCE**: Whenever one party to the Contract in good faith has reason to question the other party's intent to perform, demand may be made to the other party for written assurance of the intent to perform. In the event

that no assurance is given within the time specified after demand is made, the demanding party may treat this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the Contract.

- 25. **STOP WORK NOTICE:** The City may issue an immediate Stop Work Notice in the event the Contractor is observed performing in a manner that is in violation of Federal, State, or local guidelines, or in a manner that is determined by the City to be unsafe to either life or property. Upon notification, the Contractor will cease all work until notified by the City that the violation or unsafe condition has been corrected. The Contractor shall be liable for all costs incurred by the City as a result of the issuance of such Stop Work Notice.
- 26. <u>DEFAULT</u>: The Contractor shall be in default under the Contract if the Contractor (a) fails to fully, timely and faithfully perform any of its material obligations under the Contract, (b) fails to provide adequate assurance of performance under Paragraph 24, (c) becomes insolvent or seeks relief under the bankruptcy laws of the United States or (d) makes a material misrepresentation in Contractor's Offer, or in any report or deliverable required to be submitted by the Contractor to the City.
- 27. **TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:** In the event of a default by the Contractor, the City shall have the right to terminate the Contract for cause, by written notice effective ten (10) calendar days, unless otherwise specified, after the date of such notice, unless the Contractor, within such ten (10) day period, cures such default, or provides evidence sufficient to prove to the City's reasonable satisfaction that such default does not, in fact, exist. The City may place Contractor on probation for a specified period of time within which the Contractor must correct any non-compliance issues. Probation shall not normally be for a period of more than nine (9) months, however, it may be for a longer period, not to exceed one (1) year depending on the circumstances. If the City determines the Contractor has failed to perform satisfactorily during the probation period, the City may proceed with suspension. In the event of a default by the Contractor, the City may suspend or debar the Contractor in accordance with the "City of Austin Purchasing Office Probation, Suspension and Debarment Rules for Vendors" and remove the Contractor from the City's vendor list for up to five (5) years and any Offer submitted by the Contractor may be disqualified for up to five (5) years. In addition to any other remedy available under law or in equity, the City shall be entitled to recover all actual damages, costs, losses and expenses, incurred by the City as a result of the Contractor's default, including, without limitation, cost of cover, reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs, and prejudgment and post-judgment interest at the maximum lawful rate. All rights and remedies under the Contract are cumulative and are not exclusive of any other right or remedy provided by law.
- 28. **TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE:** The City shall have the right to terminate the Contract, in whole or in part, without cause any time upon thirty (30) calendar days' prior written notice. Upon receipt of a notice of termination, the Contractor shall promptly cease all further work pursuant to the Contract, with such exceptions, if any, specified in the notice of termination. The City shall pay the Contractor, to the extent of funds Appropriated or otherwise legally available for such purposes, for all goods delivered and services performed and obligations incurred prior to the date of termination in accordance with the terms hereof.
- 29. **FRAUD:** Fraudulent statements by the Contractor on any Offer or in any report or deliverable required to be submitted by the Contractor to the City shall be grounds for the termination of the Contract for cause by the City and may result in legal action.

30. **DELAYS**:

- A. The City may delay scheduled delivery or other due dates by written notice to the Contractor if the City deems it is in its best interest. If such delay causes an increase in the cost of the work under the Contract, the City and the Contractor shall negotiate an equitable adjustment for costs incurred by the Contractor in the Contract price and execute an amendment to the Contract. The Contractor must assert its right to an adjustment within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of receipt of the notice of delay. Failure to agree on any adjusted price shall be handled under the Dispute Resolution process specified in paragraph 49. However, nothing in this provision shall excuse the Contractor from delaying the delivery as notified.
- B. Neither party shall be liable for any default or delay in the performance of its obligations under this Contract if, while and to the extent such default or delay is caused by acts of God, fire, riots, civil commotion, labor disruptions, sabotage, sovereign conduct, or any other cause beyond the reasonable control of such Party. In

the event of default or delay in contract performance due to any of the foregoing causes, then the time for completion of the services will be extended; provided, however, in such an event, a conference will be held within three (3) business days to establish a mutually agreeable period of time reasonably necessary to overcome the effect of such failure to perform.

31. INDEMNITY:

A. Definitions:

- i. "Indemnified Claims" shall include any and all claims, demands, suits, causes of action, judgments and liability of every character, type or description, including all reasonable costs and expenses of litigation, mediation or other alternate dispute resolution mechanism, including attorney and other professional fees for:
 - (1) damage to or loss of the property of any person (including, but not limited to the City, the Contractor, their respective agents, officers, employees and subcontractors; the officers, agents, and employees of such subcontractors; and third parties); and/or
 - (2) death, bodily injury, illness, disease, worker's compensation, loss of services, or loss of income or wages to any person (including but not limited to the agents, officers and employees of the City, the Contractor, the Contractor's subcontractors, and third parties).
- ii. "Fault" shall include the sale of defective or non-conforming Deliverables, negligence, willful misconduct, or a breach of any legally imposed strict liability standard.
- B. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DEFEND (AT THE OPTION OF THE CITY), INDEMNIFY, AND HOLD THE CITY, ITS SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES AND ELECTED OFFICIALS HARMLESS FROM AND AGAINST ALL INDEMNIFIED CLAIMS DIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF, INCIDENT TO, CONCERNING OR RESULTING FROM THE FAULT OF THE CONTRACTOR, OR THE CONTRACTOR'S AGENTS, EMPLOYEES OR SUBCONTRACTORS, IN THE PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTRACTOR'S OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE CONTRACT. NOTHING HEREIN SHALL BE DEEMED TO LIMIT THE RIGHTS OF THE CITY OR THE CONTRACTOR (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE RIGHT TO SEEK CONTRIBUTION) AGAINST ANY THIRD PARTY WHO MAY BE LIABLE FOR AN INDEMNIFIED CLAIM.
- 32. <u>INSURANCE</u>: (reference Section 0400 for specific coverage requirements). The following insurance requirement applies. (Revised March 2013).

A. General Requirements.

- i. The Contractor shall at a minimum carry insurance in the types and amounts indicated in Section 0400, Supplemental Purchase Provisions, for the duration of the Contract, including extension options and hold over periods, and during any warranty period.
- ii. The Contractor shall provide Certificates of Insurance with the coverages and endorsements required in Section 0400, Supplemental Purchase Provisions, to the City as verification of coverage prior to contract execution and within fourteen (14) calendar days after written request from the City. Failure to provide the required Certificate of Insurance may subject the Offer to disqualification from consideration for award. The Contractor must also forward a Certificate of Insurance to the City whenever a previously identified policy period has expired, or an extension option or hold over period is exercised, as verification of continuing coverage.
- iii. The Contractor shall not commence work until the required insurance is obtained and until such insurance has been reviewed by the City. Approval of insurance by the City shall not relieve or decrease the liability of the Contractor hereunder and shall not be construed to be a limitation of liability on the part of the Contractor.
- iv. The City may request that the Contractor submit certificates of insurance to the City for all subcontractors prior to the subcontractors commencing work on the project.
- v. The Contractor's and all subcontractors' insurance coverage shall be written by companies licensed to do business in the State of Texas at the time the policies are issued and shall be written by companies with A.M. Best ratings of B+VII or better.

- vi. The "other" insurance clause shall not apply to the City where the City is an additional insured shown on any policy. It is intended that policies required in the Contract, covering both the City and the Contractor, shall be considered primary coverage as applicable.
- vii. If insurance policies are not written for amounts specified in Section 0400, Supplemental Purchase Provisions, the Contractor shall carry Umbrella or Excess Liability Insurance for any differences in amounts specified. If Excess Liability Insurance is provided, it shall follow the form of the primary coverage.
- viii. The City shall be entitled, upon request, at an agreed upon location, and without expense, to review certified copies of policies and endorsements thereto and may make any reasonable requests for deletion or revision or modification of particular policy terms, conditions, limitations, or exclusions except where policy provisions are established by law or regulations binding upon either of the parties hereto or the underwriter on any such policies.
- ix. The City reserves the right to review the insurance requirements set forth during the effective period of the Contract and to make reasonable adjustments to insurance coverage, limits, and exclusions when deemed necessary and prudent by the City based upon changes in statutory law, court decisions, the claims history of the industry or financial condition of the insurance company as well as the Contractor.
- x. The Contractor shall not cause any insurance to be canceled nor permit any insurance to lapse during the term of the Contract or as required in the Contract.
- xi. The Contractor shall be responsible for premiums, deductibles and self-insured retentions, if any, stated in policies. Self-insured retentions shall be disclosed on the Certificate of Insurance.
- xii. The Contractor shall provide the City thirty (30) calendar days' written notice of erosion of the aggregate limits below occurrence limits for all applicable coverages indicated within the Contract.
- xiii. The insurance coverages specified in Section 0400, Supplemental Purchase Provisions, are required minimums and are not intended to limit the responsibility or liability of the Contractor.
- B. <u>Specific Coverage Requirements: Specific insurance requirements are contained in Section 0400, Supplemental Purchase Provisions</u>
- 33. <u>CLAIMS</u>: If any claim, demand, suit, or other action is asserted against the Contractor which arises under or concerns the Contract, or which could have a material adverse affect on the Contractor's ability to perform thereunder, the Contractor shall give written notice thereof to the City within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of notice by the Contractor. Such notice to the City shall state the date of notification of any such claim, demand, suit, or other action; the names and addresses of the claimant(s); the basis thereof; and the name of each person against whom such claim is being asserted. Such notice shall be delivered personally or by mail and shall be sent to the City and to the Austin City Attorney. Personal delivery to the City Attorney shall be to City Hall, 301 West 2nd Street, 4th Floor, Austin, Texas 78701, and mail delivery shall be to P.O. Box 1088, Austin, Texas 78767.
- 34. NOTICES: Unless otherwise specified, all notices, requests, or other communications required or appropriate to be given under the Contract shall be in writing and shall be deemed delivered three (3) business days after postmarked if sent by U.S. Postal Service Certified or Registered Mail, Return Receipt Requested. Notices delivered by other means shall be deemed delivered upon receipt by the addressee. Routine communications may be made by first class mail, facsimile, email, or other commercially accepted means. Notices to the Contractor shall be sent to the address specified in the Contractor's Offer, or at such other address as a party may notify the other in writing. Notices to the City shall be addressed to the City at P.O. Box 1088, Austin, Texas 78767 and marked to the attention of the Contract Administrator.
- 35. RIGHTS TO BID, PROPOSAL AND CONTRACTUAL MATERIAL: All material submitted by the Contractor to the City shall become property of the City upon receipt. Any portions of such material claimed by the Contractor to be proprietary must be clearly marked as such. Determination of the public nature of the material is subject to the Texas Public Information Act, Chapter 552, Texas Government Code.
- 36. **NO WARRANTY BY CITY AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS:** The Contractor represents and warrants to the City that:
 (i) the Contractor shall provide the City good and indefeasible title to the Deliverables and (ii) the Deliverables supplied by the Contractor in accordance with the specifications in the Contract will not infringe, directly or contributorily, any patent, trademark, copyright, trade secret, or any other intellectual property right of any kind of any third party; that no claims have been made by any person or entity with respect to the ownership or operation of the

Deliverables and the Contractor does not know of any valid basis for any such claims. The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, defend, indemnify, and hold the City harmless from and against all liability, damages, and costs (including court costs and reasonable fees of attorneys and other professionals) arising out of or resulting from: (i) any claim that the City's exercise anywhere in the world of the rights associated with the City's' ownership, and if applicable, license rights, and its use of the Deliverables infringes the intellectual property rights of any third party; or (ii) the Contractor's breach of any of Contractor's representations or warranties stated in this Contract. In the event of any such claim, the City shall have the right to monitor such claim or at its option engage its own separate counsel to act as co-counsel on the City's behalf. Further, Contractor agrees that the City's specifications regarding the Deliverables shall in no way diminish Contractor's warranties or obligations under this paragraph and the City makes no warranty that the production, development, or delivery of such Deliverables will not impact such warranties of Contractor.

- 37. **CONFIDENTIALITY:** In order to provide the Deliverables to the City, Contractor may require access to certain of the City's and/or its licensors' confidential information (including inventions, employee information, trade secrets, confidential know-how, confidential business information, and other information which the City or its licensors consider confidential) (collectively, "Confidential Information"). Contractor acknowledges and agrees that the Confidential Information is the valuable property of the City and/or its licensors and any unauthorized use, disclosure, dissemination, or other release of the Confidential Information will substantially injure the City and/or its licensors. The Contractor (including its employees, subcontractors, agents, or representatives) agrees that it will maintain the Confidential Information in strict confidence and shall not disclose, disseminate, copy, divulge, recreate, or otherwise use the Confidential Information without the prior written consent of the City or in a manner not expressly permitted under this Agreement, unless the Confidential Information is required to be disclosed by law or an order of any court or other governmental authority with proper jurisdiction, provided the Contractor promptly notifies the City before disclosing such information so as to permit the City reasonable time to seek an appropriate protective order. The Contractor agrees to use protective measures no less stringent than the Contractor uses within its own business to protect its own most valuable information, which protective measures shall under all circumstances be at least reasonable measures to ensure the continued confidentiality of the Confidential Information,
- 38. <u>PUBLICATIONS</u>: All published material and written reports submitted under the Contract must be originally developed material unless otherwise specifically provided in the Contract. When material not originally developed is included in a report in any form, the source shall be identified.
- 39. **ADVERTISING:** The Contractor shall not advertise or publish, without the City's prior consent, the fact that the City has entered into the Contract, except to the extent required by law.
- 40. NO CONTINGENT FEES: The Contractor warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure the Contract upon any agreement or understanding for commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Contractor for the purpose of securing business. For breach or violation of this warranty, the City shall have the right, in addition to any other remedy available, to cancel the Contract without liability and to deduct from any amounts owed to the Contractor, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee.
- 41. **GRATUITIES:** The City may, by written notice to the Contractor, cancel the Contract without liability if it is determined by the City that gratuities were offered or given by the Contractor or any agent or representative of the Contractor to any officer or employee of the City of Austin with a view toward securing the Contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending or the making of any determinations with respect to the performing of such contract. In the event the Contract is canceled by the City pursuant to this provision, the City shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold the amount of the cost incurred by the Contractor in providing such gratuities.
- 42. PROHIBITION AGAINST PERSONAL INTEREST IN CONTRACTS: No officer, employee, independent consultant, or elected official of the City who is involved in the development, evaluation, or decision-making process of the performance of any solicitation shall have a financial interest, direct or indirect, in the Contract resulting from that solicitation. Any willful violation of this section shall constitute impropriety in office, and any officer or employee guilty

thereof shall be subject to disciplinary action up to and including dismissal. Any violation of this provision, with the knowledge, expressed or implied, of the Contractor shall render the Contract voidable by the City.

- 43. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The Contract shall not be construed as creating an employer/employee relationship, a partnership, or a joint venture. The Contractor's services shall be those of an independent contractor. The Contractor agrees and understands that the Contract does not grant any rights or privileges established for employees of the City.
- 44. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION: The Contract shall be binding upon and enure to the benefit of the City and the Contractor and their respective successors and assigns, provided however, that no right or interest in the Contract shall be assigned and no obligation shall be delegated by the Contractor without the prior written consent of the City. Any attempted assignment or delegation by the Contractor shall be void unless made in conformity with this paragraph. The Contract is not intended to confer rights or benefits on any person, firm or entity not a party hereto; it being the intention of the parties that there be no third party beneficiaries to the Contract.
- 45. WAIVER: No claim or right arising out of a breach of the Contract can be discharged in whole or in part by a waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by consideration and is in writing signed by the aggrieved party. No waiver by either the Contractor or the City of any one or more events of default by the other party shall operate as, or be construed to be, a permanent waiver of any rights or obligations under the Contract, or an express or implied acceptance of any other existing or future default or defaults, whether of a similar or different character.
- 46. MODIFICATIONS: The Contract can be modified or amended only by a writing signed by both parties. No preprinted or similar terms on any the Contractor invoice, order or other document shall have any force or effect to change the terms, covenants, and conditions of the Contract.
- 47. INTERPRETATION: The Contract is intended by the parties as a final, complete and exclusive statement of the terms of their agreement. No course of prior dealing between the parties or course of performance or usage of the trade shall be relevant to supplement or explain any term used in the Contract. Although the Contract may have been substantially drafted by one party, it is the intent of the parties that all provisions be construed in a manner to be fair to both parties, reading no provisions more strictly against one party or the other. Whenever a term defined by the Uniform Commercial Code, as enacted by the State of Texas, is used in the Contract, the UCC definition shall control, unless otherwise defined in the Contract.

48. **DISPUTE RESOLUTION:**

- A. If a dispute arises out of or relates to the Contract, or the breach thereof, the parties agree to negotiate prior to prosecuting a suit for damages. However, this section does not prohibit the filing of a lawsuit to toll the running of a statute of limitations or to seek injunctive relief. Either party may make a written request for a meeting between representatives of each party within fourteen (14) calendar days after receipt of the request or such later period as agreed by the parties. Each party shall include, at a minimum, one (1) senior level individual with decision-making authority regarding the dispute. The purpose of this and any subsequent meeting is to attempt in good faith to negotiate a resolution of the dispute. If, within thirty (30) calendar days after such meeting, the parties have not succeeded in negotiating a resolution of the dispute, they will proceed directly to mediation as described below. Negotiation may be waived by a written agreement signed by both parties, in which event the parties may proceed directly to mediation as described below.
- B. If the efforts to resolve the dispute through negotiation fail, or the parties waive the negotiation process, the parties may select, within thirty (30) calendar days, a mediator trained in mediation skills to assist with resolution of the dispute. Should they choose this option, the City and the Contractor agree to act in good faith in the selection of the mediator and to give consideration to qualified individuals nominated to act as mediator. Nothing in the Contract prevents the parties from relying on the skills of a person who is trained in the subject matter of the dispute or a contract interpretation expert. If the parties fail to agree on a mediator within thirty (30) calendar days of initiation of the mediation process, the mediator shall be selected by the Travis County Dispute Resolution Center (DRC). The parties agree to participate in mediation in good faith for up to thirty (30) calendar days from the date of the first mediation session. The City and the Contractor will share the

mediator's fees equally and the parties will bear their own costs of participation such as fees for any consultants or attorneys they may utilize to represent them or otherwise assist them in the mediation.

- 49. <u>JURISDICTION AND VENUE</u>: The Contract is made under and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas, including, when applicable, the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in Texas, V.T.C.A., Bus. & Comm. Code, Chapter 1, excluding any rule or principle that would refer to and apply the substantive law of another state or jurisdiction. All issues arising from this Contract shall be resolved in the courts of Travis County, Texas and the parties agree to submit to the exclusive personal jurisdiction of such courts. The foregoing, however, shall not be construed or interpreted to limit or restrict the right or ability of the City to seek and secure injunctive relief from any competent authority as contemplated herein.
- 50. **INVALIDITY:** The invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability of any provision of the Contract shall in no way affect the validity or enforceability of any other portion or provision of the Contract. Any void provision shall be deemed severed from the Contract and the balance of the Contract shall be construed and enforced as if the Contract did not contain the particular portion or provision held to be void. The parties further agree to reform the Contract to replace any stricken provision with a valid provision that comes as close as possible to the intent of the stricken provision. The provisions of this section shall not prevent this entire Contract from being void should a provision which is the essence of the Contract be determined to be void.
- 51. **HOLIDAYS:** The following holidays are observed by the City:

Holiday	Date Observed
New Year's Day	January 1
Martin Luther King, Jr.'s Birthday	Third Monday in January
President's Day	Third Monday in February
Memorial Day	Last Monday in May
Independence Day	July 4
Labor Day	First Monday in September
Veteran's Day	November 11
Thanksgiving Day	Fourth Thursday in November
Friday after Thanksgiving	Friday after Thanksgiving
Christmas Eve	December 24
Christmas Day	December 25

If a Legal Holiday falls on Saturday, it will be observed on the preceding Friday. If a Legal Holiday falls on Sunday, it will be observed on the following Monday.

- 52. **SURVIVABILITY OF OBLIGATIONS**: All provisions of the Contract that impose continuing obligations on the parties, including but not limited to the warranty, indemnity, and confidentiality obligations of the parties, shall survive the expiration or termination of the Contract.
- 53. NON-SUSPENSION OR DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION: The City of Austin is prohibited from contracting with or making prime or sub-awards to parties that are suspended or debarred or whose principals are suspended or debarred from Federal, State, or City of Austin Contracts. By accepting a Contract with the City, the Vendor certifies that its firm and its principals are not currently suspended or debarred from doing business with the Federal Government, as indicated by the General Services Administration List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement and Non-Procurement Programs, the State of Texas, or the City of Austin.

54. **EQUAL OPPORTUNITY**

- A. <u>Equal Employment Opportunity</u>: No Offeror, or Offeror's agent, shall engage in any discriminatory employment practice as defined in Chapter 5-4 of the City Code. No Offer submitted to the City shall be considered, nor any Purchase Order issued, or any Contract awarded by the City unless the Offeror has executed and filed with the City Purchasing Office a current Non-Discrimination Certification. Non-compliance with Chapter 5-4 of the City Code may result in sanctions, including termination of the contract and the Contractor's suspension or debarment from participation on future City contracts until deemed compliant with Chapter 5-4.
- B. <u>Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Compliance</u>: No Offeror, or Offeror's agent, shall engage in any discriminatory employment practice against individuals with disabilities as defined in the ADA.

55. BUY AMERICAN ACT-SUPPLIES (Applicable to certain Federally funded requirements)

- A. Definitions. As used in this paragraph
 - i. "Component" means an article, material, or supply incorporated directly into an end product.
 - ii. "Cost of components" means -
 - (1) For components purchased by the Contractor, the acquisition cost, including transportation costs to the place of incorporation into the end product (whether or not such costs are paid to a domestic firm), and any applicable duty (whether or not a duty-free entry certificate is issued); or
 - (2) For components manufactured by the Contractor, all costs associated with the manufacture of the component, including transportation costs as described in paragraph (1) of this definition, plus allocable overhead costs, but excluding profit. Cost of components does not include any costs associated with the manufacture of the end product.
 - iii. "Domestic end product" means-
 - (1) An unmanufactured end product mined or produced in the United States; or
 - (2) An end product manufactured in the United States, if the cost of its components mined, produced, or manufactured in the United States exceeds 50 percent of the cost of all its components. Components of foreign origin of the same class or kind as those that the agency determines are not mined, produced, or manufactured in sufficient and reasonably available commercial quantities of a satisfactory quality are treated as domestic. Scrap generated, collected, and prepared for processing in the United States is considered domestic.
 - iv. "End product" means those articles, materials, and supplies to be acquired under the contract for public use.
 - v. "Foreign end product" means an end product other than a domestic end product.
 - vi. "United States" means the 50 States, the District of Columbia, and outlying areas.
- B. The Buy American Act (41 U.S.C. 10a 10d) provides a preference for domestic end products for supplies acquired for use in the United States.
- C. The City does not maintain a list of foreign articles that will be treated as domestic for this Contract; but will consider for approval foreign articles as domestic for this product if the articles are on a list approved by another Governmental Agency. The Offeror shall submit documentation with their Offer demonstrating that the article is on an approved Governmental list.
- D. The Contractor shall deliver only domestic end products except to the extent that it specified delivery of foreign end products in the provision of the Solicitation entitled "Buy American Act Certificate".

The following Supplemental Purchasing Provisions apply to this solicitation:

1. **EXPLANATIONS OR CLARIFICATIONS**: (reference paragraph 5 in Section 0200)

All requests for explanations or clarifications must be submitted in writing to the Purchasing Office by 1:00PM, on Friday, October 25, 2013. Please send to Jonathan Dalchau by email jonathan.dalchau@austintexas.gov or fax: 512-9724-2388.

- 2. **INSURANCE:** Insurance is required for this solicitation.
 - A. <u>General Requirements</u>: See Section 0300, Standard Purchase Terms and Conditions, paragraph 32, entitled Insurance, for general insurance requirements.
 - i. The Contractor shall provide a Certificate of Insurance as verification of coverages required below to the City at the below address prior to contract execution and within 14 calendar days after written request from the City. Failure to provide the required Certificate of Insurance may subject the Offer to disqualification from consideration for award
 - ii. The Contractor shall not commence work until the required insurance is obtained and until such insurance has been reviewed by the City. Approval of insurance by the City shall not relieve or decrease the liability of the Contractor hereunder and shall not be construed to be a limitation of liability on the part of the Contractor.
 - iii. The Contractor must also forward a Certificate of Insurance to the City whenever a previously identified policy period has expired, or an extension option or holdover period is exercised, as verification of continuing coverage.
 - iv. The Certificate of Insurance, and updates, shall be mailed to the following address:

City of Austin Purchasing Office P. O. Box 1088 Austin, Texas 78767

- B. <u>Specific Coverage Requirements</u>: The Contractor shall at a minimum carry insurance in the types and amounts indicated below for the duration of the Contract, including extension options and hold over periods, and during any warranty period. These insurance coverages are required minimums and are not intended to limit the responsibility or liability of the Contractor.
 - i. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability Insurance: Coverage shall be consistent with statutory benefits outlined in the Texas Worker's Compensation Act (Section 401). The minimum policy limits for Employer's Liability are \$100,000 bodily injury each accident, \$500,000 bodily injury by disease policy limit and \$100,000 bodily injury by disease each employee.
 - (1) The Contractor's policy shall apply to the State of Texas and include these endorsements in favor of the City of Austin:
 - (a) Waiver of Subrogation, Form WC420304, or equivalent coverage
 - (b) Thirty (30) days Notice of Cancellation, Form WC420601, or equivalent coverage
 - ii. <u>Commercial General Liability Insurance</u>: The minimum bodily injury and property damage per occurrence are \$500,000 for coverages A (Bodily Injury and Property Damage) and B (Personal and Advertising Injury).
 - (1) The policy shall contain the following provisions:
 - (a) Contractual liability coverage for liability assumed under the Contract and all other Contracts related to the project.
 - (b) Contractor/Subcontracted Work.

- (c) Products/Completed Operations Liability for the duration of the warranty period.
- (d) If the project involves digging or drilling provisions must be included that provide Explosion, Collapse, and/or Underground Coverage.
- (2) The policy shall also include these endorsements in favor of the City of Austin:
 - (a) Waiver of Subrogation, Endorsement CG 2404, or equivalent coverage
 - (b) Thirty (30) days Notice of Cancellation, Endorsement CG 0205, or equivalent coverage
 - (c) The City of Austin listed as an additional insured, Endorsement CG 2010, or equivalent coverage
- iii. <u>Business Automobile Liability Insurance</u>: The Contractor shall provide coverage for all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles with a minimum combined single limit of \$500,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage. Alternate acceptable limits are \$250,000 bodily injury per person, \$500,000 bodily injury per occurrence and at least \$100,000 property damage liability per accident.
 - (1) The policy shall include these endorsements in favor of the City of Austin:
 - (a) Waiver of Subrogation, Endorsement CA0444, or equivalent coverage
 - (b) Thirty (30) days Notice of Cancellation, Endorsement CA0244, or equivalent coverage
 - (c) The City of Austin listed as an additional insured, Endorsement CA2048, or equivalent coverage.
- C. <u>Endorsements</u>: The specific insurance coverage endorsements specified above, or their equivalents must be provided. In the event that endorsements, which are the equivalent of the required coverage, are proposed to be substituted for the required coverage, copies of the equivalent endorsements must be provided for the City's review and approval.

Note: If shipment is made by common carrier, then the requirements for Workers Compensation Employee Liability and Business Automobile Liability Insurance are not required. The Contractor must provide a written statement if a common carrier will be used to deliver parts.

3. TERM OF CONTRACT:

- A. The Contract shall be in effect for an initial term of thirty-six (36) months and may be extended thereafter for up to three (3) additional 12-month periods, subject to the approval of the Contractor and the City Purchasing Officer or his designee.
- B. Upon expiration of the initial term or period of extension, the Contractor agrees to hold over under the terms and conditions of this agreement for such a period of time as is reasonably necessary to resolicit and/or complete the project (not to exceed 120 days unless mutually agreed on in writing).
- C. Upon written notice to the Contractor from the City's Purchasing Officer or his designee and acceptance of the Contractor, the term of this contract shall be extended on the same terms and conditions for an additional period as indicated in paragraph A above.
- D. Prices are firm and fixed for the first twelve (12) months. Thereafter, price changes are subject to the Economic Price Adjustment provisions of this Contract.
- 4. **QUANTITIES:** The quantities listed herein are estimates for the period of the Contract. The City reserves the right to purchase more or less of these quantities as may be required during the Contract term. Quantities will be as needed and specified by the City for each order. Unless specified in the solicitation, there are no minimum order quantities.

DELIVERY REQUIREMEN	NTS:	F	EM	IIR	OU	RE	/FRY	DELL	5.
---------------------------------------	------	---	----	-----	----	----	------	------	----

Location:	Days:
City of Austin - Department of Aviation	Monday – Friday
Austin Bergstrom International Airport	8:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m.
9400A Freight Lane	
Austin, TX 78719	

- A. Delivery is to be made within fourteen (14) calendar days after the order is placed (either verbally or in writing). All orders must be shipped complete unless arrangements for partial shipments are made in advance.
- B. The Contractor shall provide, with each delivery, a Shipping or Delivery Ticket showing the description of each item, quantity, and unit price.
- C. The Contractor shall confirm the quantity to be shipped on all orders within two (2) hours of notification by phone from the City.
- D. Unless requested by the City, deliveries shall not be made on City-recognized legal holidays (see paragraph 51 in Section 0300).
- 6. **INVOICES** and **PAYMENT**: (reference paragraphs 12 and 13 in Section 0300)
 - A. Invoices shall contain a unique invoice number and the information required in Section 0300, paragraph 12, entitled "Invoices." Invoices received without all required information cannot be processed and will be returned to the vendor.

Invoices shall be mailed to the below address:

	City of Austin
Department	Aviation
Attn:	Accounts Payable
Address	3600 Presidential Blvd., Suite 411
City, State Zip Code	Austin, TX 78719

B. The Contractor agrees to accept payment by either credit card, check or Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) for all goods and/or services provided under the Contract. The Contractor shall factor the cost of processing credit card payments into the Offer. There shall be no additional charges, surcharges, or penalties to the City for payments made by credit card.

7. VERIFICATION OF CONTRACTOR'S PARTS PRICING

- A. Aviation Services Parts Room, Contract Compliance and/or Accounts Payable personnel will review invoices to determine the accuracy of charges invoiced. The review will be performed using the price list in effect at the time of contract award, revisions approved by the City, and the percentage mark up as indicated on the bid sheet.
- 3. If pricing is found to be different, the Contractor shall reimburse the City for the amount overcharged within thirty (30) calendar days after written notification from the Contract Manager.

8. **RESTOCKING FEES:**

- A. The Contractor may bill the City restocking fees (if included in their Offer) for parts that are ordered by the City under the contract and returned for refund. The Contractor is not obligated to accept for refund any part that is not resalable and/or not in the same condition as when purchased.
- B. Restocking fees may be charged to the City when multiple parts or groups of parts are returned for refund at one time due to the City inventory warehouse cleaning, unless these parts are returned at an annual pre-arranged date. The date for the annual return shall be mutually agreed upon between the City and the Contractor.

9. MATERIALS SPECIFICATIONS/DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE:

- A. If a solicitation refers to a Qualified Products List (QPL), Standard Products List (SPL) or a manufacturer's name and product, any Offeror offering products not referenced in the solicitation must submit as part of their Offer materials specifications/descriptive literature for the non-referenced product. Materials specifications/descriptive literature must be identified to show the item(s) in the Offer to which it applies.
- B. Materials specifications/descriptive literature are defined as product manufacturer's catalog pages, "cut sheets" applicable tests results, or related detailed documents that specify material construction, performance parameters, and any industrial standards that are applicable such as ANSI, ASTM, ASME, SAE, NFPA, NBS, EIA, ESL, and NSA. The submitted materials specifications/descriptive literature must include the manufacturer's name and product number of the product being offered.
- C. The failure of the materials specifications/descriptive literature to show that the product offered conforms to the requirements of the Solicitation shall result in rejection of the Offer.
- D. Failure to submit the materials specifications/descriptive literature as part of the Offer may subject the Offer to disqualification from consideration for award.

10. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS:

- A. If this Solicitation involves hazardous materials, the Offeror shall fumish with the Offer Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS), (OSHA Form 20), on all chemicals and hazardous materials specifying the generic and trade name of product, product specification, and full hazard information including receiving and storage hazards. Instructions, special equipment needed for handling, information on approved containers, and instructions for the disposal of the material are also required.
- B. Failure to submit the MSDS as part of the Offer may subject the Offer to disqualification from consideration for award.
- C. The MSDS, instructions and information required in paragraph "A" must be included with each shipment under the contract.

11. RECYCLED PRODUCTS:

- A. The City prefers that Offerors offer products that contain recycled materials. When a recycled product is offered by the Offeror, the Offeror must state in their Offer the percentage of the product that is recycled and must include a list of the recycled materials that are contained in the product.
- B. The recycled content of paper products offered to the City shall be in accordance with the Federal Environmental Protection Agency's Recycled Product Procurement Guidelines. These guidelines are available at http://www.epa.gov/cpg/.

C. Contract award for paper products will be made for recycled products unless the cost is more than 10% above the lowest price for non-recycled paper products as required in the City's Comprehensive Recycling Resolution.

12. PUBLISHED PRICE LISTS:

- A. Offerors may quote using published price lists in the following ways:
 - i. Offerors may quote one discount from a Published Price List for all offered items to be covered in the Contract. The discount must remain firm during the life of the Contract.
 - ii. Offerors may quote their dealer cost, plus a percentage markup to be added to the cost. The percentage markup must remain firm during the life of the contract.
- B. Two (2) copies of the list upon which the discounts or markups are based shall be submitted with the Offer. All price lists identified in the Offer shall clearly include the Offeror's name and address, the solicitation number, prices, title of the discount and number, and the latest effective date of the price list. If the Offer is based on a discount or markup on a manufacturer's price list, the price list must also include the manufacturer's name, the manufacturer's latest effective date, and the manufacturer's price schedule. All price lists submitted become part of the Offer.
- C. The price list may be superseded or replaced during the Contract term only if price revisions are the result of the manufacturer's official price list revision. Written notification from the Contractor of price changes, along with two (2) copies of the revised list must be submitted to the Buyer in the Purchasing Office with the effective date of change to be at least thirty (30) calendar days after written notification. The City reserves the right to refuse any list revision.
- D. The discounts or markups on equipment rental, material, supplies, parts, and contract services shall be fixed throughout the term of the Contract, and are not subject to increase.
- E. Failure to submit written notification of price list revisions will result in the rejection of new prices being invoiced. The City will only pay invoices according to the last approved price list.
- 13. MONTHLY SUBCONTRACT AWARDS AND EXPENDITURES REPORT: (reference paragraph 18 in Section 0300) (applicable when an MBE/WBE Compliance Plan is required)
 - A. The Contractor must submit a monthly Subcontract Awards and Expenditures Report to the Contract Manager specified herein and to the Purchasing Office Contract Compliance Manager no later than the tenth calendar day of each month.
 - B. Mail the Purchasing Office Copy of the report to the following address:

City of Austin Purchasing Office Attn: Contract Compliance Manager P. O. Box 1088 Austin, Texas 78767

14. ECONOMIC PRICE ADJUSTMENT:

A. <u>Price Adjustments</u>: Prices shown in this Contract shall remain firm for the first twelve (12) months of the Contract. After that, in recognition of the potential for fluctuation of the Contractor's cost, a price adjustment (increase or decrease) may be requested by either the City or the Contractor on the anniversary date of the Contract or as may otherwise be specified herein. The percentage change between the contract price and the requested price shall not exceed the percentage change between

the specified index in effect on the date the solicitation closed and the most recent, non-preliminary data at the time the price adjustment is requested. The requested price adjustment shall not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) for any single line item and in no event shall the total amount of the contract be automatically adjusted as a result of the change in one or more line items made pursuant to this provision. Prices for products or services unaffected by verifiable cost trends shall not be subject to adjustment.

- B. <u>Effective Date</u>: Approved price adjustments will go into effect on the first day of the upcoming renewal period or anniversary date of contract award and remain in effect until contract expiration unless changed by subsequent amendment.
- C. <u>Adjustments</u>: A request for price adjustment must be made in writing and submitted to the other Party prior to the yearly anniversary date of the Contract; adjustments may only be considered at that time unless otherwise specified herein. Requested adjustments must be solely for the purpose of accommodating changes in the Contractor's direct costs. Contractor shall provide an updated price listing once agreed to adjustment(s) have been approved by the parties.
- D. <u>Indexes:</u> In most cases an index from the Bureau of Labor Standards (BLS) will be utilized; however, if there is more appropriate, industry recognized standard then that index may be selected.
 - i. The following definitions apply:
 - (1) Base Period: Month and year of the original contracted price (the solicitation close date)
 - (2) Base Price: Initial price quoted, proposed and/or contracted per unit of measure.
 - (3) Adjusted Price: Base Price after it has been adjusted in accordance with the applicable index change and instructions provided.
 - (4) Change Factor: The multiplier utilized to adjust the Base Price to the Adjusted Price.
 - (5) Weight %: The percent of the Base Price subject to adjustment based on an index change.
 - ii. Adjustment-Request Review: Each adjustment-request received will be reviewed and compared to changes in the index(es) identified below. Where applicable:
 - (1) Utilize final Compilation data instead of Preliminary data
 - (2) If the referenced index is no longer available shift up to the next higher category index.

Weight % or \$ of Base Price: 100 %	
Database Name: Consumer Price Ind	ex - All Urban Consumers
Series ID: CUUR0000SETC	
Not Seasonally Adjusted ■	Seasonally Adjusted
Geographical Area: U.S. City Average	2
Description of Series ID: Motor Vehicl	e Parts and Equipment
This Index shall apply to the following	items of the Bid Sheet / Cost Proposal: All Parts

Single Index: Adjust the Base Price by the same factor calculated for the index change.

Index at time of calculation

Ε.

Divided by index on solicitation close date
Equals Change Factor
Multiplied by the Base Rate
Equals the Adjusted Price

- F. If the requested adjustment is not supported by the referenced index, the City, as its sole discretion, may consider approving an adjustment on fully documented market increases.
- 15. <u>INTERLOCAL PURCHASING AGREEMENTS</u>: (applicable to competitively procured goods/services contracts).
 - A. The City has entered into Interlocal Purchasing Agreements with other governmental entities, pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code. The Contractor agrees to offer the same prices and terms and conditions to other eligible governmental agencies that have an interlocal agreement with the City.
 - B. The City does not accept any responsibility or liability for the purchases by other governmental agencies through an interlocal cooperative agreement.

16. CONTRACT MANAGER:

The following person is designated as Contract Manager, and will act as the contact point between the City and the Contractor during the term of the Contract:

Mike Robinson
512-530-7504
Mike.Robinson@austintexas.go∨

The above listed Contract Manager is not the authorized Contact Person for purposes of the <u>NON-COLLUSION</u>, <u>NON-CONFLICT OF INTEREST</u>, <u>AND ANTI-LOBBYING Provision</u> of this Section; and therefore, contact with the Contract Manager is prohibited during the no contact period.

CITY OF AUSTIN PURCHASING STATEMENT OF WORK FOR OEM PARTS FOR SCARIFIERS AND PLANERS

1. PURPOSE

- This Invitation for Bid (IFB) is to establish a Contract with a single authorized representative able to provide Original Equipment Manufacturer ("OEM") parts for City of Austin ("City") equipment. A Contract will be awarded to provide OEM parts for the scarifiers and skid steer planer attachments on an as-needed basis as stipulated in this solicitation.
- 1.2 The Contract will be utilized by the Aviation Services Department. The City reserves the right to allow other City Departments to utilize the Contract.
- 1.3 The City intends to solicit bids in response to this IFB-Best Value and reserves the right to compare those bids to established cooperative purchasing organization contracts operating within the State of Texas and authorized by the Austin City Council. Examples of City authorized cooperative purchasing organizations include, but are not limited to, the following: U.S. Communities, Houston-Galveston Area Council of Governments (HGAC), Texas Procurement and Support Services, Texas Local Government Purchasing Cooperative (BuyBoard), and The Cooperative Purchasing Network (TCPN).
- 1.4 It is the City's preference to award a single contract for the drivefine components needs of Aviation Services; however, if the cooperative purchasing prices are lower than the bid prices received, the City reserves the right to reject all bids entirely and make multiple contract awards between a cooperative and the best-evaluated, responsive and responsible bidder. Award may be based on individual or groups of specific line items, cost, convenience, or any criteria deemed by the City to be most advantageous. The City also reserves the right to refrain from awarding any lines or group of specific line items as a result of this solicitation and, instead, award the entire contract to a supplier available through a cooperative purchasing agreement.
- 1.5 A Successful Bidder may be awarded either the entire contract, the majority of the contract, or select line items.

2. DEFINITIONS

- 2.1 Stock Parts are defined as high turnover parts that are most commonly needed by the City.
- 2.2 Non-Stock Parts are defined as low usage, high dollar parts that are not kept in inventory.
- 2.3. Back-ordered (or Out-of-Stock) Parts are defined as parts that are not currently in stock but have been ordered or will be ordered.
- 2.4. Aviation Service Center is a term used to designate any City facility where vehicles and equipment are repaired or serviced.
- 2.5. Repairs means to return or restore a broken, damaged, or failed part, vehicle, or piece of equipment to an acceptable operating or usable condition or state.

3. CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATIONS

- 3.1. The Contractor shall accept payment by credit card, check, or Electronic Funds Transfer ("EFT") for all parts and repair services provided under the Contract, as indicated in the Invoices and Payment Provision in Section 0400. The Contractor shall factor the cost of processing credit card payments into the Offer. There shall be no additional charges, surcharges, or penalties to the City for payments made by credit card.
- 3.2. The Contractor must have a facility with adequate warehouse space and equipped with supplies and equipment necessary to satisfy the requirements of the contract.

4. CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PARTS

CITY OF AUSTIN PURCHASING STATEMENT OF WORK FOR OEM PARTS FOR SCARIFIERS AND PLANERS

- 4.1. The Contractor shall stock or have immediate access to a parts inventory sufficient to fill stock orders 95% of the time. All parts will be ordered on an as-needed basis.
- 4.2. Within five (14) business days of Contract award, the Contractor shall submit to the Aviation Services Contract Manager specified in Section 0400 two (2) CDs or electronic copies, if available, of the price list(s) upon which the markups are based on the bid sheet. The City will accept a printed copy only if no electronic format is available.
- 4.3. If a price list is no longer available in hard copy or electronic format, the Contractor shall grant the City access to a company website or company-owned local computer to research parts pricing for verification purposes. If the Contractor is unable to provide a CD, electronic copies, access to a company website, or a hard copy of the price list with their Offer, the Contractor shall document by written invoice from the supplier the cost for all parts charged to the City. The cost documentation must be submitted with each invoice.
- 4.4. The Contractor shall provide new parts, except for core components on renewed assemblies. Parts must meet all applicable federal, state and local requirements for quality and safety. If new parts are not available, or if Aviation Services requests them in writing (e.g. email), remanufactured or rebuilt parts may be used. Used, factory seconds, remanufactured, shopwom, demonstrator, prototype, and discontinued parts or materials are not acceptable.
- 4.5. The Contractor shall provide OEM parts. If OEM parts are not available, any parts that are not OEM shall be approved by the Aviation Service Center Manager or designee in writing (e.g., email), and shall be equivalent to or better than the manufacturer's parts originally installed on the respective unit.
- 4.6. The Contractor warrants that ALL parts are free from manufacturer defects in material and workmanship for a minimum of twelve (12) months or for the standard period as provided by the manufacturer, whichever is for the greatest length of time. This warranty shall provide for replacement parts and shall include pickup of the defective part and delivery of the replacement part at no additional cost.
- 4.7. The Contractor further warrants that the parts supplied under this Contract will not void existing vehicle/equipment or manufacturer's warranties.
- 4.8. The Contractor shall notify the Contract Manager and the Aviation Service Center Manager or designee of recall notices, warranty replacements, safety notices, or any applicable notice regarding the parts being sold. Failure to report this within fifteen (15) calendar days after receipt of notice may result in cancellation of the contract.
- 4.9. The Contractor shall provide a point of contact for receiving orders from the City. A City representative from the Aviation Service Center will contact the Contractor by e-mail, fax, or telephone to place an order for parts. The request will include the part number, part description, delivery requirements, and a unique delivery order number.
- 4.10. The Contractor shall confirm the quantity to be shipped to the ordering Aviation Service Center representative by telephone or email within two (2) hours after the order is sent.
- 4.11. The Contractor shall ship all orders for parts complete unless arrangements for partial shipments are made in advance. The Contractor shall provide, with each delivery, an invoice showing the description of each item, quantity, and unit price.
- 4.12. The Contractor shall provide, upon request, a monthly and/or yearly total of all parts purchased by Aviation Services. The City prefers that the report be in an electronic format that may be sorted, or other City-approved format. The report shall include date purchased, invoice number, part number, part description, price per part, and the total dollar amount for all parts purchased.

BID SHEET CITY OF AUSTIN ("CITY") - AVIATION SERVICES PARTS FOR SCARIFIERS AND PLANERS

Solicitation No.: IFB JRD0003

Special Instructions:

A bid of '0' (zero) will be interpreted by the City as a No-Charge (Free) item and the City will not expect to pay for that item. A bid of 'No Bid' will be interpreted by the City that the Responder does not wish to bid on that item.

The City reserves the right to award to one or more bidders, by line item based on value.

The quantities noted below are annual estimates and not a guarantee of actual volume. The City does not guarantee the purchase of the quantities listed. Quantities are provided as a guide to historical usage. Actual purchases may vary.

Failure to respond to each section of this bid sheet may result in disqualification of your bid.

SECTION 1 - MOST FREQUENTLY ORDERED ITEMS

The quantities noted below are annual estimates and not a guarantee of actual volume. The City does not guarantee the purchase of the quantities listed. Quantities are provided as a guide to historical usage. Actual purchases may be more or less.

#	CITY PART NUMBER	DESCRIPTION	VENDOR PART NUMBER	INDICATE MANUFACTURER OFFERED*	% MARK-UP OR DISCOUNT	UNIT PRICE TO CITY	UNIT	ESTIMATED ANNUAL QUANTITY	EXTENDED PRICE
1	HON.2026227	MUFFLER DEFLECTOR (SC8E)	RS-18340-ZE10		%	\$17.40	EA	1	\$17.40
2	SC.08.115	UPPER TOOTHED PULLEY FR200 (SC8E)	V518.1005		%	\$154.05	EA	1	\$154.05
3	795,00.76	MOUNTING EMERGENCY STOP BRACKET (SC8E)	S.SC8E.795.0076		%	\$86.00	EA	2	\$172.00
4	795.00.19	EMERGENCY STOP SWITCH TETHER W/ CORD (SC8E)	1050010		%	\$52.51	EA	2	\$105.02
5	AIW,16X2CRD	POWER CORD 16/2 (SC8E)	S.SC8E.AIW.16X2CRD		%	\$5.95	EA	2	\$11.90
6	SC.08.119	TOOTHED 640 BELT (SC8E)	V625.01.13		%	\$62.94	EA	3	\$188.82
7	SC.08.203	LOWER TOOTHED PULLEY (SC8E)	V518.1000.1		%	\$185.00	EA	4	\$740.00
8	NB.20.112	SHAFT NUT (SC8E)	979.9020.1		%	\$9.95	EA	5	\$49.75
9	SC.08.602	FLANGE BEARING (SC8E)	979,1000,12		%	\$25.00	EA	4	\$100.00
10	SC.08.604	ENDPLATE BEARING (SC8E)	169004		%	\$20.00	EA	2	\$40.00
11	SC.08.605	DRIVE BUSHING (SC8E)	514.1000		%	\$55.00	EA	3	\$165.00
12	SC.08.500	COMPLETE DRUM (SC8E)	504.4021.12		%	\$195.00	EA	5	\$975.00
13	SC.08.510	12MM FLAIL SHAFT (SC8E)	S056.10.0562.4		%	\$11.76	EΑ	20	\$235.20
14	SC.08.401	HEXAGONAL DRIVE SHAFT (SC8E)	513.1000.1		%	\$99.45	EA	2	\$198.90
15	SC.10.000	BLACK SC10E CHASSIS w/ DRUM (SC10E)	S.SC10E.SC.10.000	1.00	%	\$2,599.00	EΑ	1	\$2,599.00
16	VAC.8A02261	2 INCH INLET BULL CAP 100 (SC10E)	S.SC10E.VAC.8A02261		%	\$2.95	EA	3	\$8.85
17	VAC.HS2.00TR7	VACUUM HOSE (SC10E)	SC.SC10E.VAC.HS2.00TR7		%	\$25.00	EA	3	\$ 75.00
18	SC.10.117	TOOTHED 840 BELT (SC10E)	S.SC10E.SC 10,117		%	\$69.95	EΑ	5	\$349.75
19	SC.10.156	UPPER TOOTH PULLEY (SC 10E)	S.SC10E.SC.10,156		%	\$165.00	EΑ	3	\$495,00
20	SC.10.121	TENSIONING PULLEY (SC10E)	V.SC30M133		%	\$80.38	EA	4	\$321.52
21	SC.10.602	FLANGE BEARING (SC10E)	S.SC10E.SC.10.602		%	\$ 185.00	EA	4	\$740.00
22	SC.10.604	ENDPLATE BEARING (SC10E)	V.SC30M212		%	\$30.00	EA	2	\$60.00
23	SC.10.401	HEXAGONAL DRIVE SHAFT (SC10E)	V654.01.03		%	\$225.00	EA	2	\$450.00

24	SC.10.403	LOWER TOOTHED PULLEY (SC10E)	S.SC10E.SC.10.403		%	\$215.00	EA	4	\$860.00
25	SC.10.510	FLAIL 9/16" SHAFT (SC10E)	S12.08.063		%	\$7.98	EA	24	\$191.52
26	7165544	609, 6 MM 24" WIDE SMOOTHCUT DRUM (Bobcat Planer)	NO BID		%	\$0.00	EA	2	\$0,00
27	6672259	STANDARD ALL PURPOSE BIT (Bobcat Planer)	NO BID		%	\$0.00	EA	150	\$0.00
28	6634443	BIT HOLDER (Bobcat Planer)	NO BID		%	\$0.00	EA	75	\$0.00
29	6815562	CYLINDER (Bobcat Planer)	NO BID		%	\$0.00	EA	2	\$0,00
30	6659946	STANDARD ALL PURPOSE BIT (Cat Planer)	NO BID		%	\$0.00	EA	120	\$0.00
31	6676485	MAIN PUMP (Cat Planer)	NO BID		%	\$0.00	EA	2	\$0.00
32		BIT HOLDER (Cat Planer)	NO BID	,	%	\$0.00	EA	60	\$0.00
					•	•	TOTAL		

SECTION 2 -- DEALER DISCOUNT OR MARKUP FOR NON-SPECIFIED ITEMS (FOR INFORMATION ONLY)

Bidder must be able to provide All other parts for a Scanifier and Planer.

FAILURE TO PROVIDE PRICING INFORMATION FOR THIS SECTION MAY RESULT IN DISQUALIFICATION OF YOUR BID.

Indicate below the Mark-Up from Dealer Cost. OR Discount Off List Price the City will be charged for all items not listed above in Section 2.

include Price List name, number and date. If there is no price list, please indicate "no list" and provide your percentage discount or markup to your cost. If no price list is available, the Contractor must furnish with each invoice to the City, proof of Dealer Cost with a copy of invoice from supplier.

Indicate below the Manufacturer's Price List(s) offered in response to this solicitation. The City will use the Price List to purchase other items not listed in Section 1.

#	MANUFACTURER'S PRICE LIST*	DATE OF PRICE LIST**	NAME AND NUMBER OF PRICE LIST***	MARK-UP FROM DEALER COST or DISCOUNT OFF OF LIST PRICE	CHECK DISCOUNT OR MARKUP OFFERED TO CITY
33	SMITH Manufacturing	11/06/13	GOVERNMENT	0%	☑ DISCOUNT ☑ MARK UP
34				%	☐ DISCOUNT ☐ MARK UP
35				%	☐ DISCOUNT ☐ MARK UP

INDICATE MANUFACTURER OFFERED FOR THIS ITEM.

DATE OF PRICE LIST - The effective date of the price list listed above shall be disclosed. This Bid will be based on the latest published price list. (Refer to Published Price List, Section 0400.)

PRICE LIST NAME AND NUMBER -- Offeror shall include the current price list Name and Number used for the pricing they included in the Bid.

BIDDER MUST SUBMIT TWO (2) PRINTED COPIES OF ITS SIGNED BID - one original and one copy.

Two (2) CDs or electronic copies, if available, of the price list(s) upon which the markups are based shall be submitted within five (5) working days after notice of award. The City will accept a printed copy only if no electronic format is available.

ALL PAGES OF THE BID SHEET MUST BE RETURNED OR THE BID MAY BE DISQUALIFIED.

DELIVERY TERMS:

FOB DESTINATION, FREIGHT PRE-PAID AND ALLOWED

DELIVERY METHOD: COMMON CARRIER: UPS VENDOR STAFF Bobley Cosel

COMPANY NAME: SSPS INC dba SMITH Manufacturing

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE:

PRINTED NAME: Bobby Cissell

EMAIL ADDRESS: cutters@smithmfg.com



actory. 1610 South Dixie Highway Pompano Beach, FL 33060 Prone. 1-954-941-9744

E-main cutters@smithmfg.com

Quotation

Date	Quotation #
10/29/2013	13-17463

Rep

FOB

Quote for:

City of Austin - Aviation Jonathan Dalchau ph: 512-974-2938 124 W 8th Street Room 310

Austin, TX 78701

		Tenns	15500	Kep	100
		Net 30	JЕ	HOUSE	DEST
Part No.	Description		Qty	Price	Total
BID	Bid open date Wednesday, November 6, 2013 at 2:15 PM IFB # JR		1	0.00	0.00
	Description: Furnish and Deliver OEM Parts and Repair for Scarifiers	and Planers -			
100	SC8E	: D 1 01		0.00	0.00
400	Freight and Shipping Prepaid to: City of Austin Dept of Aviation, Austin and Alexander President Language TV 78710	stin Bergstrom Int'I	1	0.00	0.00
5056 10 0562 4	Airport, 9400 A Freight Lane, Austin, TX 78719 12MM FLAIL SHAFT (SC8E, SC.08.510) (or 1/2" shafts, customer:	calact)	20	11.76	235.20
S056.10.0562.4 504.4021.12	F200 drum assembly with 1/2 spider support c/w 2 endplates with har		5	195.00	975.00
304.4021.12	- 12 mm hardened shafts, smaller diameter (SC8E, SC.08.500)	aware and set of 4)	193.00	973.00
RS-18340-ZE0-10	MUFFLER DEFLECTOR (SC8E, HON.2026227)		1 1	17.40	17.40
V518.1005	UPPER TOOTHED PULLEY FR200 (SC8E, SC.08.115)		i	154.05	154.05
S.SC8E.795.00.76	MOUNTING EMERGENCY STOP BRACKET (SC8E, 795.00.76)		2	86.00	172.00
1050010	stop (kill) switch assembly - w/ corded lanyard (SC8E, 795,00.19)		2	52.51	105.02
S.SC8E.AIW.16X	4 feet, wiring for kill switch, 16/2 (SC8E, AJW.16X2CRD)		2 2	5.95	11.90
V625.01.13	640 HTD drive belt - SC.08.119)		3	62.94	188.82
V518.1000.1	LOWER TOOTHED PULLEY (SC8E - SC.08.203)		4	185.00	740.00
979.9020.1	SHAFT NUT (SC8E, NB.20.112)		5	9.95	49.75
169004	6006 bearing, ENDPLATE BEARING (SC8E, SC.08.604)		2	20.00	40.00
979.1000.12	6303 bearing, FLANGE (SC8E, SC.08.602)		4	25.00	100.00
514.1000	Hex DRIVE BUSHING (SC8E, SC.08.605)		3	55.00	165.00
513.1000.1	HEXAGONAL DRIVE SHAFT (SC8E, SC.08.401)		2	99.45	198.90
S.SC10E.SC.10.000	BLACK SC10E CHASSIS w/ DRUM (SC10E, SC,10.000) - NO POV SPS10 NO POWER)	WER (SMITH	1	2,599.00	2,599.00
S.SCI0E.VAC.8A	2" vacuum coupler inlet. cap (SC10E, VAC.8A02261)		3	2.95	8.85
S.SC10E.VAC.HS	VACUUM HOSE, 2 feet length (SCI0E, VAC.HS2.00TR7)		3	25.00	75.00
S.SC10E.SC.10.117	TOOTHED 840 BELT (SC10E, SC.10.117) - PLEASE CONFIRM IF	*840-8M50 HTD	5	69.95	349.75
	drive belt - OR *880-8M50 HTD drive belt			ĺ	
	PULLEY, UPPER TOOTH GAS FR250 FR350 VA25S (SC10E, SC.	10.156)-	3	165.00	495.00
	FLANGE for 6210 bearing (SC10E, SC.10.602)		4	185.00	740.00
S.SC10E.SC.10.403	LOWER TOOTHED PULLEY for 8M50 HTD drive belt (SC10E, SC		4	215.00	860.00
V.SC30M133	Belt Tensioning Roller assembly with bearing - VA30/FS300/VA25S/	/SC10E (644128)	4	80.38	321.52
V CC20M212	SC.10.121	OP COLORS	_	20.00	70.00
V.SC30M212	6210 Bearing, for side-plate endplate bearing - NO RETAINER (SCI	OE, SC.10.604)	2	30.00	60.00
V654.01.03	SC10E hex drive shaft (SC.10.401)	2" (CC 00 510)	2	225.00	450.00
S12.08.063	Shaft, hardened "extended life" tool-steel, chrome plated 12mm x 8.6	3 (SC.08.510)	24	7.98	191.52

Thank you for the opportunity to quote your requirements.

SMITH guarantees best prices and quality.

If you have any questions, or would like to order, please call +1-954-941-9744

You may confirm your order by email info@smithmfg.com or fax +1-954-545-0348.

Prices valid for 30 days or while supplies last. SMITH Website: smithmfg.com

SMITH Company, SMITH Manufacturing Co, SSPS, Inc. ("Seller") FEI#

Seller's complete terms and conditions at smithmageom/termsconditions.php

Subtotal

Terms

Issue...



1610 South Dixie Highway Pompano Beach, FL 33060 Prone. 1-954-941-9744

Email custers@smithallg.com

Quotation

Date	Quotation #
10/29/2013	13-17463

Quote for:

City of Austin - Aviation Jonathan Dalchau ph: 512-974-2938 124 W 8th Street Room 310 Austin, TX 78701

		Terms	I s sue	Rep	FOB
		Net 30	JЕ	HOUSE	DEST
Part No.	Description		Qty	Price	Total
Special	***THE FOLLOWING PARTS WILL NOT BE BID AND WILL NO STANDARD ALL PURPOSE BIT (Bobeat Planer 6672259) BIT HOLDER (Bobeat Planer 6634443) BIT HOLDER (Cat Planer) STANDARD ALL PURPOSE BIT (6659946 Cat Planer) 609, 6 MM 24" WIDE SMOOTHCUT DRUM (Bobeat Planer 716554 MAIN PUMP (Cat Planer 6676485) CYLINDER (Bobeat Planer 6815562)				0.00

Thank you for the opportunity to quote your requirements. SMITH guarantees best prices and quality.

If you have any questions, or would like to order, please call +1-954-941-9744

You may confirm your order by email info@smithmfg.com or fax +1-954-545-0348.

Prices valid for 30 days or while supplies last. SMITH Website: smithmfg.com

SMITH Company, SMITH Manufacturing Co, SSPS, Inc. ("Seller") FEI# Seller's complete terms and conditions at smithmage@m/termsconditions.php

Subtotal

\$9,303.68

City of Austin

Purchasing Office

Local Business Presence Identification Form

A firm (Offeror or Subcontractor) is considered to have a Local Business Presence if the firm is headquartered in the Austin Corporate City Limits, or has a branch office located in the Austin Corporate City Limits in operation for the last five (5) years. The City defines headquarters as the administrative center where most of the important functions and full responsibility for managing and coordinating the business activities of the firm are located. The City defines branch office as a smaller, remotely located office that is separate from a firm's headquarters that offers the services requested and required under this solicitation.

OFFEROR MUST SUBMIT THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FOR EACH LOCAL BUSINESS (INCLUDING THE OFFEROR, IF APPLICABLE).

NOTE: ALL FIRMS MUST BE IDENTIFIED ON THE MBE/WBE COMPLIANCE PLAN OR NO GOALS UTILIZATION PLAN.

USE ADDITIONAL PAGES AS NECESSARY

OFFEROR:

Name of Local Firm	N/A			
Address				
Is Firm located in the Corporate City Limits? (circle one)	Yes	No		
In business at this location for past 5 yrs?	Yes	No		
Location Type:	Headquarters Yes	No	Branch Yes	No

SUBCONTRACTOR(S):

Name of Local Firm	N/A				
Address	and the second of the second o	www.dimmilian.gr	y main na taonaisean a main no chaodhan taon an dhainn a' bhonaidh an dh'i fheir an	haddaaan gaar aan dhaddar ah	(A. C. (. (. (. (. (. (. (. (. (. (. (. (. (.
Is Firm located in the Corporate City Limits? (circle one)	Yes	No)		
In business at this location for past 5 yrs?	Yes	No)		
Location Type:	Headquarters Yes	No	Branch	Yes	No

City of Austin

Purchasing Office

Local Business Presence Identification Form

SUBCONTRACTOR(S)								
Name of Local Firm	N/A	A COMMENT OF THE PARTY OF THE P	The last of a special of the angle of the an	~~~~	AND THE REAL PROPERTY OF THE P			1111777711170111701170117011701701701701
Address	1	continue and continue and and and	***************************************		go, o, o, o, mango, m, quandra and rou a, quandra and a mail transce a plan	ana and a second desire and a second desire	ador capo este en ango estadolo boros que provincia basicado	THE RESERVE AND PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY OF TH
Is Firm located in the Corporate City Limits? (circle one)	Yes	ing ang ang pangang pa		No	and the second seco			A
In business at this location for past 5 yrs?	Yes			No			***************************************	
Location Type:	Headquarters	Yes	No	***************************************	Branch	Yes	No	

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

THE STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF TRAVIS

I certify that my responses and the information provided on **Form 0605** are true and correct to the best of my personal knowledge and belief and that I have made no willful misrepresentations in this Section, nor have I withheld any relevant information in my statements and answers to questions. I am aware that any information given by me in this Section may be investigated and I hereby give my full permission for any such investigation and I fully acknowledge that any misrepresentations or omissions in my responses and information may cause my offer to be rejected.

mg
7

END

CITY OF AUSTIN PURCHASING OFFICE REFERENCE SHEET

Please Complete and Return This Form with the Offer

Solicitation Number:	JRD0003				
Offeror's Name	SMITH Manufacturing Co. Inc		D	ate 11/15/20	013
whom products and/o	ish, with the Offer, the following in r services have been provided tha ences to this form, click the Add Rel	at are simila	r to th		d by this Solicitation.
Company's Name	Stripes and Stops Co. Inc.				
Name of Contact	Clif Hoffman	Contact Ti	tle [Shop Foremar	١
Present Address	2323 Greens Road				
City	Houston	State Texa	S		Zip Code 77032
Telephone Number	(281) 821-3307	FAX Numb	er	(281) 821-56	680
Email Address	choffman@stripesandstops.com				
Company's Name	Total Highway Maintenance				
Name of Contact	Blane Pierson	Contact Ti	tle S	Shop Foremar	n
Present Address	930 KCK Way				
City	Cedar Hill	State Texa			Zip Code 75104
Telephone Number	(469) 523-0180	FAX Numb	er	(469) 523-0	181
Email Address	blane@thmtx.com				
Company's Name	Barricades Unlimited				
Name of Contact	James Springer	Contact Ti	tle [s	Shop Foremar	n
Present Address	2002 Clovis Road				
City	Lubbock	State Texa	15		Zip Code 79415
Telephone Number	(806) 744-1520	FAX Numb	oer	(806) 744-7	148
Email Address	jamess@barricadesunlimited.com		-		

City of Austin, Texas EQUAL EMPLOYMENT/FAIR HOUSING OFFICE NON-DISCRIMINATION CERTIFICATION

SOLICITATION NO	JRD0003

City of Austin, Texas Human Rights Commission

To: City of Austin, Texas, ("OWNER")

I hereby certify that our firm conforms to the Code of the City of Austin, Section 5-4-2 as reiterated below:

Chapter 5-4. Discrimination in Employment by City Contractors.

Sec. 4-2 Discriminatory Employment Practices Prohibited. As an Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) employer, the Contractor will conduct its personnel activities in accordance with established federal, state and local EEO laws and regulations and agrees:

- (B) (1) Not to engage in any discriminatory employment practice defined in this chapter.
 - (2) To take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without discrimination being practiced against them as defined in this chapter. Such affirmative action shall include, but not be limited to: all aspects of employment, including hiring, placement, upgrading, transfer, demotion, recruitment, recruitment advertising; selection for training and apprenticeship, rates of pay or other form of compensation, and layoff or termination.
 - (3) To post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by OWNER setting forth the provisions of this chapter.
 - (4) To state in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, creed, color, religion, national origin, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, veteran status, sex or age.
 - (5) To obtain a written statement from any labor union or labor organization furnishing labor or service to Contractors in which said union or organization has agreed not to engage in any discriminatory employment practices as defined in this chapter and to take affirmative action to implement policies and provisions of this chapter.
 - (6) To cooperate fully with OWNER's Human Rights Commission in connection with any investigation or conciliation effort of said Human Rights Commission to ensure that the purpose of the provisions against discriminatory employment practices are being carried out.
 - (7) To require compliance with provisions of this chapter by all subcontractors having fifteen or more employees who hold any subcontract providing for the expenditure of \$2,000 or more in connection with any contract with OWNER subject to the terms of this chapter.

For the purposes of this Offer and any resulting Contract, Contractor adopts the provisions of the City's Minimum Standard Nondiscrimination Policy set forth below.

City of Austin Minimum Standard Non-Discrimination in Employment Policy:

As an Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) employer, the Contractor will conduct its personnel activities in accordance with established federal, state and local EEO laws and regulations.

The Contractor will not discriminate against any applicant or employee based on race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, religion, veteran status, gender identity, disability, or sexual orientation. This policy covers all aspects of employment, including hiring, placement, upgrading, transfer, demotion, recruitment, recruitment advertising, selection for training and apprenticeship, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and layoff or termination.

Further, employees who experience discrimination, sexual harassment, or another form of harassment should immediately report it to their supervisor. If this is not a suitable avenue for addressing their complaint, employees are advised to contact another member of management or their human resources representative. No employee shall be discriminated against, harassed, intimidated, nor suffer any reprisal as a result of reporting a violation of this policy. Furthermore, any employee, supervisor, or manager who becomes aware of any such discrimination or harassment should immediately report it to executive management or the human resources office to ensure that such conduct does not continue.

Contractor agrees that to the extent of any inconsistency, omission, or conflict with its current non-discrimination employment policy, the Contractor has expressly adopted the provisions of the City's Minimum Non-Discrimination Policy contained in Section 5-4-2 of the City Code and set forth above, as the Contractor's Non-Discrimination Policy or as an amendment to such Policy and such provisions are intended to not only supplement the Contractor's policy, but will also supersede the Contractor's policy to the extent of any conflict.

UPON CONTRACT AWARD, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A COPY TO THE CITY OF THE CONTRACTOR'S NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY ON COMPANY LETTERHEAD, WHICH CONFORMS IN FORM, SCOPE, AND CONTENT TO THE CITY'S MINIMUM NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY, AS SET FORTH HEREIN, OR THIS NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY, WHICH HAS BEEN ADOPTED BY THE CONTRACTOR FOR ALL PURPOSES (THE FORM OF WHICH HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE CITY'S EQUAL EMPLOYMENT/FAIR HOUSING OFFICE), WILL BE CONSIDERED THE CONTRACTOR'S NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY WITHOUT THE REQUIREMENT OF A SEPARATE SUBMITTAL.

Sanctions:

Our firm understands that non-compliance with Chapter 5-4 may result in sanctions, including termination of the contract and suspension or debarment from participation in future City contracts until deemed compliant with the requirements of Chapter 5-4.

Term:

The Contractor agrees that this Section 0800 Non-Discrimination Certificate or the Contractor's separate conforming policy, which the Contractor has executed and filed with the Owner, will remain in force and effect for one year from the date of filing. The Contractor further agrees that, in consideration of the receipt of continued Contract payments, the Contractor's Non-Discrimination Policy will automatically renew from year-to-year for the term of the underlying Contract.

Dated this 19th day of McCCCCOLD 2013.

CONTRACTOR

Authorized Signature

Title

Sales Manager

City of Austin, Texas NON-SUSPENSION OR DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION

SOLICITATION NO.	JRD0003

The City of Austin is prohibited from contracting with or making prime or sub-awards to parties that are suspended or debarred or whose principals are suspended or debarred from Federal, State, or City of Austin Contracts. Covered transactions include procurement contracts for goods or services equal to or in excess of \$25,000.00 and all non-procurement transactions. This certification is required for all Vendors on all City of Austin Contracts to be awarded and all contract extensions with values equal to or in excess of \$25,000.00 or more and all non-procurement transactions.

The Offeror hereby certifies that its firm and its principals are not currently suspended or debarred from bidding on any Federal, State, or City of Austin Contracts.

Contractor's Name:	SMITH Manufacturing Co. Inc		
Signature of Officer or Authorized Representative:	Bolthy Cosell	Date:	11/15/2013
Printed Name:	Bobby Cissell		
Title:	Sales Manager		

CITY OF AUSTIN NON-COLLUSION, NON-CONFLICT OF INTEREST, AND ANTI-LOBBYING AFFIDAVIT SOLICITATION NO. JRD0003

FOR

OEM Parts for Scarifiers and Planers

State of Texas

County of Travis

The undersigned "Affiant" is a duly authorized representative of the Offeror for the purpose of making this Affidavit, and, after being first duly sworn, has deposed and stated and hereby deposes and states, to the best of his or her personal knowledge and belief as follows:

The term "Offeror", as used herein, includes the individual or business entity submitting the Offer and for the purpose of this Affidavit includes the directors, officers, partners, managers, members, principals, owners, agents, representatives, employees, other parties in interest of the Offeror, and anyone or any entity acting for or on behalf of the Offeror, including a subcontractor in connection with this Offer.

- 1. Anti-Collusion Statement. The Offeror has not in any way directly or indirectly:
 - a. colluded, conspired, or agreed with any other person, firm, corporation, Offeror or potential Offeror to the amount of this Offer or the terms or conditions of this Offer.
 - b. paid or agreed to pay any other person, firm, corporation Offeror or potential Offeror any money or anything of value in return for assistance in procuring or attempting to procure a contract or in return for establishing the prices in the attached Offer or the Offer of any other Offeror.
- 2. Preparation of Solicitation and Contract Documents. The Offeror has not received any compensation or a promise of compensation for participating in the preparation or development of the underlying Solicitation or Contract documents. In addition, the Offeror has not otherwise participated in the preparation or development of the underlying Solicitation or Contract documents, except to the extent of any comments or questions and responses in the solicitation process, which are available to all Offerors, so as to have an unfair advantage over other Offerors, provided that the Offeror may have provided relevant product or process information to a consultant in the normal course of its business.
- 3. Participation in Decision Making Process. The Offeror has not participated in the evaluation of Offers or other decision making process for this Solicitation, and, if Offeror is awarded a Contract hereunder, no individual, agent, representative, consultant, subcontractor, or subconsultant associated with Offeror, who may have been involved in the evaluation or other decision making process for this Solicitation, will have any direct or indirect financial interest in the Contract, provided that the Offeror may have provided relevant product or process information to a consultant in the normal course of its business.
- 4. Present Knowledge. Offeror is not presently aware of any potential or actual conflicts of interest regarding this Solicitation, which either enabled Offeror to obtain an advantage over other Offerors or would prevent Offeror from advancing the best interests of the City in the course of the performance of the Contract.
- 5. City Code. As provided in Sections 2-7-61 through 2-7-65 of the City Code, no individual with a substantial interest in Offeror is a City official or employee or is related to any City official or employee within the first or second degree of consanguinity or affinity.
- 6. Chapter 176 Conflict of Interest Disclosure. In accordance with Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code, the Offeror:
 - a. does not have an employment or other business relationship with any local government officer of the City or a family member of that officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable income;

CITY OF AUSTIN NON-COLLUSION, NON-CONFLICT OF INTEREST, AND ANTI-LOBBYING AFFIDAVIT

- b. has not given a local government officer of the City one or more gifts, other than gifts of food, lodging, transportation, or entertainment accepted as a guest, that have an aggregate value of more than \$250 in the twelve month period preceding the date the officer becomes aware of the execution of the Contract or that OWNER is considering doing business with the Offeror.
- c. as required by Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code, Offeror must file a Conflict of Interest Questionnaire with the Office of the City Clerk no later than 5:00 P.M. on the seventh (7) business day after the commencement of contract discussions or negotiations with the City or the submission of an Offer, or other writing related to a potential Contract with the City. The questionnaire is available on line at the following website for the City Clerk:

		y or the submission of an Offer, or other writing related to a potential Contract with ne questionnaire is available on line at the following website for the City Clerk:
		http://www.austintexas.gov/department/conflict-interest-questionnaire
	There are stat	utory penalties for failure to comply with Chapter 176.
		ennot affirmatively swear and subscribe to the forgoing statements, the Offeror shall ed written explanation in the space provided below or, as necessary, on separate nexed hereto.
	Offeror's Explanation:	
7.	7N, between th Offeror has not	Ordinance. As set forth in the Solicitation Instructions, Section 0200, paragraph e date that the Solicitation was issued and the date of full execution of the Contract, made and will not make a representation to a City official or to a City employee, other ized Contact Person for the Solicitation, except as permitted by the Ordinance.
	ontractor's Name	SMITH Manufacturing Co. Inc
Р	rinted Name:	Bobby Cissell
T	itle:	Sales Manager
		or Authorized Representative: TAMMY BUNDEY MY COMMISSION #F6054938 EXPIRES September 17, 2017 [407] 398-0153 FloridaNotaryService.com
St	ubscribed and sw	orn to before me this <u>/ヴ/゙</u> day of <u>///ぴパピッピス</u> , 20 <u>/3</u> .
/		

Notary Puelic

My Commission Expires September 17th 217

Revised 02/14/12

City of Austin, Texas NONRESIDENT BIDDER PROVISIONS

SOLICITATION NO.	JRD0003

A. Bidder must answer the following questions in accordance with Vernon's Texas Statutes and Codes Annotated Government Code 2252.002, as amended:

Is the Bidder that is making and submitting this Bid a "Resident Bidder" or a "Non-resident Bidder"?

- Texas Resident Bidder A Bidder whose principal place of business is in Texas and includes a Contractor whose ultimate parent company or majority owner has its principal place of business in Texas.
- Non-resident Bidder
- B. If the Bidder is a "Nonresident Bidder" does the state, in which the Nonresident Bidder's principal place of business is located, have a law requiring a Nonresident Bidder of that state to bid a certain amount or percentage under the Bid of a Resident Bidder of that state in order for the nonresident Bidder of that state to be awarded a Contract on such bid in said state?

Bidder's Name:	SMITH Manufacturing Co. Inc		
Signature of Officer or Authorized Representative:	Colly Civille	Date:	11/15/2013
Printed Name:	Bobby Cissell		
Title:	Sales Manager		

MINORITY- AND WOMEN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (MBE/WBE) PROCUREMENT PROGRAM NO GOALS FORM

SOLICITATION NUMBER: JRD0003 PROJECT NAME: OEM PARTS AND REPAIR FOR SCARIFIERS AND PLANERS The City of Austin has determined that no goals are appropriate for this project. Even though no goals have been established for this solicitation, the Bidder/Proposer is required to comply with the City's MBE/WBE Procurement Program, if areas of subcontracting are identified. If any service is needed to perform the Contract and the Bidder/Proposer does not perform the service with its own workforce or if supplies or materials are required and the Bidder/Proposer does not have the supplies or materials in its inventory, the Bidder/Proposer shall contact the Small and Minority Business Resources Department (SMBR) at (512) 974-7600 to obtain a list of MBE and WBE firms available to perform the service or provide the supplies or materials. The Bidder/Proposer must also make a Good Faith Effort to use available MBE and WBE firms. Good Faith Efforts include but are not limited to contacting the listed MBE and WBE firms to solicit their interest in performing on the Contract; using MBE and WBE firms that have shown an interest, meet qualifications, and are competitive in the market; and documenting the results of the contacts. Will subcontractors or sub-consultants or suppliers be used to perform portions of this Contract? If no, please sign the No Goals Form and submit it with your Bid/Proposal in a sealed envelope. If yes, please contact SMBR to obtain further instructions and an availability list and perform Good Faith Efforts. Complete and submit the No Goals Form and the No Goals Utilization Plan with your Bid/Proposal in a sealed envelope. After Contract award, if your firm subcontracts any portion of the Contract, it is a requirement to complete Good Faith Efforts and the No Goals Utilization Plan, listing any subcontractor, subconsultant, or supplier. Return the completed Plan to the Project Manager or the Contract Manager. I understand that even though no goals have been established, I must comply with the City's MBE/WBE Procurement Program if subcontracting areas are identified. I agree that this No Goals Form and No Goals Utilization Plan shall become a part of my Contract with the City of Austin. S. Inc oba SMITH Manutacturing horized Representative (Print or Type) 11/04/2013 Signature

MINORITY- AND WOMEN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (MBE/WBE) PROCUREMENT PROGRAM NO GOALS UTILIZATION PLAN

(Please duplicate as needed)

PROJECT NAME: OEM PARTS A			
PRIME CO	NTRACTOR/CONSU	LTANT COMPANY INFORM	MATION
Name of Contractor/Consultant		200,000 (a)	
Address	**************************************		
City, State Zip			
Phone	والمنافقة والمنافذة	Fax Numbe	<u>r</u>
Name of Contact Person			
Is company City certified? I certify that the information included in t		BE 🗌 WBE 🗌 MBE/WBE Jo	
Name and Title of Authorized Repres	sentative (Print or Type)	
Signature			Date
Signature Provide a list of all proposed subcontracte	ors/subconsultants/suppl	iers that will be used in the perfo	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Signature Provide a list of all proposed subcontracte Good Faith Efforts documentation if n Sub-Contractor/Consultant City of Austin Certified	ors/subconsultants/suppl	iers that will be used in the perfo	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Signature Provide a list of all proposed subcontractor Good Faith Efforts documentation if n Sub-Contractor/Consultant City of Austin Certified Vendor ID Code	ors/subconsultants/suppl ion MBE/WBE firms w	ers that will be used in the perfo ill be used. Ethnic/Gender Code:	rmance of this Contract. Attach
Signature Provide a list of all proposed subcontractor Good Faith Efforts documentation if n Sub-Contractor/Consultant City of Austin Certified Vendor ID Code Contact Person	ors/subconsultants/suppl ion MBE/WBE firms w MBE WBE	ers that will be used in the perfo ill be used.	rmance of this Contract. Attach
Signature Provide a list of all proposed subcontracte Good Faith Efforts documentation if n Sub-Contractor/Consultant City of Austin Certified Vendor ID Code	ors/subconsultants/suppl ion MBE/WBE firms w	ers that will be used in the perfo ill be used. Ethnic/Gender Code:	rmance of this Contract. Attach
Signature Provide a list of all proposed subcontractor Good Faith Efforts documentation if n Sub-Contractor/Consultant City of Austin Certified Vendor ID Code Contact Person	ors/subconsultants/suppl ion MBE/WBE firms w MBE WBE	ers that will be used in the perfo ill be used. Ethnic/Gender Code:	rmance of this Contract. Attach
Signature Provide a list of all proposed subcontracte Good Faith Efforts documentation if n Sub-Contractor/Consultant City of Austin Certified Vendor ID Code Contact Person Amount of Subcontract List commodity codes & description of	ors/subconsultants/suppl ion MBE/WBE firms w MBE WBE	ers that will be used in the perfo ill be used. Ethnic/Gender Code:	rmance of this Contract. Attach
Signature Provide a list of all proposed subcontracte Good Faith Efforts documentation if n Sub-Contractor/Consultant City of Austin Certified Vendor ID Code Contact Person Amount of Subcontract List commodity codes & description of services	ors/subconsultants/suppl ion MBE/WBE firms w MBE WBE	ers that will be used in the perfo ill be used. Ethnic/Gender Code:	rmance of this Contract. Attach
Signature Provide a list of all proposed subcontracte Good Faith Efforts documentation if n Sub-Contractor/Consultant City of Austin Certified Vendor ID Code Contact Person Amount of Subcontract List commodity codes & description of services Sub-Contractor/Consultant City of Austin Certified Vendor ID Code	ors/subconsultants/supplion MBE/WBE firms w MBE WBE	ers that will be used in the perfo ill be used. Ethnic/Gender Code: Phone Nu	rmance of this Contract. Attach
Signature Provide a list of all proposed subcontracte Good Faith Efforts documentation if n Sub-Contractor/Consultant City of Austin Certified Vendor ID Code Contact Person Amount of Subcontract List commodity codes & description of services Sub-Contractor/Consultant City of Austin Certified	ors/subconsultants/supplion MBE/WBE firms w MBE WBE	ers that will be used in the perfo ill be used. Ethnic/Gender Code: Phone Nu	mance of this Contract. Attach
Signature Provide a list of all proposed subcontracte Good Faith Efforts documentation if n Sub-Contractor/Consultant City of Austin Certified Vendor ID Code Contact Person Amount of Subcontract List commodity codes & description of services Sub-Contractor/Consultant City of Austin Certified Vendor ID Code	ors/subconsultants/supplion MBE/WBE firms w MBE WBE	ers that will be used in the perfo ill be used. Ethnic/Gender Code: Phone Nu Ethnic/Gender Code:	mance of this Contract. Attach

Date ____

Director/Deputy Director___

Reviewing Counselor ___



ADDENDUM INVITATION FOR BID OEM PARTS FOR SCARIFIERS AND PLANERS CITY OF AUSTIN, TEXAS

IFBE	V: JRD0003	Addendum No: 1	Date of Addendum: October 14, 2013
This Bid.	addendum is to i	ncorporate the following chan	ges to the above-referenced Invitation for
1.0			ion 0400, Supplemental Purchase the Series ID and Geographical Area
2.0	ALL OTHER T	ERMS AND CONDITIONS RE	MAIN THE SAME.
		S affixed below, this Addendurenced Invitation for Bid.	m is hereby incorporated into and made a
APP	ROVED BY:	Just Dald Jonathan Dalchau Purchasing Office	10/14/13 I, Buyer I I Date
<u>557</u>	NOWLEDGED B S. Inc dow S for Name M	Y: MITH Boldey (analacturing Authorized	Signature i(/o4/2013

<u>RETURN A COPY OF THIS ADDENDUM</u> to the Purchasing Office, City of Austin, Texas with your bid. Failure to do so may constitute grounds for rejection of your bid.



TO:	Veronica Lara, Director Department of Small and Minority Business Resources
FROM: DATE:	Jonathan Dalchau, Buyer II October 4, 2013
SUBJECT:	Approval to use Zero Goals for Solicitation Project Name: JRD0003 Scarifier and Planer Parts Commodity Code(s): 1751955; 92915; 76060 Estimated Value: \$270,000
The Purchas	sing Office has determined that the following Goals are appropriate for this Commodity solicitation:
X	No Goals (Goal of 0%)
This determi	nation is based on the following reasons:
This solicitat	ion will be bid by and awarded to a prime contractor. No subcontracting opportunities have been identified.
Program, ple	oh 8.2.1 of the Rules Governing the Minority and Women Owned Business Enterprise Procurement ease approve the use of the above goals by completing and returning the below endorsement. If you have lease call me at 974-2939.
Apr	proval is hereby granted to use the above Goals.
App	proval is hereby denied. Recommend the use of the following goals based on the below reasons:
a. 0	Goals:% MBE% WBE
b. S	Subgoals% African American% Hispanic
	% Native/Asian American% WBE
This determine and ?	nation is based on the following reasons: The above purchase of Bcq rifter aner Ports for the printion deportment has no subcontracting inties.
Veronica La	Date: 10/9/13

Lorena Resendiz

CC:



MEMORANDUM

City of Austin Financial Services Department Purchasing Office

DATE: February 13, 2014

TO: Memo to File

FROM: Jonathan Dalchau, Buyer II

RE: MA 8100 GA140000037

SSPS, Inc. (Smith Manufacturing Co.) is the primary vendor for the following line items for the SASE Scarifier machines:

	SSPS, Inc. dba Smith Manufacturing Pompano Beach, FL	Unit Price
6	TOOTHED 640 BELT (SC8E)	\$62.94
8	SHAFT NUT (SC8E)	\$9.95
9	FLANGE BEARING (SC8E)	\$25.00
10	ENDPLATE BEARING (SC8E)	\$20.00
11	DRIVE BUSHING (SC8E)	\$55.00
12	COMPLETE DRUM (SC8E)	\$195.00
14	HEXAGONAL DRIVE SHAFT (SC8E)	\$99.45
16	2 INCH INLET BULL CAP 100 (SC10E)	\$2.95
18	TOOTHED 840 BELT (SC10E)	\$69.95
20	TENSIONING PULLEY (SC10E)	\$80.38
21	FLANGE BEARING (SC10E)	\$185.00
22	ENDPLATE BEARING (SC10E)	\$30.00
23	HEXAGONAL DRIVE SHAFT (SC10E)	\$225.00
24	LOWER TOOTHED PULLEY (SC10E)	\$215.00
25	FLAIL 9/16" SHAFT (SC10E)	\$7.98

Guardian Industrial Supply is the primary vendor for the following line items for the SASE Scarifier machines and the Bobcat and Cat Planners. Guardian is considered the default primary vendor for SASE Scarifier parts not listed on the bid sheet and charged a markup off 22% as indicated in Section 2 of the Bid Sheet.

	Guardian Industrial Supply Austin, TX	Unit Price
1	MUFFLER DEFLECTOR (SC8E)	\$14.97
2	UPPER TOOTHED PULLEY FR200 (SC8E)	\$125.64
3	MOUNTING EMERGENCY STOP BRACKET (SC8E)	\$17.58
4	EMERGENCY STOP SWITCH TETHER w/ CORD (SC8E)	\$25.24
5	POWER CORD 16/2 (SC8E)	\$2.60
7	LOWER TOOTHED PULLEY (SC8E)	\$178.21
13	12MM FLAIL SHAFT (SC8E)	\$11.54
15	BLACK SC10E CHASSIS w/DRUM (SC10E)	\$2,179.49
17	VACUUM HOSE (SC10E)	\$5.18
19	UPPER TOOTH PULLEY (SC10E)	\$135.71
26	609, 6 MM 24" WIDE SMOOTHCUT DRUM (Bobcat Planer)	\$6,355.13
27	STANDARD ALL PURPOSE BIT (Bobcat Planer)	\$12.00
28	BIT HOLDER (Bobcat Planer)	\$20.87
29	CYLINDER (Bobcat Planer)	\$620.89
30	STANDARD ALL PURPOSE BIT (Cat Planer)	\$10.79
31	MAIN PUMP (Cat Planer)	\$12,978.12
32	BIT HOLDER (Cat Planer)	\$22.81

MINORITY- AND WOMEN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (MBE/WBE) PROCUREMENT PROGRAM NO GOALS FORM

SOLICITATION NUMBER: JRD0003

PROJECT NAME: OEM PARTS AND REPAIR FOR SCARIFIERS AND PLANERS

The City of Austin has determined that no goals are appropriate for this project. Even though no goals have been established for this solicitation, the Bidder/Proposer is required to comply with the City's MBE/WBE Procurement Program, if areas of subcontracting are identified.

If any service is needed to perform the Contract and the Bidder/Proposer does not perform the service with its own workforce or if supplies or materials are required and the Bidder/Proposer does not have the supplies or materials in its inventory, the Bidder/Proposer shall contact the Small and Minority Business Resources Department (SMBR) at (512) 974-7600 to obtain a list of MBE and WBE firms available to perform the service or provide the supplies or materials. The Bidder/Proposer must also make a Good Faith Effort to use available MBE and WBE firms. Good Faith Efforts include but are not limited to contacting the listed MBE and WBE firms to solicit their interest in performing on the Contract; using MBE and WBE firms that have shown an interest, meet qualifications, and are competitive in the market; and documenting the results of the contacts.

Will subcontractors or sub-consultants or suppliers be used to perform portions of this Contract?

Yes If no, please sign the No Goals Form and submit it with your Bid/Proposal in a sealed envelope.

Yes If yes, please contact SMBR to obtain further instructions and an availability list and perform Good Faith Efforts. Complete and submit the No Goals Form and the No Goals Utilization Plan with your Bid/Proposal in a sealed envelope.

After Contract award, if your firm subcontracts any portion of the Contract, it is a requirement to complete Good Faith Efforts and the No Goals Utilization Plan, listing any subcontractor, subconsultant, or supplier. Return the completed Plan to the Project Manager or the Contract Manager.

I understand that even though no goals have been established, I must comply with the City's
MBE/WBE Procurement Program if subcontracting areas are identified. I agree that this No
Goals Form and No Goals Utilization Plan shall become a part of my Contract with the City of
Austin.
Thardian Indastrial Supply Company Name
- maionas frans (110)
Company Name
Steve Wilkes Sales
Name and Title of Authorized Representative (Print or Type)
Howe 166 - 11-643
Signature Date
7 m

MINORITY- AND WOMEN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (MBE/WBE) PROCUREMENT PROGRAM NO GOALS UTILIZATION PLAN

(Please duplicate as needed)

SOLICITATION NUMBER: JRD000	2		
SOLICITATION NUMBER: JRDUU	3		
PROJECT NAME: OEM PARTS AN	ID REPAIR FOR SCARIFIERS AND PLANERS		
PRIME CON	TRACTOR/CONSULTANT COMPANY INFORMATION		
Name of Contractor/Consultant	Guardian Industrial Supples		
Address	2012 Centimeter Cir 1		
City, State Zip	Anofin 1x 78758		
Phone	512-973-3500 Fax Number 512-975-3500		
Name of Contact Person	Steve Wilkes		
Is company City certified?	Yes No MBE WBE MBE/WBE Joint Venture		
	s No Goals Utilization Plan is true and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief. I nation in this document shall become part of my Contract with the City of Austin.		
Name and Title of Authorized Represe	ntative (Print or Type)		
Name and Title of Authorized Representation	Date 116-13		
Signature	Date		
Deside a Victor Call account on become	Attack		
Good Faith Efforts documentation if nor	s/subconsultants/suppliers that will be used in the performance of this Contract. Attach		
Good Patti Enons documentation it not	1 MDE/ WDE mins will be used.		
Sub-Contractor/Consultant	Quality Equipment		
City of Austin Certified	MBE WBE Ethnic/Gender Code: NON-CERTIFIED		
Vendor ID Code			
Contact Person	Keith Yanik Phone Number: 512-251:3415		
Amount of Subcontract	\$ 17317.27		
	\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \		
List commodity codes & description of	Parts Supplier		
services / and supplied			
Sub-Contractor/Consultant	543E		
City of Austin Certified	MBE WBE Ethnic/Gender Code: MON-CERTIFIED		
Vendor ID Code			
Contact Person	Pary Meidinger Phone Number: 423.279-7866		
Amount of Subcontract	\$ 39,987.97		
List commodity codes & description of	Parts Supplier		
services			
Annual supplies that the supplies and the supplies that the supplies the supplies the supplies that th			
FOR SMALL AND MINORITY BUSINESS RI	esources Department Use Only:		
Harring registered this also I acknowledge that the	ne proposer (HAS) or (HAS NOT) complied with City Code Chapter 2-9A/B/C/D, as amended.		
	1000 101		
	Ou Date 11 25/2013 Director/Deputy Director Notice 1008 ate 1/25/1		
	10.00		
	Date 11 25/2013 Director/Deputy Director Nation 1008 Bate 1/25/1		
	10.00		

Section 0900 - Sparifiers and Planers

16017 IH 35 PFLUCIENTEET TX 78660 \$ 29,319.64 Parts/Supplan



TO:	Veronica Lara, Director Department of Small and Minority Business Resources	
FROM: DATE:	Jonathan Daichau, Buyer II October 4, 2013	
SUBJECT:	Approval to use Zero Goals for Solicitation Project Name: JRD0003 Scarifier and Planer Parts Commodity Code(s): 1751955; 92915; 76060 Estimated Value: \$270,000	
The Purcha	sing Office has determined that the following Goals are appropriate for this Commodity solicitation:	
X_	No Goals (Goal of 0%)	
This determination is based on the following reasons:		
This solicitation will be bid by and awarded to a prime contractor. No subcontracting opportunities have been identified.		
Per paragraph 8.2.1 of the Rules Governing the Minority and Women Owned Business Enterprise Procurement Program, please approve the use of the above goals by completing and returning the below endorsement. If you have questions, please call me at 974-2939.		
Approval is hereby granted to use the above Goals.		
Approval is hereby denied. Recommend the use of the following goals based on the below reasons:		
a. (Goals:% MBE% WBE	
b. 8	Subgoals% African American% Hispanic	
	% Native/Asian American% WBE	
This determ	ination is based on the following reasons: The above purchase of Scarifier larger forts for the printion deportment his no subcontraction outs.	
Veronica La	ra, Director Date: 10/9/13	

cc: Lorena Resendiz

Issued 5/2/96